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Financial Highlights

BITsE R

<

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--f ZEZTF ZT-NEF ZZT-/\F ZT—+F
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT ABEET BEBT BEATL BEBT
Revenue Wz
— Semiconductor distribution — RN 1,190.4 1,259.2 1,602.4 1,592.1 1,304.9
— Consumer product and —HEBEEMR
product sourcing business EmREER 471 74.9 88.5 66.9 36.8
— Venture capital — g% - - - 0.8 -
— Others —Hfth 3.7 32 7.9 3.1 0.7
1,241.2 1,337.3 1,698.8 1,662.9 1,342.4
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, BRFE - FRIE - TE -
depreciation, amortisation B RIER RIBEA]
and non-cash items wH,(E51E)
— Corporate — A (33.9) (33.8) (26.0) (34.3) (22.2)
— Venture capital — A% (19.4) (16.0) (28.1) 47.9 14.0
— Semiconductor distribution — RN 354.7 192.1 154.5 161.5 227.2
— Consumer product and —HEBEEMR
product sourcing business BE IR ETE (16.5) (25.0) (20.4) 4.7) (7.6)
— Others —Hfth (13.5) (7.4) (10.1) (10.1) (6.4)
271.4 109.9 69.9 160.3 205.0
Depreciation and amortisation e R s (3.6) (4.8) 4.3) (3.6) (3.0
Profit for the year attributable to AT ATEERFEREER
— Owners of the Company —ARREEBA 269.8 935 57.3 163.3 276.1
- Non-controlling interests —FEPERR iR (0.3) 2.7) (2.1) (0.4) -
269.5 90.8 55.2 162.9 276.1
Dividend B2
— Proposed final — A 27.3 22.7 18.2 18.5 15.5
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRS (GBI
— Proposed final — AR 3.0 25 20 2.0 20
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Financial Highlights
BITSE R

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B-—-f% _—ZT-TF T-hF ZT-N\F IZT—+F
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
HEET BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBL
Total assets BEHAE 1,586.6 1,393.8 1,317.0 1,405.8 1,280.9
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDARS 1,440.2 1,198.4 1,132.5 1,106.9 1,094.0
Total equity G 1,425.0 1,181.0 1,115.6 1,086.7 1,078.3
Borrowings and lease liabilities EBEREEEAE 1.6 104.5 76.5 136.6 118.4
Cash and cash equivalents RekERRELIER 124.3 87.7 106.0 233.9 111.6
Equity investments at fair value FERBEREATEETE
through profit or loss LRI E - - - 99.3 102.1
Financial assets at fair value FEiRBEREATEBYE
through profit or loss (included ZEREEGIARDE
in current assets) E) 48.2 79.8 117.6 - -
172.5 167.5 223.6 333.2 213.7
Total debt to total equity BRI BE
b 0.1% 9% 7% 13% 1%
Current assets to current liabilities MEEERREEE S
b 176% 176% 215% 195% 335%
Cash and cash equivalents and BRRekERREIER
financial assets at fair value RERBHEATER
through profit or loss (included Fl8R 2 @ BVEE GTA
in current assets) per share (HK$) RBEE) (B) 0.19 0.18 0.25 0.36 0.23
Total equity per share (HK$) FiERBE (ET) 1.57 1.30 1.23 1.18 1.16
Revenue to property, plant and WEsEYE - BE &
equipment and right-of-use assets (x) & AR FAEEE
L% (15) 383 37.8 429 36.1 34.2
Revenue to inventories (x) W EfF S X () 36.8 16.2 273 10.4 17.2
Revenue to trade receivables (x) Woas BARE W B SR
L (15) 35.6 16.9 239 245 27.2
Revenue to trade payables, deposits ~ UzSERE(N Z SR »
received and accrued expenses (x) Bl e RIEER
L (15) 43.4 30.8 35.3 13.0 242
Revenue to borrowings (x) e BRE R L R (13) N/A 13.7 235 12.4 11.6
TiE A
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STATEMENT
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Dr. So Yuk Kwan &85+
Chairman /&

Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am honored to present the annual
results of AV Concept Holdings Limited (“AV Concept” or the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (the “year under review").

The pandemic bluntly shut down the world, however, major economies
showed their underlying strength in the face of the unprecedented crisis.
Daily lives may have been severely disrupted, but most economic activities
soon adapted to the new normal. In a year defined by COVID-19 disruptions,
global economy has proven remarkably adaptable with a nearly full return of
national outputs. During the year under review, the Group recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$1,241.2 million (2020: HK$1,337.3 million), profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$269.8 million
(2020: HK$93.4 million) and a gross profit of approximately HK$55.0 million
(2020: HK$30.3 million).

AAZRREFTEMAMBEIRZZAV Concept Holdings Limited ([AV
Conceptl/ K [ARA) REWB AR (B AEEDHEE_T=_—F=A1
—t+-HULEFE(EEFED Z2FEE -

EEREESHREE  AXELEBEIMAENERENRE T AENE
71 MRBEEEVEZIBEETE  BAZEEEEIBRIRGEEETHE
B WHAERAMSRBEEEN —FE 2R ERRBEENEERET
REENLETTE2RE - DBEFEN - AEESBEL%1,241,200,000
B (ZZE-F4F :1,337,300,000/870) - AAGHEE ABIEEFOA
269,800,000/ 7L (== == 4 : 93,400,000787T) * F£F4JA55,000,00078
JL(ZZE =4 : 30,300,000/ T) °
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Chairman’s Statement

According to a report published by Gartner, an international research and
advisory firm, in January 2021, worldwide semiconductor industry has
stabilized towards end of 2020 with memory chips slightly rebounded under
the increased server build, personal computer and ultramobile demand from
the shift to home working and learning. Market widely expects the adoption
of Internet of Things, 5G and automotive sector will continue to be the major
development trends of the semiconductor industry.

The global pandemic has transformed the role and importance of digital
experiences in customers’ lives. Despite e-commerce is at its all-time
high starting 2021, it is obvious not all e-commerce newcomers had the
infrastructure in place to deliver a world-class customer experience. Brands
have been heavily investing in richer, more personalized experiences for
customer acquisition and retention. Fueled by legacy wholesalers, global retail
giants, and product categories not traditionally purchased online, customer
acquisition costs are being driven up massively. The rising investment costs
alongside the uncertainty in digital advertising are becoming new challenges
for retailers to keep up.

We all agree 2021 started in a bullish mood. Prospects have improved with
widespread expectations of global economy beginning to emerge from the
shadow of COVID-19 and realise a rebound. Global governments believe
the world will eventually benefit from widespread vaccination rollouts, both
directly in fewer illnesses and indirectly as lockdowns and fears subside. As
the new year unfolds, we are also seeing new challenges impacting the
semiconductor boom in 2021 including heightened geopolitical uncertainties
as well as continued concerns over supply chain resilience. We believe, with
our prudent attitude, extensive experience and innovative thinking, we will
firmly set our eyes on the rapidly evolving change scenario, work best to
achieve business growth and deliver reasonable returns to shareholders.

Lastly, | would like to extend my gratitude to the Board, the management
team and our staffs for their enthusiasm, commitment and diligence. My
appreciation also goes to our shareholders, customers, suppliers and business
partners for their ongoing trust and support.

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman
Hong Kong
25 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN N DT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The following sets out the financial highlights for the year ended 31 March
2021, with the comparative figures for the corresponding financial year of

EHCERAIR

TERHFBE-Z - —F=A=T—RHIFEZHH
B BR-_TZFURFERAZ BT

2020.
2021 2020
—B-—-F e S S22
HK$'million HK$ million
BHEBT BEETT
Revenue by segment 12D EE) 5.2 Wa
Semiconductor distribution FERESE 1,190.4 1,259.2
Consumer product and product sourcing business JEBRAE m M E R TS 47.1 74.9
Venture capital =153 (15.3) (15.3)
Others EHh 3.7 3.2
1,225.9 1,322.0
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, depreciation, BFIE - FIE - ITE - BERIFRESEA
amortisation and non-cash items Bl F - (E1E)
Corporate ~A] (33.9) (33.8)
Venture capital Bll1% (19.4) (16.0)
Semiconductor distribution FERESE 354.7 192.1
Consumer product and product sourcing business HEBHEMNERRBER (16.5) (25.0)
Others Hith (13.5) (7.4)
271.4 109.9
Depreciation and amortisation HTE R
Corporate NG - -
Venture capital B (1.3) (1.4)
Semiconductor distribution FERE S H (2.1) (2.3)
Consumer product and product sourcing business SHEBEM N ERREBER (0.1) (0.8)
Others EHAh 0.1) (0.3)
Total depreciation and amortisation e KB HEEE (3.6) (4.8)
Profit before interest and tax Fr A8 R BT R4 F 277.7 95.9
Interest expenses F B (1.0) (3.8)
Bank interest income RITHALEUA - 0.4
Profit before tax FRA7 A& 276.7 925
Income tax Frig®t (7.2) (1.7)
Profit for the year FAmF 269.5 90.8
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATEEFERRT
Owners of the Company KARER A 269.8 935
Non-controlling interests Bl iy (0.3) 2.7)
269.5 90.8
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Following the outsized contraction of economic activity in 2020, global
output and demand is likely to rebound strongly in 2021 and onwards. The
broadening rollout of vaccines and continued fiscal and global monetary
policy support are further boosting the acceleration of economic growth
from the second quarter of year 2021. Coming off a low base, world gross
domestic product (“GDP"”) growth in 2021 is expected to be the highest
in more than a decade. Economic activity in the U.S. is likely to reach pre-
recession levels during the second half of this year, whereas China may record
GDP growth above 8% in 2021. Still, some of the pessimistic assessments of
the pandemic’s effect on the economy has also surfaced, such as geopolitical
concerns, inflation as well as COVID-19 variants which may bring negative
impact on the industry outlook.

During the year under review, in light of the challenging external environment
and the volatile global economic environment, the Group’s revenue by
segment was HK$1,225.9 million (2020: HK$1,322.0 million) decreased by
around 7%. Among which semiconductor distribution business recorded a
revenue of HK$1,190.4 million (2020: HK$1,259.2 million), consumer product
and product sourcing business recorded a revenue of HK$47.1 million (2020:
HK$74.9 million), venture capital business recorded a loss of HK$15.3 million
(2020: HK$15.3 million) and internet social media business recorded a
revenue of HK$3.7 million (2020: HK$3.2 million).

Semiconductor Distribution Business

Despite the impact of COVID-19 on the global economy, the semiconductor
market recorded strong performance in 2020. While demand by industry
was uneven throughout the year due to global lockdowns, remote work
and education, as well as shifts in consumer buying behaviour, the global
semiconductor revenue grew to US$464 billion in 2020, an increase of 10.9%
compared to 2019, according to International Data Corp (“IDC").

The world is currently in the midst of global semiconductor shortage sparked
by the major disruptions in supply chains caused by different factors such as
the pandemic and geopolitics. While shortages initially occurred in automotive
semiconductors, the impact is being felt across all boards including servers,
electronics, personal computers, and smartphones to a great extent. In
view of the unprecedented chip shortage, world chip manufacturers and
semiconductor players are working on re-establishing flexible and agile supply
chains to navigate the changes.

During the year under review, the semiconductor distribution business
recorded a turnover of HK$1,190.4 million (2020: HK$1,259.2 million) which
is mainly contributed by the subsidiary in Singapore that focuses business in
Southeast Asian countries such as India, Thailand, Malaysia and Philippines.
The main products sold to the Singapore market are memory chips followed
by thin film transistor liquid crystal displays and panels which are widely used
in LCD televisions.

BEENWN D

RO

BEELETESHE —_S - TFHBARKLEE - 2E
HAERA e eE—Z2 — —FRAHIRRDRE - B
mﬁﬁwgzaﬁuﬁﬁfm%ﬁﬂiﬁE%ﬁﬁi
B SR TR T —FEFELEER
BIINGER « AAESRE  — - —FHN2HRERN4E
48 ([GDP)) I RIEFHFER T ZF R EmAKF ©
SETHF  ZEMNEEEE ] EERFRATAIK
FomPENEEE S —FEH8% A LHGDP
BR-BEMLY - —ERANERESRIEEECES

ENEBELEE R BREBARHE - BE
ERARHABRRSEZRRES - BT

RHRAETE -

EIEFERN - B 7mkEINEPRE N R 2K
CERBFEHNELE  AEESLEESER
1,225,900,000/ 7L (ZE =& 4 : 1,322,000,0007%
TL) 0 NPEKIT% o AR EESHERIRSE XS
1,190,400,000% L (ZZE =ZZ 4 : 1,259,200,000
BIL) BBEEGLREMEBERSBSKE
47,100,000/ 7c (ZZ ZZ 4 : 74,900,000 7C) *
Bl 545158 851815,300,0008 T (ZE T4 ¢
15,300,000/ 7T) & B B A+ X IR B8 E IS 815 W
3,700,000/ T (== == 4F : 3,200,000/ L) °

FERDHER

BENMUTARSRBHEREBEELTHE - B+
ERMTHE_FT_TFERRABY - #ALHREEY
Fﬂ ERTIEMG ERRAREEEBETRANE

B (TEFSRKE - BREBEEEE AR ([IDC)) &
%%@m TECDFRIRF BRI AIEINES, 640
BET BT NFHEK109% °

MR ER RS RIS AR S E R EG (M

fESRERETE - BRI RRMRF BRI - #AE
FERSFHRER  EARKZE LRSZET M
B - BiEfAReSE - EFER - EABKNEE

# o RS HIRBIATR AR - 2ERCH RIER
MY ERBHEESNERZBE TN HEHEARYE
1t -

CEFTFERN FEERIHEEBNAGLSEESR
1,190,400,000/ 7 (ZE =& 4 : 1,259,200,0007%
ﬂ Hep i B RARNARA LR EBI
HEE FIEEBEEINRBEEBERMNNE - F
Bl - BARAGERIFERES - HEFIEMIENEEE
MmEETARSEFERNFRES  HXRRRESR
W ERREEREERSREIR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWROMN

During the year under review, the joint venture of the Group, AVP Electronics
Limited and its subsidiaries (“AVPEL Group”) continued to record satisfactory
results. Its turnover, though not being consolidated into the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, recorded 9.6% increase to HK$28,612
million (2020: HK$26,095 million). Profit sharing of AVPEL Group is increased
when comparing to the previous period due to a better turnover and gross
profit margin for AVPEL Group during the year under review. The main
customers of AVPEL Group are China’s major mobile phone manufacturers
and mobile phone component suppliers. AVPEL Group mainly engaged in
the distribution of Samsung Electronics including (i) CMOS image sensors (ii)
multi-layer packaged chips, and (iii) ARM processors.

The consumer semiconductor market segment rebounded in 2020 upon
the easing of pandemic. According to IDC, robust sales of game consoles,
tablets, wireless headphones and earbuds, smart watches, and Over-the-Top
streaming media devices fuelled global segment growth by 7.7% year over
year to US$60 billion. Mobile phone semiconductor revenues will grow by
23.3% in 2021 to US$147 billion. The geopolitical tensions between the US
and China are forcing the latter to develop competencies in this segment.
Over the last few years, China has greatly enhanced its capability in chip
manufacturing and has announced the US$1.4 trillion investment plan to
develop the semiconductor industry till year 2025. China’s Dual Circulation
initiative and strategy to make significant investments in this segment helped
it reach key milestones.

Consumer Product and Product Sourcing Business

This business segment is managed by one of the subsidiaries, E-GoGo Limited
("E-GoGo"). During the year under review, with the Group's strategic
development and planning, E-gogo Holdings Limited (“E-gogo Holdings")
which was direct controlled by E-GoGo before, has introduced a new
investment partner in the third quarter during the year under review. As a
result, E-gogo Holdings is now being one of the associate companies under
the Group.

In terms of the consumer product business, we mainly carry on different
kinds of electronic products following the latest technology gadgets which
target the markets in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand and
Indonesia. E-GoGo also actively develops online and offline product sourcing
business. During the year under review, the business of consumer product
and product sourcing recorded a turnover of HK$47.1 million (2020: HK$74.9
million). Hong Kong consumer retail demand is projected to stay weak in
2021 due to subdued local demands, and those riding on the tourism sectors
are also expected to be sourer due to various global travel and quarantine
restrictions. On the digital front, more physical retailers in Hong Kong have
escalated efforts in setting up online sales channels to catch up the trend
and stay resilient under the turmoil. On the other hand, Southeast Asia’s
e-commerce is on the ascent. With no end in sight to this pandemic within Asia,
more retailers are expected to shift online. Thus, pandemic has catalyzed the
digital mass migration, pushed e-commerce to the forefront and catapulted
the region into a digital-first world.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Internet Social Media Business

During the year under review, revenue from 830 Media Limited (“830 Media")
was HK$3.7 million (2020: HK$3.2 million), which was contributed from 830
Lab Limited (“830 Lab") and Whizoo Media Limited (“Whizoo Media").

830 Lab is dedicated on helping clients to build online presence for their
business. The services provided by 830 Lab include website design and
development, online content creation in terms of both photography and
videography. Whizoo Media is an internet social media company that
specializes in video production of popular topics and publishes these original
creative videos on major social media platforms including Facebook, YouTube,
Instagram, etc. to attract the young audience to become loyal subscribers.

During the year under review, Whizoo Media received high recognition
among commercial partners and has started cooperation with well-known
international and local brands and organizations, such as K11, Nestlé,
Lipton, Pizza Hut, Dutch Lady, Whisper, First Aid Beauty, BIODERMA, Sun
Life Financial, Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority, Vocational and
Professional Education and Training, Investors and Financial Education Council
and other brands and institutional clients through different levels of onestop
creative content solutions and introductions of related products or services
on the Facebook page and YouTube channel of Whizoo Media. Business
environment remained difficult during the year under review. With corporate
brands continuously shifting business priorities, realigning business needs
and successively reduced advertising expenditures, Whizoo Media has been
negatively affected and is ramping up efforts in preparation on the recovery.

On the other hand, with Whizoo Media’s operating strategy and experience,
830 Media also launched the Facebook page “He She Kids” for parents. The
page is developing rapidly and is popular among parents. It shares various of
parenting information and videos for parents.

In addition to its commitment to develop original brands, 830 Media has also
invested in OneShot Concept Limited (“OneShot”), an associate company
which owns the % OT"” brand, for a more diversified development strategy
in the internet social media business. OneShot aims at providing customers
with a variety of media services through its creativity, especially focusing on
social media-based content marketing and dedicated to providing innovative
solutions for marketing campaigns. In addition, OneShot also provides photo
production and video production related services for a wide range of brands.

The Group will continue to leverage its existing resources to manage its
internet social media business through space creation and creative channels in
order to thrive in the internet world.
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Venture Capital Business

During the year under review, the turnover for venture capital business
recorded a loss of HK$15.3 million (2020: HK$15.3 million), that is mainly
for the fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
net, interest income on listed bond investments, and dividend income from
listed equity investments in the current period. As of 31 March 2021, various
funds, convertible bonds, listed and unlisted equity investments, listed bond
investments, equity investment traded over-the-counter and key management
insurance contracts were held at fair market value of HK$72.9 million (31
March 2020: HK$103.7 million) by the Group. During the year under review,
the venture capital business of the Group recorded a fair value losses on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, net of HK$18.0 million
(2020: HK$18.8 million).

The venture capital business has always brought considerable income to the
Group. The ultimate objective for investments in venture capital business is
to obtain capital gains on investee’s equity listing or, in some circumstances,
prior to listing. It also includes investments in real estate, managed funds,
convertible bonds and listed bonds.

At 31 March 2021, the Group owned small strategic investments in Mad
Runway Holdings Limited, Luxury Choice Investments Limited and Urban
City Joint Stock Company. Mad Runway Holdings Limited is a member of
the ELLE family, which is dedicated to creating the most authoritative one-
stop fashion shopping platform, while Luxury Choice Investments Limited
is one of the world’s leading fast-growing custom watch brands and Urban
City Joint Stock Company is an e-commerce company in Vietnam. During the
year under review, the Group made the investment in Connectivity Ventures
Fund, LP which was an investment fund principally invested in development of
microchips business.

PROSPECT

With the global economy finally picking up its pace in 2021 upon the large-
scale vaccination rollout, World Bank expects the growth rate will reach 4%.
Yet one of the biggest cautions to consider is whether supply chains will be
able to keep up with growing demand. Indeed, concerns about disruptions
to supply chains and shortages that have occurred during the pandemic, a
major example was semiconductors. The chip shortages are expected to cause
widespread shortages of everything, from electronics to medical devices to
technology and networking equipment. Various markets are currently re-
examining their supply chains and are considering the future of their domestic
tech industry. Major global semiconductor players from China, Korea and
Europe are pressing ahead with massive investment to be the first to take
the future market. The entire semiconductor industry is facing a watershed
moment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COVID-19 is spurring great interest and uptake of advanced digital
technologies by consumers and businesses. With more companies racing to
embrace digital advancements, digital transformation encompasses coupling
powerful new technologies such as Artificial Intelligence, blockchain, Internet
of Things (“loT"), automation and 5G to drive values and enable growth.
According to the “Global semiconductor industry outlook 2021" report
issued by KPMG, Wireless/5G, loT and automotive are the most important
applications driving semiconductor industry over the next year. The buildout
of 5G networks and infrastructure further boosts loT use cases and creates
new demands for powerful hardware and software.

However, the demand squeeze in chip markets due to temporarily supply
disruptions will eventually be normalised. Chip manufacturers and suppliers
are now facing emerging challenges than ever before, juggling both ongoing
and new problems in terms of production capacity, semiconductor usage and
geopolitical factors. It is therefore important for industry players to be able
to anticipate potential threats or risks as well as to formulate flexible plans in
inventory coordination and logistics.

While many businesses are still adjusting to the new normal which is made
of complexity, uncertainty and opportunities, the Group has devoted much
efforts in addressing the deep changes needed in this new environment,
from a people, operations, and technology perspective, at speed and at scale.
Riding on its sound business results, prudent development strategies and
industry leadership, the Group has full confidence in solidifying its foothold,
maintaining its competitive advantages and staying under the unforeseeable
challenges ahead to achieve stable growth and bring reasonable returns to
shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total debt position and the gearing ratio as at 31 March 2021 are shown as
follows:
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HK$'million HK$ million

BEBT HEBAT

Cash and cash equivalents ReLkERBELIEE 124.3 87.7
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss FREREATEBNEZ

(included in current assets) CHEE GIARDERE) 48.2 79.8

172.5 167.5

Borrowings and lease liabilities BRREESE 1.6 104.5

Total equity T HEER 1,425.0 1,181.0

Total debt to total equity BB ATE 2 L E 0.1% 8.9%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 March 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents (i.e. cash
and bank balances and deposits with other financial institution) of HK$124.3
million (31 March 2020: HK$87.7 million), while the Group’s financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (included in current assets) amounted to
HK$48.2 million (31 March 2020: HK$79.8 million). The equity investments
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss included a balanced
mix of fixed income, equity and alternative investments and such amount
represented the cash reserves held for the Group’s medium to long term
business development and would form an integral part of the Group’s
treasury.

The total debt to total equity ratio as at 31 March 2021 was 0.1% (31
March 2020: 8.9%), while the Group’s total equity as at 31 March 2021 was
HK$1,425.0 million (31 March 2020: HK$1,181.0 million), with the total
balances of cash and cash equivalents and equity investments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (included in current assets) as at 31
March 2021 of HK$172.5 million (31 March 2020: HK$167.5 million).

The working capital position of the Group remains healthy. As at 31 March
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2021, the liquidity ratio was 175% (2020: 176%). A=+—H RBEELERI175% (ZT_FF :
176%) °
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZF-F

HKS$’'million HK$'million

BEAT BEAETL

Current assets MENEE 257.1 343.0
Current liabilities mENEE (146.5) (195.4)
Net current assets MEEEFRE 110.6 147.6
Current assets to current liabilities MEBEEERBAGE X 175% 176%

Management is confident that the Group follows a prudent policy in
managing its treasury position, and maintains a high level of liquidity to ensure
that the Group is well placed to take advantage of growth opportunities for
the business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group recorded financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$72.9 million (31 March 2020:
HK$103.7 million). For a detailed breakdown of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, please refer to note 19 in the consolidated financial
statements. For the performance during the year and future prospects of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, please refer to the section
“Business Review and Prospects — Venture Capital Business” on page 14 of
this annual report.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Certain of the Group's property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets,
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have been pledged to
secure the bank facilities of the Group. Please refer to notes 12 and 19 in the
consolidated financial statements for details.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group employed a total of approximately 164 (31
March 2020: approximately 178) full-time employees. The Group recruits and
promotes individuals based on merit and their development potentials for
the positions offered. Remuneration package is determined with reference to
their performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market. In addition,
the Group operates share option schemes for eligible employees to provide
incentive to the participants for their contribution and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of the Group. Share options and discretionary bonuses
are granted based on the Group’s and individual’s performances.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. So Yuk Kwan (“Dr. So"”), aged 71, is the founder, Chairman, Chief
Executive Offer and Executive Director of the Company. Dr. So is the father
of Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng and Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny, all being Executive
Directors of the Company. In the early 1980’s, he founded AV Concept
Limited. Dr. So is primarily responsible for overall business strategies and
business development to the Company. Dr. So has over 45 years of experience
in the electronics industry. Under his leadership, AV Concept achieved
remarkable results in the sales and marketing of semiconductors contributing
to the appointment by Samsung Electronics as its distributor since 1982.
In 1989, AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. was established to develop its
electronic business in Singapore, South-east Asia countries and subsequently
expanded to the market in the People’s Republic of China through vertical
integration in early 90’s. In April 1996, AV Concept Holdings Limited listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group
continuously received numerous awards, including Samsung Electronics’s “Best
Performance Award” in recognition of the excellent sales and marketing
performance as well as contribution to cultivate strong customers relationship
in the semiconductors market.

Dr. So holds an honorary degree, Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the International American University and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of East Asia (now
known as University of Macau) and he is also a Fellow Member of the
British Institute of Management. Presently, he is the Vice Chairman of the
Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association
Limited (“HKEIA") and the Chairman of Education Fund of HKEIA. Dr. So is
also the Vice President of The Hong Kong Semiconductor Industry Council.
Further, Dr. So is a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and the Honorary Chairman of Advisory Committee (Industry) of Cooperative
Education Centre of City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (“Mr. Kevin So"”), aged 35, is the Chief Operation
Officer and Executive Director of the Company responsible for operation of
the Group and E-GoGo Limited. Mr. Kevin So joined the Group in 2011 and
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November 2015.
Mr. Kevin So obtained a Bachelor of Science degree (major in Management)
from Bentley College in United States of America in May 2008 and a Master
of Business Administration degree from Bentley University in United States
of America in February 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kevin So had
pursued a career in corporate finance in an international financial institution.
Mr. Kevin So is the son of Dr. So, Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director of the Company and the brother of Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny,
an Executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny (“Mr. Sunny So"”), aged 33, is the Executive Director
of the Company, chief executive officer of 830 Lab Limited and Whizoo Media
Limited, indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, which are
principally engaged in internet social media business. Mr. Sunny So joined the
Group in 2011 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in November 2015. Mr. Sunny So obtained a Bachelor of Science degree (major
in Graphic Design) from Northeastern University in United States of America
in January 2011. Mr. Sunny So is the son of Dr. So, Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and an Executive Director of the Company and the brother of Mr.
Kevin So, an Executive Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lui Ming Wah (“Dr. Lui"), sBs, Jp, aged 83, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company Since 1996. Dr. Lui is an established
industrialist serving as the Honorary Chairman of the HKEIA and the Honorary
President of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the
founder chairman of Hong Kong Shandong Business Association, Honorary
President of Federation of HK Shandong Community Organisations Limited.
Adviser Prof. of Shandong University. He was elected to the First, Second and
Third Legislative Council of the HKSAR in 1998, 2000 and 2004 respectively.
Dr. Lui was also member of the tenth and eleventh National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Member of standing
Shandong Provincial Committee of C.P.P.C.C., Advisory board member of
the Hong Kong International Arbitration Center, President of The Hong Kong
Association for the Advancement of Science and Technology and Advisor of
Hong Kong Affairs. He is the managing director of Keystone Electronics Co.,
Limited. Besides, he is currently an independent non-executive director of
L.K. Technology Holdings Limited and Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited
(both companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and
Asian Citrus Holdings Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the London Stock Exchange). Dr. Lui obtained a master's degree
in Applied Science from the University of New South Wales in Australia and a
PhD from the University of Saskatchewan in Canada. He completed the “Hong
Kong Senior Staff Course No. 1, 1984". He is a Fellow of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman (“Mr. Chapman”), aged 72, has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2000. He
was Executive Director of the HKEIA and Managing Director of the HKEIA's
subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong Electronics Promotions Ltd.
from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired. Currently, Mr. Chapman is
an Independent Non-executive Director of Mobicon Group Limited. Prior to
joining the HKEIA, Mr. Chapman worked for 12 years as Economics Editor at
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and for 8 years as Business Editor
in a local English-language newspaper.
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Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund (“Mr. Lai"”), aged 55, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2019. Mr. Lai obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Engineering from Imperial College London in 1987.
He is a qualified accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
England and Wales. Mr. Lai has over 30 years of experience in finance and
treasury management. Mr. Lai started his career in 1987 with Ernst & Young
in London where he qualified as a Chartered Accountant. In 1993, Mr. Lai
transferred to Ernst & Young in Hong Kong as a manager in their audit
services and was responsible for various large company audits and IPO’s in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). In 1996, Mr.
Lai joined the Company as the Group Financial Controller. Mr. Lai was the
Chief Financial Officer and the Executive Director of the Company from 2003
to 2006. From 2006 to 2008, Mr. Lai acted as the Chief Executive Officer of
AV BreconRidge Limited and the President of BreconRidge Manufacturing
Solutions (Asia) Limited. In 2008, Mr. Lai started his own consultancy services
and worked on projects for various PRC companies and charities. Mr. Lai
joined Vertex Services Limited (a member of HMTX Industries LLC) as the Chief
Financial Officer since 2011 and continued to serve to present. He has overall
responsibility for the finance, treasury and risk management functions of
Vertex Services Limited and its related companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Choi Joon Yun (“Mr. Choi"), aged 57, was appointed as the President
and Chief Executive Officer of AV Concept Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company from 2006 to 2011. Mr. Choi currently is the President and Chief
Executive Officer of AVP Electronics Limited, a joint venture of the Group
since January 2012. Mr. Choi has over 32 years of experience in Sales and
Marketing. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Choi was the Sales and Marketing
Director of Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Shanghai), and the Sales and
Marketing Senior Manager of Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong
and Shenzhen). He had also been working for Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd.
(Semiconductor Business) as Sales and Marketing Manager for Asian market.

Mr. Chan Chi Hang (“Mr. Chan”), aged 44, was appointed as the Company
Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since August 2015.
Mr. Chan has extensive experience in accounting and auditing, and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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The Directors of the Company present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group consist of the marketing and distribution of electronic
components, the design, development and sale of consumer products and
product sourcing business, venture capital investment, and internet social
media business.

Further discussion and analysis of business review as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group'’s business, can be found in the Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6 to 17
of this annual report. The above discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the Company, as assisted by the audit committee of the
Company, oversees the Group's internal control and risk management system,
and conducts periodic reviews of such system to ensure good corporate
governance practice. The supervision process and outcome of the latest review
is set out in more detail in the section headed “Internal Control” in corporate
governance report in this annual report. The following is a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group. The management of the
Company meets periodically to discuss these risks, and where appropriate,
will monitor the situation closely and adopt any necessary risk mitigation
measures.

Industry risk

The sale and distribution of electronic components and design, development
and sales of consumer products and product sourcing business are sensitive
to technology change. The industry is also subject to rapidly changing
market trends and intense competition amongst different players. This may
materially and adversely affect the Group's business performance. To maintain
competitiveness, the management of the Company will meet regularly to
update the technology change and the industry environment.

Economy risk

The performance of the Group is affected by the overall economy growth,
especially in the electronic components market. If the economy slows down,
it is highly likely that the demand for electronic components may be reduced.
Any continued economic slowdown or recession may result in a decrease in
sales, and may lead to a material adverse effect on the Group’s business and
results of operations.
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Financial risk

Credit risk

To minimise credit risk, the Group has monitoring procedures to ensure
there is follow-up action to recover overdue debts. The Group also reviews
the recoverable amount of trade receivables by the simplified approach for
impairment at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Board therefore
considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents which
it deems adequate to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of cash flow fluctuations.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to risk of changes in market interest rates related
primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating
interest rates. It does not currently has any interest rate hedging policy, but
closely monitors its exposure to interest rate risk due to changes in market
rates and will consider hedging changes should the need arise.

Market price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The management of the Company monitors the changes
of securities prices and may change the investment portfolio held if needed.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it engages. The Group strives to minimise its
impact on the environment by reducing its use of electricity and water and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group has
complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and employment.

Compliance with the laws and regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations. During the year under review, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material breach or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group during
the year under review.
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Relationship with employees, clients, suppliers and other
stakeholders

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends on the
support from its key stakeholders, including employees, clients, suppliers,
banks, regulators and shareholders. During the year under review, there
were no material and significant disputes between the Group and its key
stakeholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 83 to 199 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.030
(2020: HK$0.025) per share for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on Friday, 27 August 2021, will be payable on Friday,
17 September 2021 to shareholders whose names appear on the registrar
of members of the Company on Friday, 3 September 2021. Based on
908,663,302 shares in issue as of the date of this report, the total dividend
will amount to approximately HK$27.3 million.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled on Friday, 27
August 2021. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 24 August 2021 to Friday, 27 August 2021, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers
of shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 August 2021.

In order to determine the list of shareholders who are entitled to receive the
proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company’s
register of members will be closed from Thursday, 2 September 2021 to
Friday, 3 September 2021, both days inclusive. Shareholders are reminded
that in order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 1 September 2021.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options are set out in notes
29 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association (the “Avrticles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2021, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$468,597,000 (2020: HK$465,542,000).
The share premium of the Company is available for distribution or paying
dividends to the shareholders provided that immediately following the
distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited

MBERBE
TXHFIA RS OO TR BRI RE 2 R
RAM T 2 A EEN R AERABHE -

financial statements, is set out below.

RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 March
HZ=A=1—-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--F% ZTZEF —T-NF —T-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAEL T T FET
REVENUE hE 1,241,160 1,337,326 1,698,796 1,662,878 1,342,399
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBIATRF 276,718 92,462 55,607 163,690 276,396
Income tax FTiSH (7,192) (1,711) (@14) (801) 274)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 269,526 90,751 55,193 162,889 276,122
Attributable to: AT AL FEL 269,788 93,443 57,278 163,267 276,122
Owners of the Company ARRBEAA

Non-controlling interests MRS (262) (2,692) (2,085) (378) -
269,526 90,751 55,193 162,889 276,122

Assets and liabilities EERERE

As at 31 March
R=ZBA=+-B

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B=-F St -3 —ENF “EN\F “EAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T FET FET FET
TOTAL ASSETS BEMGE 1,586,615 1,393,820 1,317,018 1,405,799 1,280,877
TOTAL LIABILITIES i=litat (161,606) (212,823) (201,425) (319,073) (202,583)
1,425,009 1,180,997 1,115,593 1,086,726 1,078,294
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (Chief Operation Officer)

Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, Jp

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman

Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund

Mr. Wong Ka Kit (resigned on 28 August 2020)

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, Jp, Mr.
Charles Edward Chapman, and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund, confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), and considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group as at the date
of this annual report are set out on pages 18 to 21 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, and approved by the Board of Directors (the “Board”), as
authorised by shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company,
having regard to their skills, knowledge and involvement in the Company’s
affairs. No Directors are involved in deciding their own remuneration.

We offer competitive remuneration package, including medical and
retirement benefits, to eligible employees. Apart from basic salary, Executive
Directors and employees are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking
into account factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and
individual’s performance during the year.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the eligible employees, including
the Directors, the Company and the subsidiaries have adopted share option
schemes. The schemes enable the eligible persons to obtain an ownership
interest in the Company and the subsidiaries and thus will motivate them to
optimise their continuing contributions to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which any of the Company’s
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
the Listing Rules, are as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company
(a) Interests in shares of the Company

Directors’ Report
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EERNRS RSNz ER

EESHHMERRRNFAMENARRIEAME R
AFRI A EMEHAREEEBERNZRS - THrsk
ABHPEEAREEEGEA M -

EERESTTRAERRG RABER G
p 1

RZZBE-Z—F=ZA=1+—H  ARAIEZMRRSTH
ABRARBSKEBEEE (EERESF KIS KR
FEXVER) Z 1D AR D P A AR ERIEEFH &
HEGMEIS2HEZREATREFZERMATREZ
o SRR ETRBIFTE MBI AETHEITES
RS HIZAESF R (TRAESFRI)) BB ITAE ARQ 7 R
AT AT

RERRRBDZHFR
(@) RADTR 2

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Nature of interest shares of the interest in the
Name of Director and chief executive  and capacity Company issued shares
BRITROER
EERBSTHRABHR ERtER S5 ARAREBEREE BHBEDL
Dr. So Corporate interest 507,275,468
BRiEL NGl
Beneficial owner 52,058,400 61.56%
E=mfAA (Note)
(f5E)

Note: These shares include (i) 410,507,602 shares of the Company held by B.K.S.
Company Limited (“BKS"); (ii) 96,767,866 shares of the Company held by Jade
Concept Limited (“Jade Concept”); and (iii) 52,058,400 shares of the Company
held by Dr. So as beneficial owner. Dr. So is deemed to be interested in
507,275,468 shares of the Company by virtue of his interests in BKS and Jade
Concept, the particulars are more fully described in the section headed “Interests
of Substantial Shareholders” below.

Mist © SRR B4E() HB.K.S. Company Limited
(TBKS)) #482410,507,602 AR QAR  (ii)
f3Jade Concept Limited([Jade Concept)) #H 2
96,767,866 AR RIS ¢ K(iNB#MEL (HEAE
B AN) B 252,058,400 AR B G o BRI
BrH T 7EBKS MJade Conceptz #25 @ RIER AR
507,275,468 AN ARG P HEE s - BREFE
R EERE 2 ez ] — & —afil -
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(b)

Interests in underlying shares of associated corporations of the
Company

(b) RAEQTEBCEEEBR G 2 &

Approximate

Number of percentage of

ordinary shares of interest in

Name of Director Nature of interest Name of associated associated

and chief executive and capacity associated corporations corporations corporations

HEEE MEE B R

EERESTRABESR EEtER S HECEE AR ZEREE BOE D

Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny Beneficial owner 830 Lab Limited (“830 Lab") 220,000 (Note) 30.98%
("Mr. Sunny So”) EnBEEA (Fft3E)

mERRE

Note: These underlying shares in 830 Lab, a subsidiary of the Company, represent
interest in the share options granted to Mr. Sunny So pursuant to the share
option scheme adopted by 830 Lab.

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company and
a subsidiary of the Company are separately disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had registered any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and in the share option schemes
disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

30
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2021, the following substantial shareholders (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more
in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:
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FERRZER
R-E-—FE=A=+—8 U TTERER(KQF
EZRERTRASRIN RARQERD T HEIRE
BH RS EPIE33615 2 REB TRET 2L MAT
FO8E 2 5%k A FHESS

Long position in the shares of the Company RAERTRGBZHEE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of interest in the
Name of shareholder Nature of capacity shares held issued shares
ERITROER
BRER S SHE FEROEE BABEDE
BKS Beneficial owner 410,507,602 (Note 1) 45.18%
E=BEAA (BREED)
Jade Concept Beneficial owner 96,767,866 (Note 2) 10.65%
E=BEAA (f5E2)
Madam Yeung Kit Ling (“Madam Yeung"”) Interest of spouse 559,333,868 (Note 3) 61.56%
2R+ (15 t]) BB 2 e (BF5E3)
Notes: PRRE -
1. BKS is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to be 1. BKSEHEIE T EREA - RIEFF KRB K - #HIF L

interested in 410,507,602 shares of the Company held by BKS.

2. Jade Concept is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to
be interested in 96,767,866 shares of the Company held by Jade Concept.

3. As Madam Yeung is the spouse of Dr. So, by virtue of the SFO, she is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by BKS and Jade Concept in which Dr. So
has interest, and 52,058,400 shares held by Dr. So as beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Company has not been
notified by any person or corporation (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out above) having interests
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be notified to the Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or which are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of the related party transactions as disclosed in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements is subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements of the
Listing Rules.

AR B RBKS#EHA 2410,507,602 % AR B I (5 A HE

25 o

2. Jade Conceptd# B Lt EZES - IRIEFHLEEH J :
R IE A8 B ade Conceptif & 296,767,866 A2
Bt A A o

3. MBS T AFE L 2 BE  BUIRBEFRPER - &
WAS BN ERE A #25 2 BKS MJade ConceptiF A 2 7K
NRIED RIS TR E =R AFRFH 252,058,4000% %
DA -

B EXPIEEN  RZE_—F=A=+—H &
RAAERZEEMALTIOER (ARBESERESTT
BA BRI - REZEEHN E3OBHM - RNESF
AR AR B AR B 4D oh B 1R 8 o5 S R {k A5
EXVERME AR B RARBIRIEEZ LB EDS
33612 RERTREFZ BRMATRER 2 H o

BRAEALRS
REREBBRPETIEAEBEALRS 25
1B MRRAMBERRME35 - GARBRERME
3SFTHE 2 AMEA TR B HBENT EHRAZ
| AERELRERAZIE o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Company operate share option
schemes (the “Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operation. Further details of the Schemes are disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions amounting to
HK$258,000 (2020: HK$240,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 27% of the Group's total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to approximately 9%.
Purchases from the Group'’s five largest suppliers for the year accounted for
approximately 94% of the Group's total purchases and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 65%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) were considered to have an interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than those businesses of which the Directors
were appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or
the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares were held by the public during the year ended 31 March 2021
and as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of one year, and each of the independent non-executive
directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of one year.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with any member of the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existing during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year under review and as at the date of this report, an indemnity
provision was in force. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors during the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out on
pages 35 to 45 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate amount of financial assistance to, and
(where applicable) guarantee given for the loan facilities granted to, affiliated
companies of the Company, exceeds 8% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07 (1) of the Listing Rules. In compliance with the requirement
of Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the combined statement of financial
position of the affiliated companies (with attributable interest of the Group in
the affiliated companies) as at the latest applicable date is set out below:

Directors’ Report
EEERE

BEEEN

FABET LS FEGAAR R BERERMERLD
EBZEBRITHRAL

o

EETRERX

IOV RR 4 [ PO R AR 1B - 5 — T ST A o
AARERBEFENAEERHEE EFETRE
RHE -

ERER
AAREEEHRZEE  HRAFREIAEE
458 o

BELEHRAFE13.224EH 2 HE

MIBZ—F=A=+—H FRABBRAESEL
AR ER) MEERE TR ERMI ZERZ
MEERRR FTRAIE 14 07T(IRFTREC EEL R Y
8% o mffa FMIRAIE13.22(6 2 RE - REAER
BH - BEARZAHFMBRAR (BEANEENE
BRI AR HIT

Group's

Combined statement attributable

of financial position interest

BOT BT R AEEELER

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Non-current assets IERBEE 109,365 82,024
Current assets MENEE 9,545,523 7,159,142
Current liabilities MENBE (8,273,514) (6,205,135)
Non-current liabilities ETBEE (1,105) (829)
1,380,269 1,035,202

Share capital &N 180,000 135,000
Reserves 5 1,200,269 900,202
1,380,269 1,035,202
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AUDITOR B M

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of ~ ZXKEFAIEHBATTRER - AR AGEREEREE
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting. FRELREAFER  BEAERARRTZIZEEAE

On Behalf of the Board REESE

So Yuk Kwan FE

Chairman Lo yS3s)

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021 B T —FXHA-+HhHB
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The Group is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
and enhance its transparency and corporate value. The Group believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework between the Board and the
shareholders so as to enhancing shareholders’ interest and value as a whole.
The Board continually reviews and improves its corporate governance practices
to ensure the Company keeps abreast of the expectation of shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”).

The purpose of this report is to provide Shareholders with information on
the major principles and corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has applied the
major principles and complied with the code provisions, except for the code
provision A.2.1, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Corporate Governance Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Further details of the
Company's corporate governance practices will be described in the following
sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board should assure responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company and its subsidiaries affairs.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the formulation of the
Group's business objectives and strategies. Matters reserved for the Board
are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finance and risk
management. The senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group directed by leadership of the Executive Directors. To
this end, the senior management has to implement, manage and monitor
the business plans, internal controls and corporate governance practices
developed by the Board.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.

As at 31 March 2021, the Board comprised three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). One of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs
to be independent. Having the INEDs in the Board ensure that independent
judgment is exercised and that a proper balance of power is maintained
for full and effective control of the Group and its executive management.
The Directors believe that the existing Board composition reflects the
Company's respect for high standards of business conduct commonly
adopted by multinational enterprises. The INEDs perform an important role in
safeguarding the Shareholders’ interests.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition
(which include an assessment of the skills, knowledge and experience of the
existing Directors and suitable candidates) and for formulating procedures for
appointment of its own members and for nominating them for election by
the Shareholders on the first appointment and thereafter at regular intervals
through the retirement by rotation process pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for specific term and has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year, which
shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving
the other not less than one month’s notice in writing. All the Directors
are subjected to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Kevin So and Mr. Sunny So will retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting. They are being eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ") of the
Company are held by Dr. So.

Dr. So is primarily responsible for overall business strategies and business
development to the Company. Dr. So is the founder of the Group and has
over 45 years of experience in the electronic industry.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and the
CEO in the same person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation. Therefore, the Board
considers that the deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code is appropriate in such circumstance. In addition, under
the supervision of the Board which is comprised of three Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, the Board is appropriately
structured with balance of power to provide sufficient checks to protect the
interests of the Group and its shareholders.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and overseeing the
functioning of the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Chairman determines
that the Board is provided with direction and sufficient consultation for the
Directors in effectively discharging their responsibilities for different aspects of
the business.

The CEO, supported by senior management, are responsible for
implementation of corporate goals, business strategies and policies resolved
by the Board from time to time. The CEO assumes full accountability to the
Board in respect of the Group’s operations and development.

Save as Dr. So, the Chairman and the CEQ, is the father of Mr. Kevin So, the

Chief Operation Officer, and Mr. Sunny So, there is no relationship among
members of the Board.
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Board Meetings

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at about quarterly interval. The
senior management of the Group from time to time reports to the Directors
information on the activities and development of the Group’s business. In
addition, the Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

The attendance record of regular four board meetings held during the year is
set out below:

SEEARRE

EEEE3

ERRRAREANETERT R - AEEZER
ERETRAEFTHERRAREXRK BB RER
HER o 1o - ERRMBEAEEZ —PER - AR
BERSEABEREABLIEEER

FRABRTZHEAERESFE SR 2 HELHEAIIN
T

Attendance/ BEHE

Name of Directors Number of meetings EZHH BITRY
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman and BEHiELT

Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 (EEFRTEAER) 4/4
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng (Chief Operation Officer) 4/4  EREBRE (EEHEE) 4/4
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny 4/4  EREBASEAE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BT TEE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sgs, Jp 4/4 EEAZEFL - ses . AFmt 4/4
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 4/4  Charles Edward Chapman?t 4 4/4
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 4/4  FRIBFEE 4/4
Mr. Wong Ka Kit BERHEE

(resigned on 28 August 2020) 11 (R=ZZE=ZTFEN\AZ+/\BEHT) 11
Board Committees EELES

As at the date of the report, there were four Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee in operation and each one of
them was established with specific terms of references to assist the Board
discharging its responsibilities and maintaining proper internal controls and to
promote good corporate governance as a whole.
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Audit Committee

As at 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee comprises of three Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by Dr. Lui Ming
Wah, sBs, Jp and the other members include, Mr. Charles Edward Chapman
and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include (i) to discuss with the
external auditor before the audit commence, the nature and scope of the
audit and confirm their independence and objectivity; (ii) to review the
Group's financial information before submission to the Board; (iii) to review
the Group’s financial reporting system and the effectiveness of the audit
process with internal control procedure; and (iv) to review external auditor’s
management letter and the relationship with the Group.

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit
Committee meets at least twice a year to review the interim results and the
final results of the Company.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the interim results for
the six months ended 30 September 2020. The Audit Committee had also
reviewed and discussed with the management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters including the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2021.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee meetings held during the year
is set out below.
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Attendance/ BEHE

Name of Audit Committee Members Number of meetings BREZEEEHEHR BIRY

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sgs, p (Chairman) 22 EREEL s ATHE(EE) 2/2

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 2/2  Charles Edward Chapman’t4& 2/2

Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 22 HRBEE 2/2
Mr. Wong Ka Kit ,%\?R%%E

(resigned on 28 August 2020) 11 (R=ZZE=ZTFENA=FT/\BEHT) 11
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee comprises of three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is
chaired by Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, Jp, and the other members include Mr.
Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund. One Remuneration
Committee meeting was held during the year to consider the salary
adjustment of the Directors and all members had attended the meeting.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management and reviewing
the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
management by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability as
well as remuneration benchmarks in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. No Director or any of his associates shall be involved in deciding
his own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee normally meets once a
year and at other times as required.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee meeting held during
the year is set out below.

SEEARRE

FMEES

RZEZ—F=A=+—8 FWEZECH =25
NIEBMITEERMENK c FINEE S EFE AR HER
T v osBs - ATt - MEAMA S B ECharles Edward
Chapmanft A RIERBEE - HTINZE SR FARNR
T REHEUNZEEZTH AR  2BKEHED
=38
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Attendance/ BEHE
Name of Remuneration Committee Members Number of meetings HHEESEHEHRR BIRE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sgs, e (Chairman) 171 BEREREL s ATEE(FE) 171
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman?%t 4 171
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 171 BRBEAE 1”1
Mr. Wong Ka Kit EER: S
(resigned on 28 August 2020) 11 (RZZE=ZTFEN\A=+/\BEHT) 11
Nomination Committee REZEE

As at 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee comprises of three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is chaired
by Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sgs, Jp, and the other members include Mr. Charles
Edward Chapman and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include (i) review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the Chairman and the CEO.
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The Nomination Committee meeting held at least once a year and additional 1EZZEEZEVEBFRIT—AEHE  THRETERE
meeting may be held as required. During the year, the Nomination Committee 55%17 g% FR - ?E%i/\ SEBIT-REHE RNg
held a meeting and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the DA ERG CRE - ABRAEK
Board.
The attendance record of the Nomination Committee meeting held during the ~ FRBITZIBRZEZ B @& H 2 HELEEHINNOT
year is set out below:
Attendance/ BREHE

Name of Nomination Committee Members Number of meetings REAZESEREHR BITRE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sgs, Jp (Chairman) 171 EREEL - s ATm+ (EE) 11
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman?%t 4 m
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 171 B&REREAE 11
Mr. Wong Ka Kit %%%?ﬁi

(resigned on 28 August 2020) 11 (RZZEZTFNAZT\HED) 11
Board Diversity Policy EEgsnlbBX

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy and the Company believes
that the implementation of this policy will help improve the functioning of
the Board and its corporate governance. Diversity of board members can be
achieved by considering various factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, ethnicity, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skill, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee considers
whether the proposed Director satisfies the diversity of Directors or not while
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become a member of the Board.
The Nomination Committee will regularly review the measurable objectives
that the Board has set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives

As at the date of the report, the Board consists of 6 directors with different
professional backgrounds. The Nomination Committee believes that the
existing Board provides the required professional skills, experience and
guidance for the Company’s operations and management in terms of the
Company’s relevant business operations. The Nomination Committee will
continue to review the Board diversity policy from time to time to ensure its
effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Committee

As at 31 March 2021, the Corporate Governance Committee comprises
of three Independent Non-executive Directors. The Corporate Governance
Committee is chaired by Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sgs, Jp, and the other members
included Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund.

The Corporate Governance Committee is primarily responsible for developing
and reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and making recommendations to the Board and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

42 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 43k

EESCRMNEZS L ILELBER - ARRMEREE—HK
KN EHRADRAESFTERERERAEEKTE - &
EFEeNEBEZLAEREESZ T ARKES 5T
FEETREAMR - T Bk UEREBBERE =
8% - BT MBMRISTFE - REZEENYE
BEHEAEEARETESNALT ZARNEEZAIERE
%Emﬁié%ﬁﬁi%;ﬂtﬂ: RAEZBEBTES ﬁE

EEEANTEFENEZUEBEEMBENAGTE
BIZFEZ®EE o

RAZRERH EFTHERRATRABEEESZE
ZHEX - IREZREERR HEARFNHEBEER
% RITEFERARRNEEMEERERT AR
BEXERE  ERES - RERZBeSEETRHEE
EFENEZTTEEE - NERIEBERNBRUETT °

Tt¥EEREES

RZEZ—F=ZA=+—8 GtE¥ERLZESH=
BEUIENTESHANX - CEERZEGZERAE
ERAZEE L - s xPmE 0 MEAMAK B B 1ECharles
Edward Chapman?t & R ERIB L £ -

CEREAZBETIBABHERRIARRZERE
AR R ER Iﬁé%ﬁkﬁkﬁ AR AR AR
AETEEERTAZER




> P o”) O«

Corporate Governance Report

J/J-_\ﬁkk

HRE

The Corporate Governance Committee meeting held at least once a year. 1EEARZESEVBFLRITNEE - FN - %
During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee held a meeting and EARZES@ERT—NEE BRI ARRBTEENR
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and ~ ESEMREZHBR L ER -
regulatory requirements.
The attendance record of the Corporate Governance Committee meeting held FRARITZAEERTE S H 2 HFE LW
during the year is set out below: e
Name of Corporate Governance Committee Attendance/ gBHE
Members Number of meetings LEERZEEEREM A BITRH
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sss, Jp (Chairman) 171 BRRZESL - s AT@+ (EE) 1/1
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman?t 4 1”7
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund 171 BREEAL 11
Mr. Wong Ka Kit %%%%E
(resigned on 28 August 2020) 171 (RZZ=_ZFNA=+/\BEFT) 11
INTERNAL CONTROL M EREE I

The Board reviews the Group's internal control system from time to time
and will take any necessary and appropriate action to maintain an adequate
internal control system to safeguard Shareholders’ interests. An internal
audit function which is internally resourced and forms part of the Group's
permanent establishment is in charge for overall review on the effectiveness
of the internal control system and will be discussed annually with the Audit
Committee.

During the financial year under review, the internal audit function had
arranged to conduct reviews over the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system to provide reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations in achieving the established corporate objectives,
safeguarding Group’s assets, providing reliable financial reporting, and
complying with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff for the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget. Both the Audit
Committee and the Board were satisfied that the internal control system of
the Group has been functioned effectively during the year and no material
internal control aspects of any significant problems were noted.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent auditor during
the year, is set out as follows:

T e

FR BN EAAR BB AR EE 2 Bl & 55
T

Services rendered FriR AR % Fee paid/payable
Bt ENER
HK$'000
FAT
Audit of financial statements EIERE 1,900

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

With the assistance of the Finance Department which is under the supervision
of the Chief Financial Officer, the Directors ensure the preparation and
publication of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in a timely
manner in accordance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and
accounting standards. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

A statement by the Company’s auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 76 to 82 of this report.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company established a dedicated investor relations section in order
to provide timely information to the investors as well as Shareholders and
institutional investors. The Company also conducts a meeting with institutional
investors and analysts from time to time and to maintain updated information
opened to the public regarding recent development of the Company. Relevant
information of investor relations is available on the Company’s website
(http://www.avconcept.com).

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company recognises the rights of Shareholders and their opinions are
valuable to the Company. The Shareholders are encouraged to participate
in general meetings or to appoint proxies or corporate representatives to
attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings. The Shareholders are encouraged to raise their enquiries
on the operations, corporate governance, corporate strategy and further
development of the Company during the meeting by way of shareholders’
rights. The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored
and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made
to ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served. The Board members, in
particular, either the chairmen or deputy chairmen of Board Committees or
their delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditor will
attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.
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Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting
In accordance with Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more Shareholders deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company.

Putting forward proposals by Shareholders at general
meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for Shareholders to propose
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to propose
relevant resolutions may request the Company to convene a general meeting
in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting forward enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may contact the Board for enquiries in respect of the Company’s
information, to the extent such information can be made available to the
public. Shareholders may at any time make enquiry in respect of the Company
in writing at our head office in Hong Kong by post or facsimile via the
numbers and email address provided on the Company’s website.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established Shareholders Communication Policy in providing
a communication platform to the Shareholders of the Company with
information about the Company and enabling them to engage actively with
the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.
Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders shall be
ensured at all times. Any question regarding this policy shall be directed to the
company secretary of the Company or the Board of Directors of the Company.
Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meeting shall be in place
to encourage Shareholders’ participation and all corporate communication
will be provided to Shareholders in plain language and in both English
and Chinese version to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding, including
but not limited to interim reports, annual reports, results announcements,
notice of general meeting, circulars, and associated explanatory documents,
other announcements and monthly return on movements in the
Company'’s securities for each month and next day disclosure returns in
relation to the Company, which are available on the Company’s website
(http://www.avconcept.com).
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THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
POLICIES

The Group believes that it is important to achieve sustainable development
and create long-term values to stakeholders for establishing a brand that
can endure thousands of years of weathering. By developing comprehensive
sustainability strategies, the Group can integrate the concept of sustainability
into the daily operation and reduce the negative impacts brought to the
environment and society. Together with all the employees’ effort, we are
confident to march on the road to sustainability.

REPORTING SCOPE AND FRAMEWORK

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”) covers the
Group's policies and performance on environmental, social and governance
("ESG") aspects of its semiconductor distribution, consumer product and
product sourcing business, venture capital and internet social media business,
unless otherwise stated, in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“HKSAR") for the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.The ESG
key performance indicator (“KPI") data is gathered and included under the
Group's business activities driven by Hong Kong office and warehouse. The
Group will extend the scope of disclosures when applicable. The KPIs are
shown in this Report as well as supplemented by explanatory notes to establish
benchmarks.

The Report has been prepared in accordance with all applicable provisions set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

For the Group's corporate governance practices, please refer to the section
“Corporate Governance Report” on the pages 35 to 45 of this annual report.

THE ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) plays an important role in handling ESG
issues and determining sustainable development policies for the Group’s long-
term growth. It provides the direction of the establishment of sustainable
strategies and allocates resources to support the implementation of policies
and targets, in order to ensure the effectiveness of the risk and internal control
mechanisms with the assistance of the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”). The
Taskforce is composed by core members from different departments with
the Board stewardship. It focuses on overviewing, monitoring, managing
and following up on the ESG issues in the daily operation to enhance the
management efficiency.

Working Scope of the Taskforce:
- Identify the ESG risks;
- Evaluate the effectiveness of the internal control mechanisms;

- Examine and evaluate the Group’s performances in different aspects;
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RIB - B RERRS

- Report to the Board regularly; and

- Collect relevant information and data for the preparation of the ESG
Report.

The Taskforce will regularly check and make sure the Group to fulfill the ESG
requirements. After reviewing and checking, if they found something unusual
on the ESG issues, they will consolidate the relevant information and data, and
the leader of the Taskforce will meet with the related company departments
to get the feedbacks first. Then the leader will report to the Board for the
boarding consideration of any ESG risk incurred and the decision making for
the ESG risk management.

If you have any valuable comment in respect of the Report or the Group's
performances in sustainable development and would like to share with us,
please do not hesitate to contact us by emailing to ir.dept@avconcept.com.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group strongly believes that the effective communications with both
internal and external stakeholders’ comments can help to build a strong
foundation for long-term development. By understanding the stakeholders’
expectations on the Group’s performance, the Board can determine the most
suitable strategies and policies to enhance the Group's business development
and management efficiency.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group had actively communicated
with the stakeholders, such as investors, customers, employees, suppliers,
business partners, government and other regulatory authorities, and the
community, through different channels as shown below to understand more
on their concerns and expectations.
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Stakeholders Group Engagement Channels Possible Concerned Issues

50 &4 Bl BHRE AJRERRE YR RE

Investors Financial reports, annual general meetings, Business strategies and financial performance,
corporate website, direct communication corporate governance, business sustainability

development

REE BERE - RRBEERE FHERBEANT BRI - BEER
NEELL - BEEEA EBAREER

Customers Direct communication and emails, complaint Goods and services quality, timely service,
hotlines customers security, privacy protection

=P HEBAMREL - AR EmMAREE = - ARTS R -
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Stakeholders Group Engagement Channels Possible Concerned Issues
B EA R SHRE A RERRE YRR
Employees Appraisals, trainings, internal memorandum Rights and benefits, employee compensation,

training and development, work hours,
occupational health and safety

B8 Pz E S AEER R EFFERN - BTHM - 5Bk
R - TIENH - BEERRE
2
€
Suppliers & business partners Business meetings Fulfillment of promises, payment schedule
HIER RN E TR ESdg— RIEAGE - IRERER
Government & other Statutory filings and notification, regulatory or Compliance of the law and regulations,
regulatory authorities voluntary disclosures transparency of inside information
BT E A B B R SEEFEABA - BE B EkE BRENOER - AEMERHBERE
Community Community activities, donations Business ethics, fair employment opportunities,
environmental protection
Zani HEREE - B8 FIEERE - DTHERS  RIF
R
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EESRME

Based on the relevant stakeholders’ feedbacks and concerns, the Group’s AEBEEREBEEBFNENRERESE - AEENHE
business nature, and the operation performances, the Group has determined ~ 45E @ AR EEXRE - WIKRE - 1 FREEWRE
the material issues among different ESG aspects as stated in the ESG SN TERE HFREQABE - #E 7 FI&RSE
Reporting Guide, which are shown in the table below under different  EE#REHNEZHRE

categories:
The ESG Reporting Guide Material ESG Aspects of the Group
BiE - HERERBREES AEERE  HEREAEEEHE

A. Environmental

BRI
A1.Emissions e Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions
P AEREB(DRERED K
e \Waste Management
REYE IR
A2.Use of Resources e Energy Management
EIRER BERERE
e \Water Management
FAKER
A3.The Environment and Natural Resources e Air Quality
RERERER TRES
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The ESG Reporting Guide
B e B RERBEES

Material ESG Aspects of the Group
FEERE HEREAETEEHE

B. Social
HE
B1. Employment
1%

B2. Health and Safety
ERELT R

B3. Development and Training
BRELIE

B4. Labour Standards
2T g

N

B5. Supply Chain Management
HiEsEER

B6. Product Responsibility
EmEE

B7. Anti-corruption
&S

B8. Community Investment
HEKE
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e Recruitment and Promotion
B RE
e Compensation and Dismissal
N K R
e Benefits and Welfares
B SR
e Working Hours and Rest Periods
TER SR RER
e Diversity, Equal Opportunities and Anti-discrimination
Zotb - FERETRER

e Safety Measures
R

e Employee Health Management
BTREER

e Development and Training
R S

e Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

PrlbET Mogss T

e Supply Chain Management
HEHER

e Customer Privacy Protection
EPREALRE

e Quality Management
BEEE

e Intellectual Property (the “IP"”) Rights
FEENE ([FERE])

e Protection of Privacy

FEALIRAE

e Internal Control

AR

e Community Participation
HERemR
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group believes that the stability of its business operation is highly
dependent on the stability of the external environment. Therefore, it
is committed to balancing the need of corporate development and
the impacts on the environment for its long-term development. To
ensure the environmental impacts are fully considered and handled
during business operations, relevant factors are integrated with the
management decision-making processes.

A1.

Emissions

The business model of the Group does not contain any heavily
polluting nor environment-dependent procedures, which
contains mainly the operation of office and warehouses. To
further demonstrate the Group's efforts to mitigate the potential
environmental impacts, it has adopted different measures to
raise the employees’ awareness and provide advices to them as
practical guidance.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance of emissions-related laws
and regulations, including but not limited to the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste
Disposal Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance, that would have a
significant impact on the Group.

Air Pollutants

The Group dedicates to protecting the environment from the
impacts of business operation, including the air quality. According
to the business nature of the Group, the key air pollutants are
sulphur oxides, nitrogen oxides and particulate matters from the
use of vehicles. To lower the total emissions and emissions per
capita, employees are encouraged to use public transportation.
Also, the Group prioritises the purchase and use of vehicles with
higher emission standards to lower the air pollutants emissions.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the emissions of sulphur
oxides, nitrogen oxides and particulate matters are 0.14kg, 4.53kg
and 0.33kg respectively. Compared with that of the year ended
31 March 2020, the air pollutants slightly decrease under the
impact of the pandemic.

RIR - B RERRE
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RIS REY

== #& =

Year ended Year ended
Types of air pollutants' Unit 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
8z HE
—E-—F —ETF
=A=t-8 =ZA=t—H
EREEYEE 3 By HEE IFFE
Sulphur oxides kg 0.14 0.14
wmaty F5e
Nitrogen oxides kg 4.53 4.98
gE=nlat7) Fie
Particulate matters kg 0.33 0.37
FERY) F5
GHG Emissions BERBBHEN
Although the Group does not pose great challenges to the BEAEEZ IRV EESH  BHEEE
surrounding environment with the focus on semiconductor mREMREER - Bl R E BT AR
distribution, consumer product and product sourcing business, BB - Bt REYREERRERE R
venture capital and internet social media business, it is committed B AREE T AG @iﬁiﬂﬁﬂ HE8RhF
to protecting the environment by minimising the impacts and MEIRRAESEE - DAMERERR -

stepping forward to eco-friendly business operation. The Group
establishes measures to strengthen and educate employees
on eco-friendly practices in daily operation. Also, it has strictly
complied with the relevant laws and regulations to avoid
operational risks.

The measures relate to the GHG emissions are as below:

- Replace old and highly polluting vehicles with more
environmentally friendly models;

- Encourage the use of online meeting, such as video
conference and teleconference, to reduce the frequency of
business travel;

- Encourage the use of public transportation; and

- Increase the recycling rate through promotion and
education.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the total GHG emissions is
94.99 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, which the intensity is
of 0.58 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/employee. Compared
with the year ended 31 March 2020, the total GHG emissions
decreases by about 17%. Due to the outbreak of the pandemic,
it leads to the significant decrease in Scope 3 emissions which
includes the emission from business travel.

Notes:

52

It includes emissions from the use of vehicles.

Travel distance was estimated in accordance with the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department (“"EMSD") — Energy End-use Data and Consumption Indicators.

Emission factor was calculated in accordance with the Stock Exchange — How to
prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs.
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Year ended Year ended
GHG emissions* Unit 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
BZE HE
—E-—=F —ECF
=A=+—H —A=+—H
BEREHHRE B LFEE IEEE
Scope 1 direct GHG emissions® tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 26.21 25.30
HE—EFAEREHMES ME_ S LIS S
Scope 2 indirect GHG emissions® tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 59.61 53.43
E _HEAEREBEMES ME_ S LIS S
Scope 3 other indirect GHG emissions’ tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 9.17 35.69
E = HEmEEREREHENRE ME_SfbikE =
Total GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 94.99 114.42
mEREBELINE M S IR E 2
GHG emissions intensity® tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/ 0.58 0.64
RERBHENETES employee
WS iE e B8
Wastewater &K
Because of the business nature, the Group does not involve FEREENEBTYE - NEBKREER
wastewater production despite the water consumed for domestic KON - AR B EAEREK o MR R EF
use. For the relevant measures, please refer to the “Water” 15 B2HIKERIEE -
section.
Wastes BEY
The Group recognises that the generation of non-hazardous AEEEHINABLEPEENLEE &
wastes, such as plastic and office paper, in the daily operation REMEERY)  SURBENTEE R
could affect the environment. To lower the impacts brought, the RIERAERIREZE  ASEDHIER
Group has implemented measures for reducing waste generation i AMEREEEYES  ULTEER
and enhancing the handling methods. A -
Notes: Mz
4. It was calculated in accordance with the Stock Exchange — How to prepare an ESG 4. UL T2 E B AR FERSR - g REARSE Kk
Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs. = RIERARBRUEIRIE RIS ETE ©
5. Scope 1 includes direct emissions of company owned vehicles. 5. HE—REAREEAOERHOIEIM -

6. Scope 2 includes indirect emissions of purchased electricity from third parties. 6. HE—BERE=FHINEE BT

7. Scope 3 includes indirect emissions of paper disposal at landfill, freshwater processing 7. HE=OHERENEROMAR  AOKEE REKEER
and wastewater treatment. During the year ended 31 March 2021, there is no business GOEEER BE_T-_—F=A=1T—HLEFE " K
travel due to the outbreak of the pandemic. FERZEERE ARG EAEBIRT

8. As at 31 March 2021, the total number of employees of the Group is 164 (as at 31 8. HE-T - F=A=+—HB FAEEXFI16488T
March 2020: 178). (BEZZ-ZF=A=+—8 :178%) °
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To lower the amount of waste disposal, separation method has
been adopted which separates the recyclable materials from other
domestic waste. At the same time, employees are encouraged to
bring their lunchboxes or use reusable food containers for take-
away. If the use of reusable food containers is rejected by the
restaurant, it is suggested to use reusable tableware to lower the
consumption of single-use products. To facilitate the systematic
recycling procedure, an administrative employee is appointed on the
management and transportation of the non-recyclable and recyclable
waste. On the other hand, the Group dedicates to reducing the
paper consumption, which is another major non-hazardous waste
generated in the operation. Corresponding measures have been
implemented to reduce the production of paper waste as well as
other non-hazardous waste in the operation.

Waste reduction measures are established as below to lower the
environmental impacts of the daily operation:

- Put up informative signage and notice on waste reduction
and recycling in prominent locations;

- Purchase cartridges, stationery and paper based on the
necessity, and prioritise the purchase of reusable and
refillable products;

- Encourage electronic communication and documents, such
as internal administrative notice;

- Replace disposable tableware with reusable products;

- Provide recycling bins, and separate the unrecyclable and
recyclable waste for handling; and

- Prioritise the purchase of eco-friendly or certificated
products, such as paper product with Forest Stewardship
Council (“FSC") certification.

The Group does not generate any hazardous wastes due
to the business nature. For proper handling of hazardous
waste, if generated, the Group has established guideline for
employees and reducing the environmental impacts of the
business operation. A certified chemical waste collector would
be appointed to handle the hazardous wastes generated, in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the key non-hazardous
waste is the paper consumption for the office use and
publishment. As the amount of domestic waste is not significant
to the Group’'s operation, relevant data is not disclosed. The
total non-hazardous waste consumption is 2.02 tonnes with the
intensity of 0.012 tonnes/employee. Compared with the year
ended 31 March 2020, the total non-hazardous waste increases
by 117%, with the enhancement of data collection method,
which increases the office paper type as well as the relevant data.
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Year ended Year ended

Types of non-hazardous waste Unit 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

BZE =

— —TOFF

=A=+—H =—A=+—H

BEEEYER B IHFE IFFE

Office paper consumption tonnes 1.72 0.34
MABHRIBERE 15

Printing publication consumption® tonnes 0.30 0.59
Efll H Wi g

Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 2.02 0.93
BEEEDES WA

Non-hazardous waste intensity'® tonnes/employee 0.012 0.005

BEEEDEE W, g8
A2. Use of Resources A2. EREH

The Group strives to maximise the utilisation of resource with
the purpose of efficient and eco-friendly business operation.
With the scarce natural resource, the Group believes that it is a
responsibility of a corporate citizen to conservate and sustain for
the resources needed by next generations. Relevant measures
and procedures are implemented for managing, monitoring and
improving the performance.

Energy

The Group recognises the dependence on energy of the business
operation. With the increasing concerns of the environmental
impacts of energy consumption, the Group is committed
to monitoring the use of resource with the establishment
of measures and procedures. Measures are applicable to all
employees for maximising the outcomes.

The Group has implemented measures to improve the energy
efficiency as below:

- Divide the office area into different light zones with
partially installment of light-emitting diodes;

- Maximise the use of natural light;
- Turn off electronic devices when not in use;

- Install energy efficient lightings;

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group published 1,260 copies of reports
(during the year ended 31 March 2020: 2,530).

As at 31 March 2021, the total number of employees of the Group is 164 (as at 31
March 2020: 178).

AEBABRENRRNEELER

5 BAOEEFNERERREAL - $

SEREERRNERT - ¢%§Eﬁﬁ

CEAREME  RERFET —HKAFEN
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BEIR
$%ﬁﬁ$ﬁ1\¥7}”&%§¥ﬁ“bﬁﬁ’ﬂmﬁ’l‘$ :
iIEHW/mXW%%%%Wﬁf
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9. BE-T-Z—F=A=1+—HBLFE AEEHXIDH
1,260 G (BE-T-SF=-A=+—HIEFE
2,5301%) °

10, BEZZ-—F=A=+—8 AEEHFI648ET
(HE-ZT-_TF=-A=+—H8:178%) °
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- Use the air-conditioning system based on necessity, and
ensure the temperature is not under 25°C; and

- Put up energy saving notice in prominent locations.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the total energy
consumption is 174,687kWh with the intensity of 1,065.16kWh/
employee. Compared with the year ended 31 March 2020, the
total energy consumption decreases by 12.24%. Due to the
outbreak of pandemic, employees are encouraged to work from
home which leads to a slight decrease in the energy consumption.

-  REEEREHEERG
MER25°C ¢

W HERIRE

- RBREERERMEEER

HEZZ-—F=A=+—HLFE"
RAESHEE B174,687 TRE - MAR F
£1,065.16 T BB (BE - AEZBNIE
% REEHEE TERIIE  F0RME
HERM TR YBRHEE-_T-_TF=A
=+—HIEFETRE12.24% °

Year ended Year ended
Energy consumption Unit 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
BZE Eﬁi
—E-—-F —ZF-F
=A=+—H —A=+—H
BEROH AR B ILEE IFFE
Petrol kWh 90,736 92,197
YUR FEE
Purchased electricity kWh 83,951 106,859
SMNEE S TR
Total energy consumption kWh 174,687 199,056
BEIRAEHFESE TER
Energy consumption intensity' kWh/employee 1,065.16 1,118.29
R ERERE" TRE &S
Water KEIR
The water resource is consumed for the basic cleaning and KERFERREIMIIBSERNEZR
sanitation needs of employees and workplace. Monitoring MEEF K MAEEETTEEERE -

measures are established to educate and encourage the habits of
water conservation of employees. Besides, the Group does not
have any issue in sourcing water.

The Group has strengthened measures in education, promotion
and controlling as below:

Put up water saving notice in prominent locations;

- Install water saving devices, such as water saving tap;

- Conduct repair and maintenance of water tap, water
pipelines and water storage regularly to avoid leakage or

situations leading to waste of resource; and

- Advocate the virtue of water conservation and concept of
“Water Preservation”.

VAR AN B TEH A/KEE 18 - Bt
RIEF - AN SR B3 KB E A SKEUKIR A E

o

AEBDINEEEE  HENEBERN
T

- PRREERERAEIKER

- TEHRE M MEIEKEETE - BHIKE R
MEK - AR tRERREE
REER - &

- EEIHORKINERNER

Note: ffsE -
11.  As at 31 March 2021, the total number of employees of the Group is 164 (as at 31 1. HEZZEZ—F=-A=+—8 AEEH£E16488T
March 2020: 178). (BEZZ-_ZF=F=+—H:178%) °
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the total water
consumption is 257.70 cubic metres with the intensity of 1.57
cubic metres/employee. It is the first time for the Group to
disclose the water usage with the enhancement of data collection
method. It is committed to continuously improving the data
collection for full-fledged disclosure.

RIE - S REY

== #I)jl [

#H=E —F=ZA=Z+—HLFE -
%%7J<E7%257 7057 77K /\MJ*;%1.57
SR EE - BREMERKER
REBMABRNEERKE @ WEHESHE
TEHSUERWSE - LMERTENEE -

Year ended

Water Consumption Unit 31 March 2021

BE-T-—F

=HA=+-—H

FkE By LEFE

Total water consumption cubic metres 257.70

BFEKE K

Water consumption intensity'? cubic metres/employee 1.57

FKBEE"? MK RBE

Packaging Material
Because of the business nature, the consumption of packaging
material is irrelevant to the Group as the process of packaging
has been outsourced for better efficiency. As such, no relevant
data can be disclosed.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Although the business operation of the Group does not apply
significant impacts on the environment and natural resources,
it is committed to protecting the environment for sustainable
development of the business operation and the society. The
Group strives to identify the relevant aspect which is affected by
the business, and formulate monitoring and managing measures.

Air Quality

The Group recognises the business operation affects both indoor
and outdoor air quality. For example, the company owned
vehicles are relevant with the emissions of air pollutants and
GHG, which worsen the air quality. Besides, indoor air quality,
with high dependence in air ventilation, will be worsen with poor
air conditioning system or airflow.

To improve the situation, the Group has established measures to
lower the impacts. For example, the Group monitors the indoor
air quality regularly via air purifying equipment. Also, regular
cleaning of air conditioning system is conducted for maintaining
good ventilation. Employees are also encouraged to use public
transportation to reduce the emissions. It is committed to
reducing the negative impacts and improving the environment
for living.

As at 31 March 2021, the total number of employees of the Group is 164 (as at 31
March 2020: 178).
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Employment

Employees are the key factors to the business development.
Therefore, the Group treats the employees with respect and
fairness and encourages a culture of equal opportunity. The
Employee Handbook has been established to fulfill its objective
of people-oriented management and help employees to reach
their full potential. The Employee Handbook is a formally written
document that summarises all the human resources policies
and procedures currently in effect within the Group, as well
as ensuring transparency of information regarding employee
obligations and rights. The Group reviews and updates the
relevant company policies regularly in accordance with the latest
laws and regulations.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with employment-related laws
and regulations, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance, that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Recruitment and Promotion

The Group's robust and transparent recruitment process is based
on a merit selection against the job criteria to recruit individuals
depended on their past performance, personal attributes, job
experiences and career aspiration, which can help to guarantee
the employees and applicants are treated and evaluated fairly.
To recruit high-caliber applicants, the Group also offers attractive
salary and benefits, which are set by referencing to market
benchmarks. A detailed recruitment review process would
be performed by the Human Resources and Administration
Department to ensure that the data submitted by the candidates
are accurate.

The promotion of employees would be based on the Employee
Performance Appraisal which concludes the efforts, past
working performances, contributions, and skills. Department
Head will complete the Manpower Movement Form and send
to the Human Resources and Administration Department
for the promotion after approval of Chief Operating Officer
and Chief Executive Officer. Unreasonable recruitment and
promotion of the low performance graded employees would be
prohibited, with the governance from the Human Resource and
Administration Department which would make every effort to be
fair and transparent.
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Compensation and Dismissal

The Group examines its compensation packages on a regular
basis to ensure that employees are paid competitively, such as a
five-day work arrangement and 13 months payment. Dismissal
may be made without notice in lieu at the event of employees
with any criminal offense, acts of fraud or dishonesty, or
behaviour detrimental to the Group’s reputation. Also, employees
with no improvement despite the efforts or given chances for
improvement may be terminated with the notice requirement.
All practices of termination would be based on legitimate, legal
grounds and internal policies, such as the Employee Handbook
and the Employment Ordinance. The Group strictly prohibits any
kind of unfair or unreasonable dismissals.

Benefits and Welfares

Benefits are offered to the employees as a reward of the effort
paid by them, including Medical Insurance Scheme, Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF"”) Scheme, granted leave and holidays.
The Group also offers different types of benefits including mobile
service subsidy and insurance for business travels.

To ensure that employees clearly understand what their benefits
are, different workshops and briefing sessions are provided to
acknowledge the benefits provided, such as the Medical Insurance
and MPF briefing, online open seminars on occupational health
for office workers. Besides, the Group believes that benefits
which can enrich the employees’ life experiences are also
important to increase their loyalty. Different schemes are thus
prepared to provide the employees with more benefits that go
beyond monetary incentives. Activities for leisure, such as Annual
Dinner, Christmas and birthday parties, have been held to establish
a happy working atmosphere and enhance the team spirit.
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Working Hours and Rest Periods

It is important for the employees to maintain a balance between
working and family life to maintain a healthy mental status.
To encourage the concept of work-life balance, the Group has
established practices and policies to set the working hours and
rest periods in accordance with local employment laws, which
are clearly listed in the Employee Handbook to ensure that
employees are well rested. A five-day work week arrangement
and compensation leave scheme for overtime work have also
been established to protect the employees’ rights. All overtime
working is on voluntary basis only with compensation provided
according to the scheme.

Various types of paid leaves, such as examination, paternity,
maternity, marriage, and bereavement, are provided by the
Group to cope with the employees’ needs. In addition to annual
leave and sick leave, female employees and male employees are
entitled to 14 weeks and 5 days of maternity leave and paternity
leave respectively.

Diversity, Equal Opportunities and Anti-discrimination

The Group strongly believes that an individual’s ability and
working performances should be the most significant factors
during recruitment or promotion. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group values a diverse and skilled workforce
and is dedicated to cultivating and sustaining an inclusive and
collaborative workplace culture in which all can thrive.

The Group implemented the zero tolerance principle and is
committed to providing a friendly, fair and transparent working
environment. An employee’s age, gender, physical or mental
health status, marital status, family status, race, skin colour,
nationality, religion, political affiliation and sexual orientation and
other factors should never be the reasons affecting.

In compliance with applicable government legislation, ordinances,
and regulations, the Group has zero tolerance for workplace
discrimination, harassment, or victimization for any reason.
Employees are also encouraged to report any discrimination
incidents to the Human Resources and Administration
Department of the Group. The Group strives to ensure that
complaints, grievances and concerns, including whistle-blowing,
are handled with promptly and confidentially.
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Employee Distribution BINM

The Group's employees are diverse in terms of gender and age, AEBETHRIRFRZ T - THHRAIF
bringing in innovative ideas and a range of competencies. As at BEoREABTENEN - BE_S-—F
31 March 2021, the Group employed a total of 164 employees, ZA=1+—0 AEBEHBEETI164A
88 of them are males, accounting for 54% of the workforce, HA B R88A  EEITHES4% -
resulting in a more equal gender ratio. The distribution in terms MELZETHIEE - TERTE AN
of gender and age are illustrated in the charts below: RIFIEE DM

Total Workforce by Gender Group
RMRIERE D 2 B TS
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Health and Safety

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, productive and
congenial work environment since the Group believes that
employees are important assets of an enterprise and considers
human resources as its corporate wealth. To ensure the personal
safety of the employees as well as the safety of the workplace,
the Group works hard to provide a safe, healthy and comfortable
working environment.

The Group follows the occupational health and safety guidelines
recommended by Labour Department and Occupational
Safety and Health Council. Employees who suffer from injury
arising out of and in the course of employment are entitled to
compensation in accordance with the local laws and regulations,
such as Employee Compensation Ordinance. In response to the
COVID-19 pandemic situation, the Group has also held online
seminars for the employees to maintain healthy lifestyles, such as
providing information about healthy eating and updating the list
of buildings with confirmed or probable cases of COVID-19.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with health and safety-
related laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and Employee
Compensation Ordinance that would have a significant impact on
the Group.

Safety Measures

An employee in the Human Resource and Administration
Department is appointed to identify actual and potential hazards
and risks towards safe and hygienic work environment to ensure
that the fulfillment of relevant laws. The Group has strictly
implemented no smoking policy and has also arranged rescue,
fire and evacuation drills to raise safety awareness. Employees are
expected to follow all the policies and procedures, and cooperate
in all safety trainings.

Safety and health measures are set out in the operating
manuals, such as the Employee Handbook, which is applicable
to all employees to reduce the risks of accidents and raise their
awareness. Besides, employees have to avoid adversely affecting
their health and safety to others, such as employee is required to
apply for sick leave if there are symptoms of influenza or other
contagious disease.

The Group will also organise healthy work bulletin, build up
safety warning signs, and set up safety banners and slogans,
aiming to achieve an accident-free workplace environment.
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Employee Health Management

The Group provides its employees with extensive health care
coverage. In addition, activities are organised and carried out to
encourage a healthy and work-life balance lifestyle. Employees
are also provided with relevant information to enhance
knowledge of occupational health and safety risks. Despite the
mental health management, the Group emphasises the physical
health of employees. Fruits, lunchboxes, healthy soups, etc.
are provided to employees regularly, ensuring that they receive
adequate nutrition.

In response to the pandemic, the Group is highly conscious of
the potential health and safety impacts brought to its employees.
The Group implements prevention measures, including taking
temperature screening and other precautions measures before
entering workplace and ensuring disinfection products are
available.

To ensure the hygiene and cleanliness of the working
environment, the Group increases the frequency of cleaning
services for its offices. Personal hygiene posters are displayed
throughout the office to remind the employees of the importance
of maintaining good hygiene in order to avoid transmission.

Development and Training

The Group advocates the importance of providing perspective
working environment to employees. Continued improvement of
personal skills and abilities enhances the sustainable development
of employees and the corporate. The Group has formulated
measures and policies on managing the relevant practices in the
daily operation. All employees are entitled to the relevant policies
and regulations to protect their rights.

Development and Training

The Group values its employees that help maintaining the core
values and culture. Trainings are provided to new employees to
ensure that a thorough knowledge of the Group’s goals and
aspirations, as well as to enhance their performances within the
Group, in the first day on the organisation structure, production
procedures, policies and other relevant information.
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Despite the internal training provided to employees, financial
supports for external trainings are available for application. A
scheme has been established for encouraging employees to
attend professional examinations or other relevant courses related
to their work to improve working performance, professional
knowledge and technical skills. Full time employees who have
completed three full years of service are eligible to apply for
the sponsorship. Different levels of sponsorship are delivered
according to their needs and types of programme. Leave
arrangement would be associated with the scheme.

Development and Training Policies

The Group has established training policies that provide diverse
training and development opportunities to employees which aims
to enhance their work-related abilities and improve operational
efficiency. Relevant policies and procedures are listed in the
Employee Handbook to ensure all employees understands the
related arrangement.

Training courses and development programmes are offered on
a regular basis by the Group. New employees are provided with
comprehensive trainings which cover various topics for enhancing
their knowledge. For the career development of existing
employees, profession-oriented trainings are tailored to the
corporate’s needs. The programmes ensure the employees are
well equipped and acknowledged with professional knowledge.
Besides, the Group has established the Staff Development
Sponsorship Policy and Procedures which supports the external
training needs of employees. Interested employees can submit
the sponsorship application form for approval. Department Head,
Human Resource and Administration Department and Chief
Executive Officer are responsible for the approval in accordance
with the policy. Relevant information of the policy is listed in the
Employee Handbook for acknowledge of employees.

Labour Standards

The Group recognises the importance of creating fair workplace
through strictly complied with the labour related laws and
regulations. Any forms of sexual harassment, harassment and
abuse in the workplace should not be tolerated. The Group also
prohibits child and forced labour with the Human Resources
and Administration Department strictly monitors with any issue
related to labour standards.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with child and forced labour-
related laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Employment Ordinance that would have a significant impact on
the Group.
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Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

In accordance with the laws and regulations, all forms of child
and forced labour are strictly prohibited during the recruitment
process. The Group has formulated relevant policies and measures
on managing the recruitment procedures. All departments and
employees are applicable to both local ordinances and internal
regulations.

During the recruitment procedures, the Human Resources and
Administration Department is responsible for checking their
identification documents to verify their eligibility of work and
ensure the validity of their identity documents. This ensures the
elimination of child labour. Besides, forced labour is prohibited
that all overtime working is on voluntary basis. Compensation
leave is given according to employees’ record of overtime
working.

Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to sustaining and managing a reliable
supply chain as a socially responsible enterprise. The Group's
sustainability strategies provides basis for the supply chain
management in establishing a mutual trust and understanding
with its business partners. All suppliers are thoroughly vetted
and are monitored and assessed on a regular basis. All suppliers
should comply with local environmental laws, ordinances and
regulations, to minimise the environmental impacts.

The Group recognises that there are potential supply chain risks
associated with key suppliers. A supply chain risk management
team has been established on visiting and conducting risk
assessments with suppliers and contractors on a regular basis. It
avoids the supply chain disruption by formal risk detection and
mitigation. The assessment also evaluates the environmental and
social contribution of the suppliers. Supplier who makes greatest
contribution to the environment and society would be selected.
Quotation from the suppliers is needed for selection and to
ensure the products purchased are free from risk and comply with
the local safety and environmental standards. The Group would
also evaluate the quality of the suppliers based on a variety of
criteria, including product quality, service quality, former records,
etc. It is carried out on strict and continuous basis. At the same
time, the Group visits and engages with suppliers regularly for the
latest business situation of the suppliers to maintain the quality.
Lists of suppliers and backup suppliers are made to sustain
the supply chain. The Group keeps contact with suppliers and
purchase from backup suppliers if there are incidents occurred.
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Fair and Open Procurement

The Group encourages fair and open competition for long-
term relationships with mutual trust. All parties involved in the
procurement process participate honestly and in good faith. To
ensure the fairness, employees and any parties who are in close
relationship with suppliers would be excluded in the procurement
process.

Product Responsibility

Customers’ satisfaction is the cornerstone of the Group’s long-
term success. Procurement from suppliers is carried out in
accordance with the highest ethical standards to ensure the
product is checked before distribution. Supplier Code of Conduct
helps maintaining the high quality at all times to gain the
confidences of customers, suppliers and the public.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with any laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
that have a significant impact on the Group, concerning
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress that would have a
significant impact to the Group.

Customer Privacy Protection

The Group protects and respects the value of customers’
information assets, and is abided by the related laws and
regulations in terms of consumer data privacy. It guarantees that
customers’ data are well protected and secured. Information
collected would only be used for the purposed authorised in
the first place to ensure the use of information is consistent
with those identified in the contract. The Group prohibits the
provision of consumer information to third parties without
authorisation from the customers. All collected personal data is
treated confidentially and kept securely, accessible by designated
personnel only.

All computers together with backup services are equipped
with security features which require password access to
information stored on the hard disk or server. The Information
Technology Department has also set obstruction between office
and commercial net to prevent data exports, copying, and
unauthorised use. Through internal trainings and confidential
agreements, the Group emphasises confidentiality obligations
and the legal consequences of any breaches of obligations.
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Quality Management

The Group places a high emphasis on product quality, and
regularly examines its quality-related system and policy, in
order to sustain the performance-oriented culture on pursuing
continuous improvement on quality instead of adopting a short-
term and project-based approach.

To ensure the services are complied with required standards,
quality plan is prepared for each project which includes the
requirements for quality control, inspection and testing, and
other relevant issues in the production. The quality plan varies
according to the project nature, communication with clients, and
other aspects.

IP Rights

Employees are prohibited from duplicating, installing, or using
software in violation of its copyright or license conditions as part
of the Group’s Information Security Policy to protect third-party
IP rights and to comply with relevant licensing conditions when
software is used. Employees who do not follow the policy will
be subject to disciplinary action. Also, the Group will notify the
manufacturers if any illegal or unauthorised use of their hardware
and/or software is discovered.

Protection of Privacy

The Group understands that protecting the privacy of its clients
and business partners is critical to its success. Therefore, clients
and business partners’ privacy always remain in the first priority
of the Group. Security measures have been established to provide
adequate protection and encryption for all data and information
upon operation. Meanwhile, the Group has established strict
policies for the collection and use of personal data.

Advertising and Labelling
Due to the Group’s business nature, the Group’s operation does
not involve in material advertising and labelling related issues.

Anti-corruption

Fair, ethical and efficient business and working environment are
the basic requirements for a sustainable corporate. The Group
strictly adheres to the laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption and bribery as set out by the government of Hong
Kong. Integrity, honesty and fairness are valued in business
practices, therefore formulating the Anti-corruption Policy as
stipulated in the Employee Handbook, to manage fraudulent
practices. At the same time, the Group promotes the importance
of ethical operation to involve everyone in the corporate on
sustaining the mainstay of the business.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
that would have a significant impact to the Group.

Internal Control

The Group has adopted the Code of Conduct that addresses
provision for conflicts of interest, privacy and confidentiality
of information, due diligence, bribery and anti-corruption.
Employees should not provide, solicit, or accept anything of
considerable value from or to their colleagues, clients, suppliers,
or other business partners of the Group unless consent is given,
as stated in the Employee Handbook. Besides, employees are
required to receive trainings on anti-corruption regularly to
ensure their understandings and implementation of relevant
internal and external laws and regulations. Employees who
breach anti-corruption policy and exploit their positions against
the Group's interests will face disciplinary action, which could
result in dismissal for serious misconduct.

Community Investment

Emboldening and supporting the community is one of the
Group’s commitments. Through social participation and
contribution, corporate culture and practices of corporate citizen
in the daily operation could be nurtured. The Group focuses
on the promotion of the stability of society and supporting
underprivileged on rehabilitation to improve the quality of life.
Inspiration of employees towards social welfare concerns is
also a focus. The Group embraces the human capital into the
social management strategies to sustain its corporate social
responsibility as a part of the strategic development.

Community Participation

The Group engaged in community activities, such as donations
and sponsorships, to enhance the community development.
The Group communicates with local charities regularly to gain
a better knowledge of societal issues and to establish links with
local communities.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has made
total donations of HK$258,000 to the charities in supporting
the education and development of the future workforce. The
Group expects the donations can be used as an incentive for
the outstanding students and to support the needy for further
learning.
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs  Content Page Index/Remarks
B —MREERERE

BARER

AR BEWRS|EE

Aspect A1. Emissions

B A1 BB

General Disclosure

—RER

KPI A1.1
RS IEIRAL

KPI A1.2
RRRAABUIEIRAL2
KPI A1.3
RRSHEIRIRAL3
KPI A1.4
FRERIEIRAL4
KPI A1.5
RARAABUIEIRALS
KPI A1.6

RAREIEIRAL6

Information on:
(@  the policies; and 51

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

BHERIOAERBYR - KRS - AFERE
EEEVHNEESR

(@) BEE R
(b) EBTHBITABERFENEEAR LA
BER o

The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 51-53

BRI RESE SRR PR AU

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, ~ 52-53
intensity.
REREHHER (WMER)BE -

Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, 54; The issue is irrelevant to the Group's
intensity. business.

FESAEEEYEE R (WERTE - B E LB -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where 54-55

appropriate, intensity.
PESrEEERYES N (ER) ZE -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results 51-52
achieved.

HR RS E R TR R

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes 54
are handled, and reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HMEEEEREEEEMN L  RIEEEENREBR
FR1GRER -
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs  Content Page Index/Remarks
BE - —RiEERER
BRER AE BRI fEE
Aspect A2. Use of Resources
[BE A2. ERER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, 55-56
water and other raw materials.
— AR ER BERERER(BIERR - KEREMERMED) BB -
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total 56
and intensity.
BASR A BURTA2.1 RERESHNERER KEEEREEERTE -
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 57
B EDIRITA2.2 BRKEREE -
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results 55-56
achieved.
BASREDUEITA2.3 AL IR A R E st B PTG AR ©
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 56

RASRIEIRIZEA2.4

KPI'A2.5

RSB IEIRA2.5

that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

U SKERE FR7KOR R B (AR RE - AR AR
EIRFTBAHR -

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
RMFTAREMBMEER (WER) BEEBMILE -

Aspect A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

EE A3. RIERARER

General Disclosure

—fRBER

KPIA3.1

BASR B RIEIRA31
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Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources.
BIREITAHRERARERENEATZENBUE °

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

M ER RS IRE RAAE RN ERNTE REHIER
BT ENTTE -

57; The issue is irrelevant to the Group's

business.
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs
BE - —RiEERER

RIB - B RERARS

Content Page Index/Remarks
AE BEWRS|EE

Aspect B1. Employment
FEE B1. Ef&

General Disclosure

—RRIEE

KPIB1.1

RSB IE1EB1 1

Information on:
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 58-60
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

BRAFHM L ARE  BERE - TERS - R - TEK
g il - RIEARA R EAD RS RAEFE :

@ BE: R

(b) ETHETABEAZENRBERLIRA

HEH -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group 61

and geographical region.

IR BIRERE - FRARMINREIDNIES B -
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Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPls Content

EBE - —-RigBERBRE

Page Index/Remarks

BEWIER AE BRI fEE
Aspect B2. Health and Safety
[ETH B2. REHEZ 2
General Disclosure Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 62
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
— AR ER FHERMHLZE2TIFRRERREBREEREBELEAETH
(@ BE: &
(b) EFHEITABERZEERERNAN
B RS o
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 62-63
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.
BB RUIEIRB2.3 PR R R R R 2 2 HE 0 - A SRR T M B 52
Tk e
Aspect B3. Development and Training
fEmE B3. BEKIEI
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for 63-64
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
— MR BHERAEE BT IIEBEN B RIREERBER - fuls
A&
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs  Content Page Index/Remarks
B —MREEREE
BARER RS BEWRS|EE

Aspect B4. Labour Standards
[ B4. 8 T %8|

General Disclosure Information on: 64-65
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—RRIEE BRI IEE T ekoahl s T
@@ HX: R

(b) B THETABEAZENRBERLIRM

BB RS o

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to 65
avoid child and forced labour.

BB RUETRBA GBI BN EAR R E T RIEHIZT -

Aspect B5. Supply Chain Management
fETE B5. fEHEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the 65
supply chain.

— MR EIRH RS IR Rt ERER o

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 65-66

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

BB RUEIRBS.2 M BRI REEENEN - MEMITERIEN M HER
B - ARBRENNRITRERAE -
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Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs  Content Page Index/Remarks
B —MREEREE
BEWIER RS BRI fEE

Aspect B6. Product Responsibility
[ET B6. EmEE

General Disclosure Information on:
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 66-67
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

—RRIEE ERMRHERNREHRFEELZS  BS - REELE
EHEARERITEN
@ BE: R

(o) B THETABEATENRBERIIRA

B RS o

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 67
intellectual property rights.

BB MUIEIRB6.3 Rl B A T RIS AR E A R IE D -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 66-67
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

BB AE RUEIRB6.5 HIUE B E B RHRE RFLBECR - ARABRENI T RER A
VA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R - HERERHRE

Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs  Content Page Index/Remarks
B —MREEREE
BARER RS BEWRS|EE

Aspect B7. Anti-corruption
BHE B7. k&S

General Disclosure Information on:
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 67-68
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— BT AR ILERRE - $1% - EEROAR B ¢
@ BE:R
(b) MPHETABEALEOAMERRAH]
BB -

Aspect B8. Community Investment
[EmE B8. HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the 68
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.

— MR B RSER T REEMELEREEMBREERSE
FEeERILENROBE -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 68
FARAEIE1EBS.1 FXERER -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 68
FAIRAE IR 1EBS.2 EEIHEMBHEEIR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e

B AZHEN RS

Ernst & Young BXKETHER B Tel 3% +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place, BB RE Fax {EE: +852 2868 4432
EY& i 979 King's Road, FEEIBEI7YR ey.com
7 Quarry Bay, Hong Kong K —RE271E

To the shareholders of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AV Concept
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 83 to 199, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
(REFSFHEAMA T2 FRLE])
=R

=z
=

BMEETHNRESIBEEFE 1998 MAV Concept
Holdings Limited ([E AR ) REKMB AR ([EEE])
R BmE  EPRER T —F=A=+—
BRGZAEUBRAREREZB LFENREEE
®OBREXAKBAR  GEEmZHREEEES
MEBRARGEVBHREMN T (BEETESBER

Z) -

BMRAR  SeBBRRERBEEESHMAS (&
BEFRAR]) BAENEEPHEREER ([FEHH
BEEDEEQAFHRR BESKER_T—_—F=
A=+ BEOEAMBIHRRARBEZR IFFERER
EUBRARGEAELRE - YO EREE QRS
BV BRI E Z DR E o

RREXE
BPCRBEEEGFMASRMNETEETERN(E
AETER ) ETER - RARZFEYN THRER
KR ECHET G F A A B N R BRI B L
BRI - HRBB G AGNEX D AIEE
FA(TPRL)) - RFPBYLR EEE - WEIRETA
BITEMBEREL - RAIEE - RAMESHENER
ERD BEEMARMNEREHER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audiitor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

BREITER

RRET FAARERMANERAE - BRMAFAAN
HRGAVBHRRER/EENFEIA » ILFFANTA
FF M BERREML B AT RS — RS - MK
MTERUEFFERTRHEER - RANETBES
Al BE IR T P & IR R DA L B BB A o

BAE BT AN RE ZR AT 47 & B IRK BAIE
BB F—EMNEE  BRABLEEENEE -
At - HAWET TERRRTEREERME SRS
BA TS HRER IR B A B AR Rt & [ B 1) YA 7 AR B0 A2
Fr e RAIEZF (B RERIE T I FEMAITH
BF)NERSBMYHEMGEVBRRNETERL
PRMHERE -

consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
EREEE

Estimation of fair values of investment properties

REMELFEEMSE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately HK$128
million, with the corresponding fair value changes recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The valuation process
is inherently subjective, and dependent on estimation of adjusted
unit price. The Group has engaged independent valuers to value
the investment properties at the end of the reporting period.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures about fair values of investment properties are included
in notes 3 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RIZ-—F=A=+—H BEXERQAFEEIENREDE
#)7%128,000,000/8 7T * MR A FEEZSNERE BmR A
R MERFASBEGIEN - WAKBMETERHESEMERS -
BEECEZEBUAEMNBEHRERSRREMEETRH
a -

ITEEFHE LA ARBRARENELFEENREEREN
ARE TSR3 RI3
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAWETT O EEERETER

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent valuers engaged by the Group. We also
obtained valuation reports prepared by the independent valuers,
understood the work of the independent valuers and evaluated
its work by assessing the relevance, completeness and accuracy
of the data used as inputs for the valuation, and assessing the
major assumptions and methodologies adopted in the valuation
by checking to the price of similar properties. We also involved
our internal valuation expert to assist us in evaluating the major
assumptions and methodologies of the valuation of certain
investment properties held by the Group.

BPEFE ESEEZENBUGHEMITHE  HENRE
RARREEE - RPITERSB I HEMBHOGHERS X
TEBMHERN T - WEBFEBIEHERAEBNBERS
1HRE - RN FHEBIUMAEMOTE  AREREUADE
MER - ARHEAERANZ2MERLIDE - R8I B B
EERGEE BEEEMSETREVENTIEBRLMEES
A e




Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matter

FARETSEE

Provision against inventories

FERHE

As at 31 March 2021, the net inventories balance of the Group
amounted to HK$34 million.

The Group is engaged in the marketing and distribution of
electronic components and design, development and sale of
consumer products, which are subject to changing market
demands and market competition. Management judgement is
required for assessing the appropriate level of inventory provision
in light of the current challenging business environment.

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures of the provision and the balance of inventories are
included in notes 3, 6 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

R-ZE-_—F=A=+—8 "
34,000,000/ 7T °

EXEENEFEESRFER

BEEEREEFTHNTSHEERD HASBEE RN - 5
BRHE  XMSBREERTSRFFE - ERRREHRIR
RhEES - ERENTHETEREAEKFEAEL A -

TEBSHAMREFAREBTEEBE RSS2 BEBEEREN G
A ERERMITES ~ 6520 -

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL

REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

B AZHEN RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAWESTOREEERETER

We understood and evaluated the basis which management used
in estimating the level of provision for inventories by considering
the stock ageing as at 31 March 2021 and the subsequent
sales after year ended 31 March 2021. We also compared the
carrying amount of the inventories, on a sample basis, to their
net realisable value through review of sales of the inventories
subsequent to the year end.

BMEEBRZERN B -_—F=A=+—HHNEFRRIEZ_
Zo—FZA=tT - HUEFERNBRIEE - TREFEEERE
AR FERRARFREZE - LATEERRHFHEBRNT
BHEBR - MR BFERRE([EEE A #IRHE

FHRATRMNEMBER

BERAREFEAREMEHNAE - Kt BN BEFHRA
AR  ETEBEREMHRER LB ML ELD
ZEREN RS

BAEEREMBHRERNBRL TREEMER - A
D TREMEREREFATANEZT SR

ERFIEAGEMBERRIE  RONEE/HER
&R - MELBERES  RMSTEEMERESNH
RAMBRRABMERTERT TROBAEET
5 HEAUFFEERERRM - ERRFIDETT
T - R MRAEMERFEEAERBEM - Al
BPEREEHEE - At 5 - RAALBEE(AIR

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. ==
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT RS

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional  {EAIZBEEEEAEITET TIE—1R  BIFER
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We — ZEH|H - FERERT BT IS REEEREE - &
also: 371 -

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

o BRIRFHEARRREFRERMEEERE M B®R
REBERBRRAMER - FELERRR
ARBITEARF  URRBREMEE NS
AHERNARRMMERIZHER - mRIKEFR]
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HEBEARERE - FULREBRMIERNE
RERRR R B B = R B 3 3R R B AR T B
HE RS RERR A R o

o THRBEEFEMMOAMER  UARFHEEE
B MAFEAEYH BEEBEREEZENKK
BRBHR -

o FEEEFRAEERRRELAE  UERMAEE
AHERT AR RER TR
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o WKIRATENELER  RESOFER
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4 BEERECENENEREREE N
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 March 2021 Ek;zt_g_*i A=t—BLFEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
S=a FHExT FET
REVENUE g 5 1,241,160 1,337,326
Cost of sales SHERAR (1,186,183) (1,307,032)
Gross profit EH 54,977 30,294
Other income and gains EAb YA Ry 7 5 16,615 13,877
Changes in fair value of investment properties &Y% A FBE 2 ZEF) 13 4,305 (2,268)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (11,028) (13,123)
Administrative expenses 1T E F (88,973) (84,622)
Fair value losses on financial assets at BIBBRIEATEEYERZ
fair value through profit or loss, net CREEZATEEES -
FEE (17,983) (18,750)
Other income/(expenses), net AU (BR) © FHE 2,778 (10,087)
Finance costs BhE A 7 (971) (3,763)
Share of profits and losses of: DR R EE
Joint ventures aEE 316,859 181,344
Associates H‘s‘?%’& Al 139 (440)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE A2 F 6 276,718 92,462
Income tax Frrigii 9 (7,192) (1,711
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERER 269,526 90,751
Attributable to: LA ARG -
Owners of the Company EANNCTETZS N 269,788 93,443
Non-controlling interests FEEAR (262) (2,692)
269,526 90,751
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO A F#EE AEEERER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 11
Basic EEVIN HK29.69 cent  HK10.28 cent /&{ll
29.6958 1L 10.287811l
HK29.69 cent  HK10.28 cent /&1Ll
Diluted #e 29.698 10.287 1L
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
GeZEWARK

Year ended 31 March 2021 HE-Z-—F=A=+—HBIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 269,526 90,751
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HipZEK A~ (E8)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be SRR E D EEEE 2
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: ~ EZ2EUW A (E18) :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign HMEGINERGRSE A 2 BN T8
operations 7,258 (7,174)
Reclassification adjustments for a foreign FALEBINEBREN D ERAR
operation disposed of during the year 108 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) BRERPBTRER S ERBEY
THAT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR Hit2EBA /(58 REREM
LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS AND OTHER  ZMEWA / (&i8) » HIKRHIE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE
YEAR, NET OF TAX 7,366 (7,174)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEBAEE
FOR THE YEAR 276,892 83,577
Attributable to: AR AT FE(S -
Owners of the Company PA/NIEZ DN 277,256 86,180
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR A (364) (2,603)
276,892 83,577
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI &

31 March 2021

—E-—%=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
gz FHxT FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment and M - BB R R
right-of-use assets FREEE 12 32,371 35,423
Investment properties wEWZE 13 128,085 120,437
Goodwill EE 15 - -
Other intangible assets HibEREE 16 3,832 3,850
Investments in joint ventures REELEZRE 17 1,108,848 843,019
Investments in associates F%%QTZ&Q 18 7,732 248
Financial assets at fair value BEREATEBEYERZ
through profit or loss %wﬁéﬁ? 19 24,701 23,891
Prepayments and deposits TENFIERIES 22 23,910 23,968
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 1,329,479 1,050,836
CURRENT ASSETS MREBEE
Inventories Ay 20 33,736 82,678
Trade receivables & uﬂz%i%ﬁ%%k 21 34,886 78,935
Due from associates g NCIE 18 987 115
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  F8{f7X18 ?ﬁ%&ﬁ’r@%”ﬂl%ﬁ\
i) 22 15,045 13,669
Financial assets at fair value BiREmr A FEEIERE
through profit or loss EREE 19 48,184 79,839
Tax recoverable AT [EI R IR - 1
Cash and cash equivalents RekFRREER 23 124,298 87,747
Total current assets RBEELE 257,136 342,984
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma IR R

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
PisE F#xT FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables, deposits received FERE SRR - YRS RIE
and accrued expenses & 24 28,615 43,480
Contract liabilities BHEE 25 36,410 5,785
Lease liabilities HEsE 14 870 3,624
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITER 26 - 97,811
Tax payable JER I 6,924 1,436
Financial guarantee obligation MIEEREE 27 73,646 43,301
Total current liabilities MBI AEARE 146,465 195,437
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 110,671 147,547
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZAEERREBE R 1,440,150 1,198,383
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 14 775 3,088
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFRIEAE 28 14,366 14,298
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEEERE 15,141 17,386
Net assets AESE 1,425,009 1,180,997
EQUITY e
Issued capital BEITIRA 29 90,866 90,866
Reserves e 1,324,075 1,078,622
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 22 Rl H A JE(G 1S 1,414,941 1,169,488
Non-controlling interests e sl 10,068 11,509
Total equity R 4aTE 1,425,009 1,180,997

So Yuk Kwan
819

Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
eEmEER

Year ended 31 March 2021 HE-T-—F=A=+—BItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAENER
Share Asset  Exchange Non-
ssued ~— premium Capital Other  revaluation ~ fluctuation ~ Retained controlling Total

capital - account reservet  resenve resene  resene profits*# Totdl  interests equity
ErEff  ERRE

BEARE BROAEER ROGE  AtEE BT BE RERAM BE GEREE  EREE

HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Thr TR TR TEr  TEm  TEn TR TR TEr  TEn

At 1 April 2019 WZE-NFEA-A 90866 429719 19484 (38483) 38,765 21 558,959 1,101,481 1412 1115593
Profitfor the year ERgH - - - - - - 9348 93,443 269) 90751
Other comprehensive incomefloss for the year: ~ FRAHZESE
Bichange differences on transation BEBNSBREEL

of oreign operations ERZE - - - - - (1263) - (1263) 89 (1.174)
Total comprehensive incomeloss) for the year ERRENL/ (BR)EE - - - - - 1) B3 8180 Q603 85T
Dividend paid EiRRE - - - - - -l 18173 - 181m)
At 31 March 2020 WZFZRFZA=+-H 90866 429,719* 19480 (38483 38765 (5092 634229* 1,169,488 11509 1,180,997
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

zT

* ")(%:.%E}J%‘:Z

Year ended 31 March 2021 HE=T=-—F=A=+—HILtFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADTREARE
Share Asset  Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  Capital Other revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
apital  account  reserve’  reserve  reserve®  reserve profits  Total interests equity
HEER  EXRD
BRARE ROEER RARE  BERE R BE  REERT 2 FERER  RREE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TR TEn  TER  TEn TR TEn T TRn  TEn
At 1 April 2020 R-Z-FEMA-A 90866 429,719 19484% (38483  38,765* (5092)*  634,209* 1,169,488 11509 1,180,997
Poftfor the year R - - - - - - TR 9T () 26956
Other comprehensive incomefloss) for the year: ~ EREHZENA (BE) :
Bichange differences on transation BEBISBREEL
of foreign operations ERZE - - - - - 7360 - 7360 (102) 7,258
Redlssfication adjustments for  foreign EmHERNEHE
operation disposed of during the year EFAERE - - - - - 108 - 108 - 108
Total comprehensive income/[loss) for the year ER2ENN/ (B2 - - - - - 7468 269788 277,25 (364) 276,89
Deemed disposal of subsidiares note 32) RIELENED T(WBZ - - - - - - - - (01 (1,0m9)
Equity-settled share option arrangements —HNBLRNEREERRERE
of asubsidiary [note 30) (H5830) - - - - - - - 2 2
Dividend paid BHRS - - - - - (31803 (31,803 - (31,803
At31 March 2021 \“E--F=f=1-H 90866 429,719 19,484% 38,765+ 2376 812 .214% 141494 10,068 1,425,009

##

##
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Included in the balance of the capital reserve as at 31 March 2021 was a capital
redemption reserve balance amounting to approximately HK$16,142,000 (2020:
HK$16,142,000).

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from owner-occupied
properties to investment properties carried at fair value. In accordance with HKAS 16,
this balance was frozen and was not available to offset the current and future years’
revaluation deficits on investment properties until the retirement or disposal of these
assets.

As at 31 March 2021, there was goodwill of HK$12,427,000 (2020: HK$12,427,000)
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years which remained eliminated
against the consolidated retained profits.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,324,075,000 (2020:

HK$1,078,622,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2021.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/-.ﬁ IEI@/}“JE%

Year ended 31 March 2021 HE=ZT=—F=A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B--fF —TTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE TR FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHMBRESRE
Profit before tax BrAE AT R A 276,718 92,462
Adjustments for: BATHEBELHZE
Finance costs Eﬂ;éﬂz$ 7 971 3,763
Share of profits of joint ventures DEEEERT (316,859) (181,344)
Share of (profits)/losses of associates HEHE R E CaF) /B8 (139) 440
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BEREENE 6 1,467 2,368
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 6 2,171 2,387
Changes in fair value of investment properties KEMENTFEBEZEE) 13 (4,305) 2,268
Amortisation of other intangible assets HAm A sy 6 19 19
Impairment of other intangible assets HitfEp A ERE 6 - 200
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment WE - BB KR ORER
of property, plant and equipment ),/ RiE 6 (933) 3,579
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment FREEE CRERR)
of right-of-use assets WE 6 (194) 5,529
Impairment of/(reversal of impairment of) FENE 5B 0RE, (Rl lER
trade receivables, net [l) - 58 6 1,138 (580)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of inventories  TF &5 {E (B E) /#E 6 (726) 350
Reversal of impairment of other receivables HAh fEGRIE R (B R 6 - (3,901)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BERERHFEEEZ
plant and equipment W 5,6 - 24)
Revision of a lease term arising from a change in HETHENRESEEY
the non-cancellable period of a lease HERBEW 5,6 (2,526) -
Gain on derecognition of financial RIERAMBERAE 2 IEG
guarantee obligation 6 (82,197) (105,353)
Impairment of investments in joint ventures REEEEREZRE 6 82,197 105,353
Impairment of investments in associates REFERFIRE ZRME 6 588 1,510
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIEHERBAR 2k 6 (4,924) -
Fair value losses on financial assets BBRBEEATERIEZS
at fair value through profit MEENNTEERE F
or loss, net | 6 17,983 18,750
Dividend income from listed kR E 2 REMA
equity investments 5 (11) (187)
Bank interest income RITFIBUA 5 (33) (354)
Interest income on listed bond investments ETEREE 2 F WA 5 (2,589) (2,506)
Interest income on a loan receivable FEWE 2 FBWA 5 - (616)
Equitysettled share option expense —HMB ARz REEERR
of a subsidiary EER 30 2 -
(32,182) (55,887)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SeRTRER

Year ended 31 March 2021 HE-Z-—F=A=+—HBIFE

2021 2020
—B--F —ECEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bisx TR FET
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/ (M) 53,716 (25,280)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables [EME FERFCR D/ (32 ) 42,527 (11,358)
Increase in amounts due from associates il (872) -
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits FRNFE - e RAMERFIE
and other receivables (), md (2,722) 29,790
Decrease in trade payables, deposits received BB ZERR - ElRe RIS
and accrued expenses BRERDS (12,539) (2,883)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities BHaBEEN,/ (i) 29,941 (10,089)
Cash from/(used in) operations mems/ (R Re 77,869 (75,707)
Interest portion of lease payments THERFF 250 (78) (78)
Purchases of financial assets at fair value through EEERERE
profit or loss CREE (24,273) (36,399)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value i &iE BBz A FEENEREN
through profit or loss ERMEEZF 38,939 52,934
Dividend income received from a joint venture Blili—MeatEZRERA 81,585 69,930
Overseas taxes paid BRI (1,609) (287)
Net cash flows from operating activities rERBMECREREFE 172,433 10,393
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFZHMBzRERE
Bank interest received BUERITHIE 33 354
Dividends received from listed investments Bl EmRERE 1" 187
Interest income on listed bond investments EmEHREZFEMRA 2,589 2,506
Interest income on a loan receivable FEWE R 2 FI B A - 616
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment FEE¥% - BFE K& EEE (185) (3,404)
Purchases of items of right-of-use assets EECREEEER 33(b) - (1,773)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant HEME - BERZMBIEE 2
and equipment 1558 - 120
Proceeds from disposal of items of right-of-use assets & {FREEERR 2 F7 - 841
Proceeds from disposal of other intangible assets HEHMBELEE 2 - 163
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIEHERB AR 32 (1,561) -
Subscription of shares in a joint venture RE—fHa - (11,250)
Investment in an associate A — i (500) (500)
Increase in prepayments and deposits FERFIE RN - (21,976)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities BEESE/ (A 28R
2% 387 (34,116)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Iﬁﬁ/)lbi%

n‘/-.ﬁ
Year ended 31 March 2021 HZ-—ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE
2021 2020
—B--fF —T-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE THER FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBHRBZRERE
Net (decrease)/increase in import and #ARETBIRER
trust receipt loans CRd) /L nFsE (102,298) 31,186
Interest paid BRFE 7 (794) (3.492)
Interest portion of lease payments BENAFFEEHS (99) (193)
Principal portion of lease payments MENRAEEHH (2,836) (2,549)
Dividend paid BRRE (31,803) (18,173)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities BMEZBME/ (A2
ReEmEFE (137,830) 6,779
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRZEFREER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i,/ (Bd) 28 34,990 (16,944)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FzREeRERFLIER 87,747 105,989
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EREE 228 F5E 1,561 (1,298)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAEREFAEEE
AT END OF YEAR 124,298 87,747
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH RERERREBEEBRZDN
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FEMBIRRR
consolidated statement of financial position REREMERMAMEL
and in the consolidated statement of cash flows RekERREEE 23 124,298 87,747
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 I\/IarchZOZ‘I T —F=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEEHR
AV Concept Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability AV Concept Holdings Limited ([ A2 A]]) AR
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office FEHSTMKIIZERARE - RABZH
address of the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand ft = b ik AP.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman Islands and its principal place of business GrandCayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands - i
is located at 6th Floor, Enterprise Square Three, 39 Wang Chiu Road, HFZa AR EBNEEE ZREBE399
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong. PHEES =6 -
During the year, the Group was engaged in the following principal FA - AEERSUATEERER
activities:
. Marketing and distribution of electronic components; . BF Lz misHERDHE
. Design, development and sale of consumer products and product . EEBHEM R REREEURER
sourcing services; and HEXEBL &
e Venture capital investment o RIEKE
Information about subsidiaries EREMB AR ZER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: Apalz EEMBARFBAT :
Place of Issued/ Percentage of
incorporation registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
% TMRIR & EE BET/ERRA ARFEEREEA T TEEH
Direct Indirect
B Gk
AV Concept Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
FRITERRA e 28T REER
HK$1,000,000°
1,000,000/ L2
AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD4,000,000 - 100  Trading of electronic
EIbs 4,000,000 7T components
BES LI
AV Electronics Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$40,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 40,000% 7T REER
RERLHE /B
E-GoGo Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Trading of consumer
5 BT products and
investment holding
BEEHBEQRRAE
B’
Signeo Design International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100  Design, development
e 10077C and sale of electronic
products
&t ABERHEST
Em

92 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 43k
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e B TSR R AT

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARREEER@®
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERMBARZER (@

Place of Issued/ Percentage of

incorporation registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
a1 TR R B BRT/HMRE ARREERFE AL TEER

Direct Indirect
HE %
AVC Technology (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Trading of electronic
ERRE (BB ARAF £ T components and
consumer products
BESF I RHEE
m
New Concept Capital Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
("New Concept”)* Hong Kong E and venture capital
RERUHE /B investment
REZRREIFRE

Whizoo Media Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Internet social media

Eit 10,000 7T business and online

Represents deferred shares issued by AV Concept Limited
New Concept is a venture capital organisation

advertising
BB RERERR
BEES

BEBITAERDRETZRLERSN
# New Concept A&— 18I 4H &%

ERINTEERREARNFREEBNIELE
HERAEEEEFEL R D 2 AR EMNE
NAE - BERR - WMIHEMMERRZF
B SYRREEN LK -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

94

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment
properties which have been measured at fair value. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 %3k
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2.1

2.2

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

2.1

2.2
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described below:

96

(a)
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Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance to
all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement
and reporting financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies
the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty
in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a
standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override
the concepts or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to transactions or other events
that occurred on or after 1 April 2020. The amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(0)

(d)

(e)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the replacement
of an existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-
free rate ("RFR”). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the period
of uncertainty before the introduction of the alternative RFR.
In addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does not
have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or
less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding
the change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there
is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted and
shall be applied retrospectively. The amendment did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 HKFRS 4 Reform - Phase 2!

and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
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Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Insurance Contracts*
Insurance Contracts*’

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current*®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20212

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies*

Definition of Accounting Estimates*

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction*

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 413
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

5 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5

Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October
2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

7 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2022. Since the amendments
apply prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for changes
in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made
to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS
9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a
risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the
hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore,
the amendments require an entity to disclose additional information
to enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of
interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of
the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered
a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items
of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the consolidated financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable
to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS
16.

AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 %3k
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in associates or
joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations and goodwill are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in
the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the

other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) an entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Freehold land and buildings 2% - 3%
Leasehold improvements 20% —-33'5%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 20% —-33'5%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 20%
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use assets which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Club memberships

The Group's club memberships are stated at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on an individual
basis.

Trademarks and customer relationships

Trademarks and customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of five years.

Mobile application

Mobile application is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-
of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:

Land 50 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful lives
of the asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of buildings (that is those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and
is included in revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 -  Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 -  Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage3 -  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, deposits received,
financial liabilities included in accrued expenses, lease liabilities, interest-
bearing bank borrowings and financial guarantee obligation.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the
ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and includes all
costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on
the estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks and
other financial institutions, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to be that which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a)  Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the products.

(b)  Provision of services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised at the point
in time when the services have been rendered.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company and its subsidiaries operate share option schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after
7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expenses, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant
date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China, Singapore and Korea are required to participate in pension
schemes operated by the respective local municipal governments. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the pension schemes. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the pension schemes.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of associate grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties (continued)

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the future
performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in which the
deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors are
also evaluated in considering whether there is convincing evidence
that it is probable that some portions or all of the deferred tax assets
will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable temporary
differences, tax planning strategies and the periods in which estimated
tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
and related financial models and budgets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and to the extent that there is insufficient
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available
within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses
carried forward, the asset balance will be reduced and charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The amount of unrecognised
tax losses at 31 March 2021 was approximately HK$623 million (2020:
approximately HK$568 million).

AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 %3k

3.

FESEHE R A @

) i (0
REVMEXREAYE B 228 (@)

HER TR E R M EAEL - WORERBRBEES
BER SROETTRERERRENE -

CERZAL L SES
TXMBBBEARZEBEBRRABRE HAEE
%h%ﬁ?%%l%ZE@EEXﬁ HEH
RERAY TEMREEZEAERAEY R
Eé%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%Zikﬂmo

EEBBEEE
BEERBEERRWEALEHEEISRER -
M LA B BRTR AT 82 ER1S A 2Kk I SR 5 1l i =T 3 A
RWBAZBIEEIEE ZEE AR - ELERTE
ﬁEZﬁwiﬁﬁ&gEﬁwLﬁﬁﬁéiz
FFEATE BB S RIS 40 Al AR SRR IR 2 H B -
HBARREEINTFATE - AEERS ﬁﬁﬁz
BEERBOAEBELETIEE EHIKXH A6
W fINGFERRARENZE BB HRE
REE R AT E) A LT IEE B B o BIERIE
éFZ%E%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@iﬁﬁ%@ﬂx
WL EE RSB BUEEHE N Z2RE
AR BB EINE R RTEF LB B4
Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ [ERNERRKEELHBIT BHKEE
BERNBR RZTZ—F=A=+—H " #*k
ﬁpmﬁﬁﬁé$WE&3wow@&ﬂ =
—Z4F 1 #568,000,000/87T) °




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including:

(@  current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences; and

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2021 was
HK$128,085,000 (2020: HK$120,437,000). Further details, including
the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
The Group makes impairment provision for trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of
these receivables. Impairment provision is made for these receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the
use of judgement and estimates, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each debtor. Where the expectation
on the recoverability of these receivables is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of these
receivables and impairment provision in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. The aggregate carrying amount of
trade receivables as at 31 March 2021 was HK$34,886,000 (2020:
HK$78,935,000). The aggregate carrying amount of deposits and
other receivables as at 31 March 2021 was HK$15,555,000 (2020:
HK$13,767,000).

Provision for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the inventory ageing analysis
periodically, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sales. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis
at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving items through management’s estimation of the
net realisable value for such obsolete and slow-moving items based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The
aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s inventories as at 31 March
2021 was HK$33,736,000 (2020: HK$82,678,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group amortises its intangible assets with a finite useful life on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful lives reflect management’s estimate of the period that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of these
intangible assets. The carrying amount of other intangible assets at 31
March 2021 was HK$3,832,000 (2020: HK$3,850,000).

Fair value measurement of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

When the fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair
values are measured using valuation techniques including the use of
market comparable and other valuation techniques commonly used by
other market participants. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as market comparables and
discount rates. Further details of these valuations are given in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@  the semiconductor distribution segment engages in the sale and
distribution of electronic components;

(b)  the consumer product and product sourcing business segment
engages in the design, development and sale of consumer
products and product sourcing services;

(c)  the venture capital segment engages in the investments in listed/
unlisted equity and debt investments with an ultimate objective
of obtaining capital gains on investee’s equity listing or, in some
circumstances, prior to listing. It also includes investments in real
estate, managed funds, convertible bonds and listed bonds; and

(d)  the others segment mainly comprises the Group’s internet social
media business.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure
of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except
that bank interest income, rental income, share of profits and losses of
joint ventures and associates, impairment of investments in associates,
gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, impairment/
reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets, reversal of impairment of other receivables, changes in fair
value of investment properties, finance costs and unallocated expenses
are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in joint ventures and associates,
tax recoverable, cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities, lease
liabilities, interest-bearing bank borrowings, financial guarantee
obligation and other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. K& 5 IBER @
Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEER
RER
YERAH RBER #IR Hit @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TiEx TiEx T TiEn
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE-%--%
ZAZt-HLEE
Segment revenue AEE
Sales to external customers ANRBE S 1,190,417 47,082 - 3,661 1,241,160
Other losses HiEe - - (15,240) - (15,240)
Total st 1,190,417 47,082 (15,240) 3,661 1,225,920
Reconciliation: iR
Add: Other losses (note) o Efgss () 15,240
Revenue as presented in the NREBERZS]
consolidated statement of i
profit or loss 1,241,160
Segment results AHMEE 34,645 (16,844) (19,511) (12,685) (14,395)
Reconciliation: iR
Bank interest income STHIEMA 33
Rental income HelA 4,151
Share of profits of joint ventures HMEEELFER 316,859
Share of profits of associates HMEBENFIER 139
Impairment of investments REERRZIRE
in associates A (588)
Reversal of impairment of property, %1% * R &%
plant and equipment ZRERE 933
Reversal of impairment of EREAE RERD
right-of-use assets 194
Changes in fair value of RENELTER
investment properties ZEE) 4,305
Unallocated expenses KAERZ (33,942)
Finance costs BEKA (971)
Profit before tax BRBRD AR 276,718
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31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

4, REHEER @

Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEFER
REm
FEENH REEH &% it gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FAL FAT TR FHT
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE-Z-TF
AT HIER
Segment revenue A
Sales to external customers FSNRER S 1,259,208 74,902 - 3216 1,337,326
Other losses AR - - (15,296) - (15,296)
Total st 1,259,208 74,902 (15,296) 3,216 1,322,030
Reconciliation: iR
Add: Other losses (note) o Efgss () 15,29
Revenue as presented in the NG lar el Pl G
consolidated statement of
profit or loss 1,337,326
Segment results AHWEE 7,166 (24,964) (22,439) (6,951) (47,188)
Reconciliation: 9k -
Bank interest income FATHIEMA 354
Rental income WA 4,920
Share of profits of joint ventures AERETE R 181,344
Share of losses of associates PEHEARER (440)
Impairment of investments REERRIZRE
in associates LHA (1510)
Gain on disposal of items of HENE  BER
property, plant and equipment RERE W& 24
Impairment of property, plant mE - BERE
and equipment A (3579
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREAE RE (5,529)
Reversal of impairment of other HiEWSIE R ERR
receivables 3,901
Changes in fair value of RENMEATER
investment properties 2 (2,268)
Unallocated expenses KBRS (33,804)
Finance costs BERA (3,763)
Profit before tax BRTLATET 92,462
Note: Other losses in segment revenue were classified as other income and gains, and Mizt: DEREAZHEMBEESERAGEIBHERAZ

fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, net, in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

HAp AR A FoE B m e A T EEVIEZ
ERMEEZ A FEEBRFE-
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4, REHEER @

Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEER
RER
YERAH RRER £ Htt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL Thn Thn Thx Fhx
31 March 2021 “E--%£=A=1-H
Segment assets AHEE 634,034 104,153 67,914 3,384 809,485
Reconciliation: 8 -
Elimination of intersegment receivables #8472 fa fEY R (516,044)
Investments in joint ventures REEREIRE 1,108,848
Investments in associates R AT RE 7,732
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ ARREMASEEE 176,594
Total assets AESE 1,586,615
Segment liabilities AHEE 46,867 246,804 209,653 69,657 573,071
Reconciliation: 8-
Elimination of intersegment payables 84 2EfEER FU8 (516,044)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities AR EMASEEE 104,579
Total liabilties BESE 161,606
31 March 2020 ZECTE-A=tH
Segment assets AHEE 673,365 113,590 100,094 4,050 891,099
Reconciliation: 8 -
Elimination of intersegment receivables #8472 fa FEY R (479,199)
Investments in joint ventures REEREIRE 843,019
Investments in associates REERE RE 248
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ AR EMASEEE 138,653
Total assets BESE 1,393,820
Segment liabilities AHEE 32,873 229,927 211,098 54,641 528,539
Reconciliation: 8 -
Elimination of intersegment payables 842 EBfEER FUR (479,199)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities AR EMASEEE 163,483
Total liabilties BESE 212,823
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31 March 2021 —E=—F=HA=+—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. #&& 5 IBER @
Other segment information: Hib o HMEHR :
Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing Venture
distribution business capital Others Total
HEEER
RER
YERAH LR b Htt )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THTL Thr TAT
Year ended 31 March 2021 BzoE--%
ZAZt-HLEEE
Depreciation of property, plant nE - BRREXENE
and equipment 1,007 7 347 106 1,467
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 1,047 124 1,000 - 217
Amortisation of other intangible assets &/ EE 7 B 19 - - - 19
Reversal of impairment of inventories & Z{EAME (475) (251) - - (726)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of  JEWE B2 E/
trade receivables, net (RERE)  #5E - 1,144 - (6) 1,138
Reversal of impairment of property, ER S
plant and equipment ZREEE - (933) - - (933)
Impairment/reversal of impairment) of ~ FRELEZE(E/
right-of-use assets (RfERE) 7 (365) - - (194)
Impairment of investments in joint REErELRERE
ventures 82,197
Impairment of investments in associates ~ IAEFE AR Z K E 2 A 588
Capital expenditure* EART* 4 39 - 99 185
Year ended 31 March 2020 HE-ZCT%
=A ;I' AIEEE
Depreciation of property, plant nE - BERRENE
and equipment 1,304 466 316 282 2,368
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 1,021 320 1,046 - 2,387
Amortisation of other intangible assets HWE%EEZ}%H 19 - - - 19
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment £ &2 JiE (BR) /Bl
of inventories (3,225) 3,575 - - 350
(Reversal of imparment)impairment ~ [EE Bz (REEE)/
of trade receivables, net WEFR - (601) - 21 (580)
Impairment of property, plant and nE BREXEAE
equipment 1,538 1,494 - 547 3,579
Impairment of right-of-use assets FRESEZRE 513 5,016 - - 5,529
Impairment of other intangible assets ~ EtEFEE ZR(E 200 - - - 200
Reversal of impairment of other Eto e 2R ERE
receivables (3,901)
Impairment of investments in joint RegrEzREZRE
ventures 105,353
Impairment of investments in associates ~ FAEEE N Rl 2 & 2 R(E 1,510
Capital expenditure* ARFER 2,006 684 669 45 3,404
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. * BABLTBIERBYYE  WMERSRE -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. K& 2 EE R @)
Geographical information EE R

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) RBEIREEZWE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Hong Kong B 41,546 72,949
Singapore Hrns 1,196,033 1,259,440
Taiwan B 816 3,469
Indonesia HIe 2,765 1,468
1,241,160 1,337,326

The revenue information above is based on the locations in which

WS ER TREHEELMEE

the sales originated. e
(b) Non-current assets (b) FREBEE
2021 2020
—BE-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Hong Kong BE 1,148,556 885,030
Mainland China A B D 121,344 115,790
Singapore Frns 32,822 23,895
Korea B2 124 238
1,302,846 1,024,953
The non-current asset information above is based on the locations LI REEEE R HREEMEHETE -
of the assets and excludes financial instruments. EFTEESHMIA-
Information about major customers ERXEEFZER

For the year ended 31 March 2021, no revenue from the Group’s sales
to a single customer amounted to 10% or above of the Group's total
revenue (2020: Nil).
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Wi~ A R WKz
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: Was ~ HtWA R Mam 2z T
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHWE
Semiconductor distribution FEE A 1,190,417 1,259,208
Consumer product sales and product HEHEMEE NERKEERED
sourcing business 47,082 74,902
Others Hth 3,661 3,216
1,241,160 1,337,326
Revenue from contracts with customers BK a %;ﬁ éf‘"\,‘_—] Zu&ﬁé—é
(i) Disaggregated revenue information ()  WEEER M
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE-_B-—-—&H=-A=+—AuLEE
Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing
Segments distribution business Others Total
HEEERR
ik YERAY ERFEEY Htt EEH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn ThEL FhEL ThRL
Total revenue from contracts with customers REZPEN WaaE 1,190,417 47,082 3,661 1,241,160
Geographical markets WEMHE
Hong Kong BB 95 37,790 3,661 41,546
Singapore g 1,190,322 5711 - 1,196,033
Taiwan =) - 816 - 816
Indonesia Efe - 2,765 - 2,765
Total revenue from contracts with customers REEPAH 2 WaiER 1,190,417 47,082 3,661 1,241,160
Timing of revenue recognition W BER R
Transferred at a point in time REERRESER 1,190,417 47,082 3,661 1,241,160
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

0]
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

5. W&~ HWA RIS @

Yzk - HAMA RIS Z DT - ()
REFFEHzWE @)
() WEERBHME @

BE_2-_TF-A=1+—HLFE

Consumer
product and
product
Semiconductor sourcing
Segments distribution business Others Total
BERELR
pak: FERENH EnREEY At @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Titn T FHr T
Total revenue from contracts with customers REEPEHNEEE 1,259,208 74,902 3216 1,337,326
Geographical markets WEME
Hong Kong B 7433 62,300 3216 72,949
Singapore s 1,251,775 7,665 - 1,259,440
Taiwan RiE - 3,469 - 3,469
Indonesia e - 1,468 - 1,468
Total revenue from contracts with customers REEP 64 WHEE 1,259,208 74,902 3216 1,337,326
Timing of revenue recognition W R K R
Transferred at a point in time TR HHE% 1,259,208 74,902 3216 1,337,326

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

TRINTRAREMEER 2 K27
(Bt AREHVIENAR) -

2021 2020
—BE-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHTT
Revenue recognised that was included R AREIEL
in contract liabilities at the beginning BERHE
of the reporting period:
Sale of products HEEM 4,599 14,566
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 45 days of
issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms
are extended to over 60 days.

Provision of services

The performance obligation is satisfied when the services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 45 days of
issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms
are extended to over 60 days.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) are not disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements because all the remaining performance
obligations in relation to the sale of products are a part of
contracts that have an original expected duration of one year or
less.

5.

e RS HRAR MR

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

Yz ~ WA R W E @

Wzs - HaA RIS DT ¢ ()

REFFEH WG @)

(i) BHEE
AEEBHZETEREMMT -

HEEm

BB FERNEMBER RN BT E
BEHEI0EASKRNER @ HEERTHN
BERIN - EERERZBIE60X -

TEHARTE

BV (TRE IR ARTS B E A R AN SRR B 1E
BEHEI0EASRNEN @ HEERTHN
BERIN - EERERZBIE60K -

ERAITRES  DEEHRTNENEE
(REZRC AR D RIERK) MR S BB AR
RAMBWMRMENRKTE - TIEMRAEH
EEMBANRTEOEERRIEHR
B—FRAREHN—aD

Other income and gains H g A R
2021 2020
—E—F —TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Bank interest income RATH BUA 33 354
Interest income on listed bond investments LIHESHRE ZFBHA 2,589 2,506
Interest income on a loan receivable FEWE R 2 F B - 616
Dividend income from listed equity investments MR E 2 f% B ULA 11 187
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - WE REEEREE
plant and equipment 2 WiEs - 24
Rental income HalA 4,151 4,920
Government grants BT #88h 3,823 -
Foreign exchange differences, net fE R ZHFE 853 963
Revision of a lease term arising from a change in TAE-NA] HSE BRI B BhE £ 2
the non-cancellable period of a lease HEHER 2,526 -
Others Hith 2,629 4,307
16,615 13,877
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6.
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. FERBIADRA
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBZBRBAEMN ISR GtA) LA T&18
1BIEZER
2021 2020
—E--& —Z-EF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bisx T FHAT
Cost of inventories sold** SHE KA 1,184,974 1,303,012
(Reversal of)/provision for FEREBE) B
impairment of inventories** (726) 350
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « BERRETE 12 1,467 2,368
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 12 2,171 2,387
Amortisation of other intangible assets* Hih & Eg 16 19 19
Lease payments not included in the R AHEGEZHE
measurement of lease liabilities MHEERR 14 1,578 3,336
Revision of lease term arising from HETAHERRESEEY
a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease & HHEM 14 (2,526) -
Auditor's remuneration ZER S 2,008 2,007
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration STIXA(BRESH:
~note 8): —ffisEe)
Wages, salaries and other allowances I%5 %% &ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁ 53,095 54,851
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIHR 1,836 1,666
54,931 56,517
Other (income)/expenses, net: Hi (WA, B 38
Impairment of other intangible assets Hinmy EERE 16 - 200
Impairment of financial assets, net: CREERE  FHE
Impairment of/(reversal of impairment of) JEWE SR 2 RE,
trade receivables, net (RERE) 5 21 1,138 (580)
Reversal of impairment of other receivables H i FEWIE 2 R E R E 22 - (3,901)
Impairment of investments in associates %Hﬁ%%@ﬂz&ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ 18 588 1,510
Impairment of investments in joint ventures REEREZREZRIE 82,197 105,353
Gain on derecognition of financial guarantee EX/ﬁﬁEwmﬂﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂEZWm
obligation (82,197) (105,353)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of %% R & 3% CRER ),/
property, plant and equipment B 12 (933) 3,579
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of ﬁﬁﬁ’fgﬁﬁ(ﬂ@ﬁé@/
right-of-use assets FE 12 (194) 5,529
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BELEMBARZ Ka 32 (4,924) -
Others Hit 1,547 3,750
(2,778) 10,087
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair BRESEATEBEE S
value through profit or loss, net BEZR $TETEJ§§T§\ i & 17,983 18,750
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEZRE - F (853) (963)
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HEME JF%E%& SHHIEE
and equipment 2 WS - 24)
Direct operating expenses (including repairs W B MEMEE s EREE
and maintenance), arising on rental-earning X (BEEERRE)
investment properties 915 658
* This balance is included in “Administrative expenses” on the face of the * ZIER T NREERR 2 [TTHER] -
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
*k These balances are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated i ZEERTFIAREBRRZ [HERA]

statement of profit or loss.
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31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

FINANCE COSTS 7. ®EKA

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEKRARZ AT
2021 2020
—E-—F —ER T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITRRZFE 794 3,492
Interest on lease liabilities (note 14) HEaBFEZHE MF14) 177 271
971 3,763

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ESFMRAUFMES RS

EEHM

RIBEEWRY - FERAMEDIZE383(1)(a)
(b) ~ (O RDERAR (WEESNEER) R
F2RHBE L FNEZHIMT -

2021 2020

—B=—F —TTF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Fees we 513 500

Other emoluments: Hipe -

Salaries, housing and other allowances, e BEREAERL

and benefits in kind REMF &= 14,337 14,411

Pension scheme contributions IRIRESET B 597 298

14,934 14,709

15,447 15,209
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140

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(@) Independent Non-executive Directors

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive Directors during the

year are as follows:

(&)

EEHM @
(a) BUFHITES
FAXMNTFEIULIFNTESZREMT

EEFMRAUTFMRES RS

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FB T THETT

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, Jp ERAEE L - sBs - AT ML 150 150
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman Charles Edward Chapman’t4E 150 150
Mr. Lai Yat Hung Edmund Big g & Mz o 150 50
Mr. Wong Ka Kit @ EREFED 63 150
513 500

Notes:

m the director was appointed on 6 December 2019.

@ the director was resigned on 28 August 2020.

There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent

Non-executive Directors during the year (2020: Nil).

(b) Executive Directors

HMIEE -

(1)

(2)

ZEFCR-_T-NF+-ARBEZ

fFo

ZEFERZZTTNAZH\HEHE -

FALEE BRI TES Z S

==

ZEF ) o

(b) BTES

Salaries,
housing and
other
allowances,
and benefits

Pension
scheme

Total

in kind contributions remuneration
e EER
Hi2a R EiR&5tE
BYFz= R Fa ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAET
2021 —E-—fF
Executive Directors: HITES -
Dr. So Yuk Kwan BEHE T 8,985 330 9,315
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng BmEELE 2,570 128 2,698
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny BRE AL 2,782 139 2,921
14,337 597 14,934
2020 —E-F
Executive Directors: HITES -
Dr. So Yuk Kwan gL 8,821 34 8,855
Mr. So Kevin Chi Heng BmEELE 2,970 140 3,110
Mr. So Chi Sun Sunny BRE AL 2,620 124 2,744
14,411 298 14,709
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive Directors (continued)
There was no other arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2020: Nil).

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2020: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two highest paid
employees (2020: two) for the year are as follows:

e RS HRAR MR

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

EEFMROLuFMEE 2ER
(80
EEHMH
(b) BTES ()
Py BHET(ERE BRERR B HE
(ETHM At (C B2 F 1) -

LfuFMss 2 EE

TR AfUFMESZRERE=U(ZT=-F
F:ZM)ESF  EHFHHBEHN X - FRE
HRLFHES2EE (CE-FF M) 2
BT

2021 2020

—E-—F T B

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBxT FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e A REDA S 4,051 3,587

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FMNTUATERz T E=IEESREZA
2w

Number of employees

EEAH™
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 T2 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T.22,000,0007 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000, 0017 7C22,500,000/8 7T 1
2 2
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9. INCOME TAX 9. FRBW

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group F AN 5 B R 6 (A R AT B 8 B AR (R (R R AR B
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the wA) - A MET IR E A NSRS - Hibi=
year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the FERB @ 2 BIB TR AN R B & BT

rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. AR BITEARESE -
2021 2020
—E-—F T T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

Current-Elsewhere BIVER — H {th 3=

Charge for the year FALZH 7,098 1,598
Deferred (note 28) PEAE (P 5E28) 94 113
Total tax charge for the year FARIAS P 4ATE 7,192 1,711
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at HEEAATIREARZSHB AT MR FIEER
the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and CIETEMERHE RSN EA s HIERY
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the R TR R E O BIEST 2SN T
effective tax rate is as follows:

2021 2020

—E- & T B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

Profit before tax FRA A o A 276,718 92,462
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BEERE165% (ZFEZFF : 16.5%)

(2020: 16.5%) B 2R 45,658 15,256
Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions ~ E b ADEERF R =R 2 /2 155 (49)
Profits and losses attributable to joint ventures & & (>3 K B2 A B E(S

and associates i M) 2 1R (52,305) (29,849)
Income not subject to tax BRI A (5.529) (3,498)
Expenses not deductible for tax Gk b 6,749 6,964
Tax losses not recognised RIER 2 BIIEEE 12,200 12,990
Others Hit 264 (103)
Tax charge for the year FRBIEX H 7,192 1,711

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures and associates amounting
to HK$59,345,000 (2020: HK$30,872,000) and HK$13,000 (2020: Nil),
respectively, is included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures
and associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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10. DIVIDEND 10. RE
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Proposed final dividend — HK$0.030 EEAHRE — 8T REAR0.030/8 T
(2020: HK$0.025) per ordinary share (ZZE=ZF : 0.025%E70) 27,260 22,717

11.

At the Board meeting held on 25 June 2021, the Board resolved to
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.030 (2020:
HK$0.025) per share for the year ended 31 March 2021. The proposed
final dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in the consolidated
financial statements until it is approved by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 908,663,302 (2020:
908,663,302) in issue during the year.

The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for the
current year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on:

1.

RZBEZ—FRAZ+TRABROT I EEZESH
o EReRrERENEE =S =—F=A
=+—HIEFEZREKREEA0.0308 T (=
TZTF 1 0.025870) AR ERKRE
FEARD R EERERAF ARG EHERT T ERER
AUBRERANRMAREMAKRE -

RAREEABESRER

BREABVNCEDREARAFEE ARNE
FRENRFADETEBR 2 NEFHH
908,663,302 (ZZ=Z 4 : 908,663,302/%)

L
FTE o

RRARRAFEL B ETABSTEZER
IR

BRERLESBNIRIBA TBURTE ¢

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHTT
Earnings BEF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, B ESRERMESRT
used in the basic and diluted earnings per share N2 BB A FE(EEF
calculation 269,788 93,443
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31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 1. ZARHEEABLESREFN @
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on: BRERREBTRFIBEATEEAE
(continued) (&)

Number of shares

RAEE
2021 2020
—E-—F TR CEE
Shares [igv)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RUFTESRERNREESRT 2
in issue during the year used in the basic FRE T E R INE T
and diluted earnings per share calculation 908,663,302 908,663,302

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT- 12. ¥1%¥ - BERZREURSEAEEE

OF-USE ASSETS

2021 2020

—E- & —E-TF

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000

s FE T THETT

Property, plant and equipment L E =Y = (a) 7,098 8,220
Right-of-use assets EREEE (b) 25,273 27,203
32,371 35,423
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31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment

12. W15 BERREUAREHAEERE
()
(@) "% BERRME

Freehold
land and Furniture,
buildings fittings
Buildings (outside Leasehold and office Motor Plant and
(HongKong) ~ HongKong) ~improvements ~ equipment vehicles machinery Total
XA%E
BF  IHEEF HE G 2ER
(BH) (BBIME) NEEE  BOERR FE BERES At
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén Tén Tén Thn TR TEn
31 March 2021 Zg--%2fz1-R
At31 March 2020and 1 April 2020:  R=ZF=FF=F=1-H
R-T-TFMA-R:
Cost WA 5,409 8370 9,682 7,845 7,708 1,163 w17
Accumulated depreciation and ZHHTERAE
impairment (1813 (5,203) (9,682) (7,644) (6,452) (1,163) (31,957)
Net carrying amount FHFE 3,59 3,167 - 0 1,256 - 8,220
At 1 April 2020, net of accumulated R =Z=FEMA-R
depreciation and impairment NBEHTERAA 3,59 3,167 - 0 1,256 - 8,220
Additions B - - - 185 - - 185
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries AL ENBAT (32
(note 32) - - (546) (450) - - (996)
Depreciation (note 6) & (Hite) (132) (101) - (157) (4m7) - (1.467)
Reversal of impairment (note 6) BEEE (o) - - 533 400 - - 933
Exchange realignment EfRE - 181 13 14 15 - m
At 31 March 2021, net of accumulated #=F=—F=F=+-H"
depreciation and impairment MBEHTERAE 3464 2,647 - 193 79 - 7,098
At 31 March 2021: RZEZ-E=f=1-H:
Cost WA 5,409 8,876 8511 1531 7759 1,163 39,255
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment (1,945) (6,229) (8,511) (7,344) (6,965) (1,163) (32,157)
Net carrying amount HETFE 3464 2,647 - 193 79% - 7,008
Annual Report 2021 £3§ AV Concept Holdings Limited 145




o b PO PP

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RS R YR

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-

OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

12. % BERRBURERAEEE

(&)

(a) M=% - BERRE@

Freehold
land and Fumiture,
buildings fittings
Buildings (outside Leasehold and office Motor Plant and
(HongKong) ~ HongKong)  improvements equipment vehicles machinery Total
KAKTE
BF  IHREF BE &R RER
BR)  ERME) nERE BLRERE A HRREE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thn T TEn TEn TEn T
31 March 2020 CECRECACT-H
At 1 Aprl 2019: RZZ-NERA-R:
Cost A 5,144 8,909 7,585 7839 1,157 1,163 38,397
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERAE
and impairment (1,687) (4,854) (7.447) (6,166) (6,599) (469) 27220
Net carrying amount FHFE 3457 4,055 138 1673 1,158 694 1175
At 1 April 2019, net of accumulated  R=F-NEFWE-R - 3k
depreciation and impairment ZHTERAE 3457 4,055 138 1673 1,158 694 1,175
Additions hE 265 - 2,097 313 669 - 3404
Disposals HE - - - (1) (95) - (9)
Depreciation (note 6) W& (Hito) (126) (673) (332) (560) (444 (233) (2,368)
Impairment (note 6) A (H30) - - (1,907) (1,210 - (462) (3,579)
Exchange realignment BT - (215) 4 (74) (32) 1 (316)
At 31 March 2020, net of accumulated #=F=FE=F=+-8"
depreciation and impaiment MRZHTERRE 3,59 3,167 - 201 1,256 - 8220
At 31 March 2020: RZB-EE=A=1-0:
Cost A 5409 8,370 9,682 7,845 7,108 1,163 40177
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERAE
and impairment (1813 (5203 (9,682) (7,644) (6,452) (1163) (31,957)
Net carrying amount FHFE 3,506 3167 - 201 1,25 - 8220

146 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 4%




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS HRAR MR

31 March 2021 —Z=-—%=A=+—H

=

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT- 12. ¥ - BERRZREBURGEHAEEE
OF-USE ASSETS (continued) (%)
(a) Property, plant and equipment (continued) (a) Y% - RERZME @
At 31 March 2021, the Group’s certain property, plant and RZEZ—F=ZA=+—8H &%
equipment and leasehold land included in right-of-use assets FAAEEE (M 2( )) fRmE
(note 12(b)) with a carrying amount of HK$23,762,000 (2020: E4523,762,0008 0 (& —ZF :
HK$24,648,000) were pledged to secure general banking 24,648,000/87T) 2 W% ~ BB RERE K
facilities granted to Group. HETHE FEMR  EARTAER —
MIRTTIEE 2R -
At 31 March 2020, the Group’s management identified certain RZEZEF=A=+—H " $%IE’JE
subsidiaries which continued to sustain losses and estimated BE#RE TRERGEHENHER
corresponding recoverable amounts of their property, plant BEmE - ﬁ%&ﬂﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁfmﬁﬁTW@
and equipment. Based on these estimates, an impairment loss S BIEZEME  RZZE_TF=H
of HK$3,579,000 was recognised to write down the carrying _+ B #ERREE183,579,000/8 7T
amounts of these items of property, plant and equipment to their AMUREZ S Y% - BB REEEIR B fURRE
recoverable amount of nil as at 31 March 2020. The recoverable ﬁ BENMEICELAT - ME - BE
amount of the items of property, plant and equipment was 1B B eyl U El e AR IR B ERT
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow BRETE - ZEtEHEADNEAERRER
projections based on financial budgets covering the remaining B - WEMEEEENBR TNERAFH
useful lives of the respective items of property, plant and M ETRERReRETEA
equipment.
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the REBEGEAEEE 2 FEERFAZEN
movements during the year are as follows: N
Leasehold
land Buildings Motor vehicles Total
HE+H BF "E =H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FAEL
As at 1 April 2019 —NEMA—A 23,134 743 5,285 29,162
Additions NEY 1,773 5,049 - 6,822
Depreciation (note 6) & (fizk6) (840) (367) (1,180) (2,387)
Impairment (note 6) A E (P 3E6) - (5/415) (114) (5,529)
Disposal & - - (841) (841)
Exchange realignment P i F - 26 (50) (24)
As at 31 March 2020 and RIB-ZZBF=A=+—H

1 April 2020 kZZ-ZTFNA—H 24,067 36 3,100 27,203
Additions NE - 257 - 257
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries /L EHTE A A (FT5E32)

(note 32) - (200) - (200)
Depreciation (note 6) & (fiEe) (864) (174) (1,133) (2,171)
Reversal of impairment (note 6)  JB{E &[] (Ffi556) - 194 - 194
Exchange realignment BEE 34, - (37) 27 (10)
As at 31 March 2021 —F=A=+—*H 23,203 76 1,994 25,273
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12.

13.

148 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 4

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-
OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

At 31 March 2020, the Group’s management identified certain
subsidiaries which continued to sustain losses and estimated
corresponding recoverable amounts of their right-of-use assets.
Based on these estimates, an impairment loss of HK$5,529,000
was recognised to write down the carrying amounts of these
items of right-of-use assets to their recoverable amount of Nil as
at 31 March 2020. The recoverable amount of the items of right-
of-use assets was determined based on a value-in-use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
the remaining lease terms of the respective right-of-use assets.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

12. % BERRBURERAEEE

(48)

(b) FHEEE@
WZEZFEF=A=+—H " ZISEIE’J%*
BE#HAETHESRSBIENNER
& ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁmﬁﬁamﬁuﬁz@ﬂﬁo
BEZEG R EF=A=1+—
BRI EE185,529,00058 7T  LAMUR
ZEFAREEEENERESREMA
WESEAT - FAEEEEBHATKD
CEERIBERBENEEET ZiTEA
EDRAENREEBERREENST
RN HIEENRSRETEA -

REME

2021 2020

—B-—fF —ECTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Carrying amount at beginning of year FHIZERERTE 120,437 125,798
Changes in fair value of investment properties ~ EWENFEEZEH 4,305 (2,268)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% 3,343 (3,093)
Carrying amount at end of year FRZRMB R 128,085 120,437

The Group's investment properties consist of one residential property
in Hong Kong, four office properties and several serviced apartments in
Mainland China and one residential property in Singapore. The directors
of the Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of three classes of asset, i.e., residential properties, office properties
and serviced apartments, based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of each property. The Group’s investment property in Hong Kong
was revalued on 31 March 2021 based on a valuation performed
by management with reference to recent market transactions at
HK$6,800,000. The Group's investment properties in Shenzhen and
Chengdu were revalued on 31 March 2021 based on valuations
performed by ValQuest Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuer, at HK$72,633,000 and HK$26,735,000,
respectively. The Group’s investment property in Singapore was
revalued on 31 March 2021 based on valuation performed by TEHO
Property Consultants Pte. Ltd., independent professionally qualified
valuer, at HK$21,917,000. Each year, the Group's chief financial
officer decides to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for
the external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s chief financial
officer has discussions with the valuers on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuations are performed for annual
financial reporting.

REBZEENEBRUNES 2 —BEED
¥ URFEAMZNBHRAZEMERZER
BRABURMRITNE 2 —BEEME - K
NAERHER  HBREMEIHE - FHER
b ZEREMENEDA=EEE  BE=E
ME - MRAEMERRBEAAE - AEEMR
EAEZREVENERE2RIOIEMER S
EITHE RZZEZ—F=-A=+—HE*A
6,800,000 7T ° ANEBRI ORI KK E 2 &
MERBLBEESEREEMTHET (BB
BRAR#EITHE RZE-_—F=ZA=+—
B RIEf4A72,633,00078 7T 526,735,000/
TLo REBENRIFINE 2R EMERBILEE
A EMIEERTEHO Property Consultants Pte.
Ltd #/TEHE RZE-—F=A=+—H=F
%/421,917,00087T - AEB BRIV FEES

FREREZINDHER  AEHAREEZY
EETINDEE - TBIKHREMSAG - &
BCOBUMNETESEEZE - RRFEM
SERREITHER - $%IEF%ﬁ%%E§
B ER b ERE G ELS
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31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REMEmw
The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating REMEDBRBREEHERTE=H - E—F
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 14 to the BMEFEEHNGE P BREMT14 -

consolidated financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on BRAAEBIREYE 2 #E— S BN E200
page 200. Ao

Fair value hierarchy AT EESERES

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRINTEEEREMEZ A FEEABER
the Group's investment properties: B

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2021 using
R-B-Z-H=ZA=+—-H2
DN EETERER
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

SER™S EXRAEE EBERTAHE

ZHE BWAE L PN=|
(F—8) (B=FE) =) a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FExT FHET FHET FHET

Recurring fair value T EIE LB ERT
measurement for: BEE

Residential properties FEWHE - - 28,717 28,717
Office properties BE/NES ) ES - - 72,633 72,633
Serviced apartments R AE - - 26,735 26,735
- - 128,085 128,085
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31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

13. REVEwW

D EESREE @@

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2020 using

RZEZTF=A=+—HZ
NHEEERER

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

TRERTS BEARAHE BEXRTAEE

2B BAE BAE
(B—E) (BZ=E) (E=E) a&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHETT

Recurring fair value TR EIE LR RT
measurement for: BEZ

Residential properties FEYHE - - 26,623 26,623
Office properties BN ES - - 67,603 67,603
Serviced apartments R AE - - 26,211 26,211
- - 120,437 120,437

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2020: Nil).
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31 March 2021

— = —

=

—F=A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REME W
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ’D\SFF{E%?&;%E’F%(@)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of DEAANTEESARBE=E 2 A FEE
the fair value hierarchy: SHER
Residential Office Serviced
properties properties apartments
TEWE MAEYE BREXAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 —hEFmMA—H
ZERETRR 27,340 71,797 26,661
Net gains/(losses) from a fair value iﬁATﬁﬁni’%WﬁEu?Z
adjustment recognised in the NEEFE
consolidated statement of Wz, (B518) 55
profit or loss 569 (4,194) 1,357
Exchange realignment VE 3% (1,286) - (1,807)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 HRZ-Z-_T&F=A=+—H
and 1 April 2020 EZFE-FTFMA—H
ZRE SR 26,623 67,603 26,211
Net gains/(losses) from a fair value RirEEmiRNER L
adjustment recognised in the NEEEFAE
consolidated statement of profit Was,/ (B518) /F 58
or loss 868 5,030 (1,593)
Exchange realignment PE 3% 1,226 - 2,117
Carrying amount at 31 March 2021 R=-ZT-_—$=H=+—H
ZERESE 28,717 72,633 26,735
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13.

152

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs

to the valuation of investment properties:

BREWE @

NP EESEHREE@®

TSR R SR B ) 208 T (5 B FS AT BB A B
MREEHAME

Valuation Significant Value/Range

techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)

fh{E i ERFAEERMAE H{E HE (nETH)

Residential property situated Market comparison Adjusted unit price HK$12,639
in Hong Kong approach (per square foot) (2020: HK$12,104)
N BEBZETWE M5B IRRBLERE(EFHFR) 12,639/87T

Residential property situated
in Singapore

RIRF IR 2 (W

Office properties situated
in Mainland China

RIe B A 2 A=)

Serviced apartments situated
in Mainland China

P B 2 IRIEA AR

Under the market comparison approach, the properties are valued on
the market basis assuming sales in their existing state with the benefit
of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant markets. Comparison is based on
prices realised in actual transactions or asking prices of comparable
properties. Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the

Market comparison
approach

MHLLEVE

Market comparison
approach

[Ez=4 v

Market comparison
approach

TS LLEVE

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

IR BBER (BFIK)

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

AR EMER (BFTTK)

Adjusted unit price
(per square meter)

ERHEEMER(EFITK)

differences between such properties in terms of age, time, location,

floor level and other relevant factors.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted unit price would result
in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the investment

properties.
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(ZZT =T : 12,1048 7T)

SGD20,541
(2020: SGD20,000)
20,5413 7T

(ZZ =4 : 20,000 7T)

RMB61,353
(2020: RMB61,852)
AR#61,3537T

—E-FF : AR¥61,8527T)

RMB20,774
(2020: RMB22,061)
AR#20,7747T

—ZEFTF - AR¥22,0617T)

REBETISLEE  MERTSEEETHE
ERBRRAEARE
ERZAALBHERE - LBRABRRZ 58
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14. LEASES AND LEASE LIABILITIES

e RS HRAR MR

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

14. HEREEGSS

The Group as a lessee AEBERABEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, buildings and REBRELEPERANERELM BFRA
motor vehicles used in its operations. Land has lease term of 50 years. BIEBRIVHEEARY - LA RS0F < 12
Leases of buildings generally have lease terms between two and three FHORHBEEME=F 28 » MAENHEE
years, while motor vehicles generally have lease term of five years. BERTF - —BME  AEENEEAEH
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the LASNEEFI AT E B E o
leased assets outside the Group.
(@) Lease liabilities (a) HEEE
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the movements HEaENRAERFANZESHNAT
during the year are as follows:
2021 2020
—EC--F “ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHAT
As at 1 April REA—H 6,712 4,243
New leases HEE 257 5,049
Accretion of interest recognised FIERHF) S50
during the year (note 7) GEY)) 177 271
Payments (NE (3,013) (2,820)
Revision of a lease term arising TRE AR HA A
from a change in the non-cancellable ELzBEREN
period of a lease (2,526) -
Exchange realignment PE W% 38 (31
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 1,645 6,712
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HE 2FHH -
Current liabilities nEBE 870 3,624
Non-current liabilities ERBER 775 3,088
1,645 6,712
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 38 to THEBENIE B DITRERE M SR

the consolidated financial statements.

AE38FINEE
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31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

14. LEASES AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) The amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit or
loss in relation to leases are as follows:

14.

HERHEEE®

REBEREBA @
(b) HEERGEBRRTHEINSEAT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Interest on lease liabilities MEBEMNE 177 271
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets TREEEZIERA 2,171 2,387
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of ERAEEE CRERE),HE
right-of-use assets (194) 5,529
Expense relating to short-term leases and B THN_Z =T F
other leases with remaining lease terms ZA=t+—A%Za%
ended on or before 31 March 2020 KR EAHE M E A &
(included in administrative expenses)* BAMRAY GEATTERFEY) *
(note 6) (MzEe) 1,578 3,336
Revision of lease term arising from HE T HEEHEEE 2 HEH
a change in the non-cancellable period EEACIED)
of a lease (note 6) (2,526) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RERER BT 1,206 11,523
* Included in “lease payments not included in the measurement of lease * FFARE BB mERM [ R A EAR

liabilities” in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

(c) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) consisting of one
residential property in Hong Kong, four office properties and several
serviced apartments in Mainland China, and one residential property
in Singapore under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the
leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$4,151,000
(2020: HK$4,920,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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14. LEASES AND LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

15.

The Group as a lessor (continued)

At 31 March 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the
Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants are as follows:

e RS HRAR MR

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

14. HERHEESE®@

AEBEEREEA @
RZEZ—F=RA=+—H AEHEHEHFT
AT HSH A A TR B T B R A B RS PR UL R B
REEMNZOT

2021 2020
—E-—F T EAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Within one year —FR 3,671 3,530
After one year but within two years iR —FERFEN 1,926 1,970
After two years but within three years HBEmEE=FN - 1,641
5,597 7,141
GOODWILL 15. B
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
At beginning and end of year: FYIRER :
Cost (DN 32,780 32,780
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (32,780) (32,780)
Net carrying amount BRIEVFEE - -

Impairment testing of goodwill and other intangible
assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets acquired through business
combination are allocated to the cash-generating unit of the
semiconductor distribution business and the mobile application
development business for impairment testing.

Semiconductor distribution business
Goodwill allocated to semiconductor distribution business was fully
impaired in previous years.

Mobile application development business
The business was terminated and the goodwill allocated to mobile
application development business was fully impaired in previous years.

BERAMETEERENR

BREBAHBBZHEREMEBTYEES D
FEE+BROEEB LT HREREARERY
ZIREBEEBEM - LERERR -

FEBDWHEL
DEEVERIVHEBIHECRLE—FER
BURE °

FHREREARBER
EZEBORIEADEETFHEREARERS
ZEAEERBEFEEBONE
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31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. HttEEE

Club Customer Mobile
memberships  Trademarks relationships  application Total
Lt g EFEE FHERER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TExT TEx TExT TiEn
31 March 2021 —TZ-F=A=1-H
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020: RZZE-ZEF=A=+—-HK
—ToTFERA-A:

Cost BRA 4,514 87 23,998 9,400 37,999

Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZFtEERRE (664) (87) (23,998) (9,400) (34,149)

Net carrying amount HREFE 3,850 - - - 3,850
Cost at 1 April 2020, net of accumulated RZEZTFMA—AMMA -

amortisation and impairment Nk 25t RRE 3,850 - - - 3,850
Amortisation (note 6) B3H (F13t6) (19) - - - (19)
Exchange realignment fE i 1 - - _ 1
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=A=1—H 3,832 - - - 3,832
At 31 March 2021: WZEZ—F=A=+—8:

Cost BRA 4,514 87 23,998 9,400 37,999

Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZEHEERRE (682) (87) (23,998) (9,400) (34,167)

Net carrying amount BREFE 3,832 - - - 3,832
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31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. HIEFEE @
Club Customer Mobile
memberships  Trademarks  relationships ~ application Total
o2 [ EP@ER FHERREN Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TET TAT TAT TATL

31 March 2020 ZTZEF=A=1-H
At 1 April 2019: RZZE-NFMA—R:

Cost BA 4,682 87 25,602 9,400 39,771

Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZFHEERRE (448) (87) (25,602) (9,400) (35,537)

Net carrying amount REFE 4,234 - - - 4,234
Cost at 1 April 2019, net of accumulated RZE—NFEA—BRME -

amortisation and impairment B BETEE LORE 4,234 - - - 4,234
Disposal HeE (163) - - - (163)
Impairment (note 6) E (Ff7E6) (200) - - - (200)
Amortisation (note 6) B3 (F1356) (19 - - - (19
Exchange realignment fE i R 2) _ _ _ 2)
At 31 March 2020 RZEZZF=A=1—H 3,850 - - - 3,850
At 31 March 2020: RZEZTF=A=1—R:

Cost BRA 4,514 87 23,998 9,400 37,999

Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZEEENRE (664) (87) (23,998) (9,400) (34,149)

Net carrying amount REFE 3,850 - - - 3,850
In the prior year, certain club memberships were impaired due to the REBEFE  EFEfREDEMERR =
decrease in market value. The directors had consequently determined to =D RTERRE TeHENREEE200,000
recognise an impairment loss on certain club memberships amounting BT S ER AR ERRME - CRAATE
to HK$200,000 and their recoverable amount of HK$750,000 was {BRL 2 Hi B AR TE 1% 5 9 AT W 812 %6 750,000
determined using the fair value less costs of disposal with reference to HBIT ©

the market price quoted for the relevant club memberships.
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REELEZRE
2021 2020
—E-—F TEEAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Share of net assets PMEEEFE 1,035,202 799,718
Financial guarantees provided (note 27) B IR M R (M5E27) 73,646 43,301
1,108,848 843,019
Particulars of the material joint venture are as follows: BREEREFBNOT -
Percentage of
Bk
Place of
Issued incorporation Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name share capital and business interest power sharing  activities
A% BRITRE TMRIREERE REEER REE  oEEF  TEEHR
AVP Electronics Limited* 180,000,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 75 50 75 Trading of electronic
components
RIEARAR* 180,000,000/ & i 0 BEEFLH
The above joint venture has a financial year end of 31 December. LT EErECHBREREAERR T Z A
The consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material =+—H -HKEMBHEER —A—HBE=HA
transactions between 1 January and 31 March. =+—HIZEARBIELFE
AVP Electronics Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “AVPEL RAEBRAGLREMBAR (RBIREEE])
Group”), which are considered a material group of joint ventures of the WRAEAEB EREELESE - BERE
Group, are accounted for using the equity method. AR ©
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REELEZRE®

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TRINTRAIBESEEZHBEERNEE (BEENEg
of AVPEL Group adjusted for any differences in accounting policies SRR = Z{EH AR UA R B & B SRR AR

and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial H SR 2 R

statements:

2021 2020
—E-—F T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBELIEE 1,796,383 1,526,001
Other current assets HibmsEE 7,749,140 6,464,000
Current assets MENEEE 9,545,523 7,990,001
Non-current assets EMEEE 109,365 28,671

Financial liabilities, excluding trade and other SRIBECTRIEENE 2R

payables Ko EoAth FE AT 5/IE) (6,306,296) (5,909,591)
Other current liabilities HinB & B (1,967,218) (1,039,254)
Current liabilities mEBE (8,273,514) (6,948,845)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE (1,105) (3,537)
Net assets attributable to owners of RIEERAREE AEGEEFE

AVP Electronics Limited 1,380,269 1,066,290
Reconciliation to the Group’s interests in HAEERGEPRE R

the joint ventures:

Proportion of the Group’s ownership REE TR LG 75% 75%
Group's share of net assets attributable to REBSRRAEBEERATEAA

owners of AVP Electronics Limited [EEEEFE 1,035,202 799,718
Financial guarantees provided (note 27) BIRHPBER (H327) 73,646 43,301
Carrying amount of the investments KREREEE 1,108,848 843,019
Revenue Wz 28,612,111 26,095,254
Interest income FBEUA 3,091 9,512
Depreciation e (5,261) (3,297)
Interest expenses FEEH (71,186) (130,322)
Tax I8 (79,127) (41,163)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENREE AL

for the year 422,479 241,791
Dividends paid BEATARE 108,500 93,000
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REFENTIZ2IRE

160 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 &3

2021 2020

—E-—F TEEAF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Share of net assets DIEEEFE 7,952 1,758
Goodwill EES 1,878 -
Provision for impairment ERE (2,098) (1,510)
Due from associates JEURES &N FIF0E 987 115
8,719 363

Less: Current portion B R ENER Y (987) (115)
Non-current portion IEMENEE D 7,732 248

The balances due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the balances due from
associates approximate to their fair values. There was no recent history
of default for past due amounts for amounts due from associates. As
at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

One of the associates has a financial year end of 31 December and
the consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material
transactions between 1 January and 31 March. All other associates have
a financial year end of 31 March, which is coterminous with that of the
Group.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses of
certain associates, namely Xocial Limited and Signeo Venture Limited
because the share of losses of these associates exceeded the Group’s
interests in these associates and the Group has no obligation to take
up further losses. The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share
of losses of these associates cumulatively at the end of the year were
HK$3,109,000 (2020: HK$3,109,000).

An associate has sustained losses for recent years. During the year,
an impairment of HK$588,000 (2020: HK$1,510,000) (note 6) was
recognised for the investments in associates in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss based on the recoverable amount of Nil
(2020: HK$248,000), which has been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projection is 12% (2020: 15%).

F& é‘f*é’& HIRZA ﬁ%i%ﬂ}fﬁﬁi =Y~
REFRAE Jfﬁ“uﬁl 2R RIFURZ B8R IRE
TREHER Trﬁfﬁ*ﬁ °F§H$ZH§"F%’AT RIAL
BEMSEAAMENRE N2 —FR
TECEF A=+ ANBEREREFERT
EX-

—EBE AT EFLR AT A=+—H

REAMBREAERN—A—BEZA=+—
AZEARBIEHBE - FIELMBEAT
MREEFEABASAS+— B  BAEE
1% o

AR D15 TH & 27 (BXocial Limited &
Signeo Venture Limited)Z E1EBBA KB Z

SHENR 2R - AAREEN BB BAEE
—iﬂg’ﬁ@ AR E B KIEERE S G2 F
ERAZER  REBAERSEZFHER
RIEBEZ FRAAEHER3,109,0008 7T (ZF
ZZ4F : 3,109,000 7T) °

—MEBE R RN FRIFELRSEE - FA -
gﬁﬂﬁz@é%ﬁf(_j_ji 248,000/ 7T)
BT = F %%EPEW 6%%/& RIZ R ETE
Wﬂzﬁsss 000/ 7C(ZZF =% : 1,510,000/
7o) (Miske) RIR(E A ER &S AR E 1 E i /E %
ERFHENMBEENRSREEN ZEA
BETEET) - REREEAFMANMIEERAS
12% (=T =T : 15%) °
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
Group's associates that are not individually material:

e RS HRAR MR

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

18. REFE QAT Z2IRE @
THRITAEEERLTEA Y WLEAT 2B
KARHAE -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Share of the associates’ gain/(loss) for the year — 2GHE& A FFERUZE (EE) 139 (440)
Share of the associates’ total comprehensive DREE AR EERA

income/(loss) (E598) 4% 139 (440)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBREERFZ
investments in the associates HARmBE 7,732 248

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

w.gﬂﬁéﬁ&¥%ﬁﬂﬁ2ﬁﬂﬁ

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k=S FHT FATT
Investment in convertible bonds ARRERIRE (a) - 4,405
Listed equity investments IR E 2,547 12,919
Listed bond investments EERRE (b) 33,040 42,206
Equity investment traded over-the-counter HBINZ GBI E (0 9,375 -
Unlisted equity investments FE LR AR E (d) 3,222 20,309
Key management insurance contracts FEEBABRBELY (e) 24,701 23,891
72,885 103,730

Analysed for reporting purpose as: BEREMNER
Current assets MEEE 48,184 79,839
Non-current assets EMBNEE 24,701 23,891
72,885 103,730

The above listed equity investments and listed bond investments were
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they
were held for trading.

The investment in convertible bonds and key management insurance
contracts were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.

bt EMBEAREN ETESFRENESER
BaEAYEENRZEREE  REARZSE

KERFEE -

AR EFREREIEEEABRREKES
U BERBEBERRATEAEIEZERE
E REARAOREREY THABEAXINAE
KRS
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31 March 2021

—E—%=A=+—H

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The unlisted equity investments and an equity investment traded over-
the-counter were classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as the Group has not irrevocably elected to classify the
unlisted equity investments and an equity investment traded over-the-
counter at fair value through other comprehensive income.

162

Notes:

(a)

AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 %3k

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group subscribed the convertible
bonds issued by IE Limited (“IEL") with aggregate principals of approximately
HK$19,425,000 on 8 June 2016 and HK$38,850,000 on 3 November 2016,
respectively. The bonds were interest-bearing at a fixed rate of 4% per annum
and repayable within two years since their respective issuance dates, which can
be converted into common shares of [EL, at exercise prices of KRW500 and
KRW819 per share, respectively, at any time after one year from their respective
issuance dates. The convertible bonds issued by IEL were in default upon their
respective maturity dates. During the year, management has assessed the fair
values of the convertible bonds issued by IEL based on the valuation report
performed by an independent valuer with reference to the available financial
information of IEL and final price value from Credit Event Auction by Creditex.
In the opinion of management, the fair value of the convertible bonds was
minimal.

The listed bond investments have coupon rates ranging from 4.70% to 8.75 %
(2020: 4.70% to 7.25%) per annum and maturity dates from 19 April 2021 to
28 September 2022 (2020: 4 April 2021 to 15 December 2022).

During the year, the Group further subscribed ordinary shares of Tooniplay Co.,
Ltd. (“Tooniplay”), which principally engaged in mobile game development
business, at a consideration of US$500,000 (equivalent to HK$3,885,000). On
5 November 2020, Tooniplay was registered on the K-OTC market in South
Korea, a platform for transaction of unlisted shares, and its shares commenced
trading. Accordingly, the investment was classified as an equity investment
traded over-the-counter in current year and classified as an unlisted equity
investment in the prior year. As at 31 March 2020 and 2021, the Group held
more than 20% equity interests in Tooniplay, which is an associate of the
Group.

As this associate was held as part of the venture capital organisation’s
investment portfolio, it was carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value. This treatment is permitted by HKAS 28 “/nvestments
in Associates and Joint Ventures” which allows investments held by venture
capital organisations to be excluded from its scope where those investments
are designated, upon initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss
and accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 9, with changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period of
change.

The Group has equity interests in Luxury Choice Investments Limited (which
principally engaged in watch production and distribution business in Hong
Kong), Global ESports Limited (which principally engaged in electronic sport
team management and event management), Mad Runway Holdings Limited
(which principally engaged in operation of an online fashion platform in
Mainland China), Urban City Joint Stock Company (which principally engaged
in e-commerce business in Vietnam) and Connectivity Ventures Fund, LP (which
was an investment fund and principally invested in development of microchips
business).

19. EBEREATFEEIIRZEHME
=@
I FRRARE RSN SRARED EAE
BEXEATEEIEY $REE  BEEEA
2 [0 N A RS HIR B S I R AR A R
BINZ BRAREHEAE B2 EKAR
AFBEFIE -

it

(a)

REBEE-_Z—+tE=ZA=+—ALFE  £&£E
FREEAIE Limited (NELD) A BRIRZ=F—RF AN
AR R"F+—AZBRBTASBED 7
#719,425,0007%8 7T % 38,850,000/ 7T 2 A A% (&
% o ZEEHIRETEFFRIEFTE - ARHSE
BITAHMBTMEANER  YAIRBASEHETAH
Bt — 18 2 E IR 5 BRI TEE EAR500
BENSIOREEBBRAIELY TR - RESEH
ZEEAE - ELBEITZ AT MRRESREL - FR - B
BEDREE L HEMERATSMIEL B ER K
Creditex#){Z E S {FFAE (Credit Event Auction)ffT
[ REBEMGRREOGERSTEIELETZ A
BRREFNATEE - EERERR  THRRES
2R BIHEESR -

LTTEFRENERFMENT470%E8.75%
(ZZZZF 1 470%E7.25%)  BRIPE=-F
——FWAt+ABEZZE=_=ZFhA=F+NH(=
ToTE TN AMAE-T
+=A+HB) -

FAN - AEEE—$RBETooniplay Co., Ltd.
([Tooniplayl » FEH B RENERF ) OF
WA - R {E/R500,0003% 7T (HHE 43,885,000/
JL) c MZZTZZEF+—FAHAH - Tooniplay/t§
BRSNS GELMRNBNRHFA) M RER
DHIERS - Bt - ZIRERKNFEEWDEAL
INZGRARE RN EFE A B RIE ETRAR
B -R-ZB_EBFR-ZE-_—F=A=+—H"
REEFRATooniplayiBiE20% A + Tooniplayfk
BAREEZHE AR -

MR ZEE A B DERAIRER 2 REMRE — A
DFAH  BMREEMBRAXRARRATEET
BR o ULRRIE D NEB BRI ERIE 28 [REE A
AIREEDFRE| A ZAERFTA] i i AR
MEFE 2R ARG ERBCIEEAEBRE
BRTFEENE  WRREEBFEREEIESR
AR MEAFEEZFNELEHHAN 2 HE
BamRiER - BINZSRESHEERBE -

78X \)#E A Luxury Choice Investments Limited
(FZEEEBUEFHREMERDHET) - Global
ESports Limited (EER FEFRREKERRE
E)EIR) + Mad Runway Holdings Limited (£ ZfE+
B A FLEEE ERFEFA) » Urban City Joint
Stock Company (X BTEMEARFEFEEER) R
Connectivity Ventures Fund, LP (RIS EEE KT8
BEBERMG A EB)NRE
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

20.

21.

(e)

As at 31 March 2021, the key management insurance contracts represented
life insurance plans with investment elements relating to two members of
key management personnel of the Group and the joint venture. The total
sum insured is US$15,800,000 (approximately HK$122,800,000) (2020:
US$15,800,000 (approximately HK$122,800,000)) with an annual minimum
guaranteed return of 2%. Certain key management insurance contract of
HK$7,990,000 (2020: HK$7,736,000) was pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group as at 31 March 2021.

As at 31 March 2021, if the Group withdrew from the insurance contracts,
the accounts value, net of surrender charges of US$340,000 (approximately
HK$2,642,000) (2020: US$357,000 (approximately HK$2,770,000)), would be
refunded to the Group. The amount of the surrender charges decreased over
time and was no longer required from the 19th year of contract conclusion
onwards.

19. #&iB

e RS HRAR MR

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

BRRAVEEIR2EHE

= (@)
BisE - (48)

(e)

RZZEZ—F=A=+—0 FEEBERKRAE
HERAAEEREECEMETEETIRAEEH
I E R AFRERTE - £ {R48%E /415,800,000
£55(4122,800,0008 ) (Z T -F4 :
15,800,0003 7T (4£7122,800,000/ 7)) * FE&
BRFERIFHEE2% - R=ZT=—F=A=+—
H BTFxZTEERKEE47,990,0008 7L (=
T =T ¢ 7,736,000/ L) B EHESFE T A
EEM—MRIBITRE -

R-TB-—F=ZA=+—0 - HAEERELRE
A8 - RIRPEERINBRRIRE 340,000 7T (49
2,642,000/ 7T) (ZE =4 : 357,000% 7T (49
2,770,000/ 70) ) B RIEEARERE - RREESTE
PERSRI MR TR L - MRAHNFRITHE 19565
BT BEEERIRE -

INVENTORIES 20. &

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTE
HK$"000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Finished goods BN 33,736 82,678

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EWE SR
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&xT FET
Trade receivables EUE SER 46,832 89,743
Impairment RE (11,946) (10,808)
34,886 78,935
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21.

164 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 43

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with customers vary with the type of
products supplied. Invoices are normally payable within 30 to 45 days
of issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to over 60 days. For customer-specific and highly specialised
items, deposits in advance or letters of credit may be required prior
to the acceptance and delivery of the products. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise
credit risk. A credit committee consisting of senior management and
the directors of the Company has been established to review and
approve large customer credits. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is
as follows:

21.

W E 5 R @)
AEBMAEFITY Y R BIERE THESES
ERIMAFTR - BRAEANEEZEHE30
ZASKAEN  WEBRT RALBHERES EF
Z BT EEBB60K - RS ERIE
TREAEMNIER  EERTBERINES
AR ARMES RBIERE - BEEF
PR EEE LR o AEBB N E R E > fE
WO TEE MRS - X I R IR
NEEREEERR - HAATZERELE
RESERTEEZE8QDERYT  UEER
WIEEFABREE o B0 EXFR - URAE
ErREKESERRARESASMIERS
B RAEtESAEREERR - AEBILF
RZEESREETAEARREMEERA
W) o EUNE BEEETEHFIS, o

ENBHZAMAMBERRE  RESHRS
REEZ WS BIRRZ BREe DO

2021 2020
—E-—F TE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Within 1 month REDEEN 11,079 35,125
1 to 2 months 122188 3,573 24,995
2 to 3 months 2E3EA 376 3,643
3 to 12 months 3212M@ A 15,456 14,811
Over 12 months wBiE121E A 4,402 361
34,886 78,935
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade BN E GERR Z B EREEEES T
receivables are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
At beginning of year F47 10,808 11,490
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) losses, B, CRIERRE) &8 -
net (note 6) JFHE (P 5E6) 1,138 (580)
Amounts written off as uncollectible YE AN A] Uk [B] FRIE R H - (100)
Exchange realignment fE 5, = - )
At end of year FR 11,946 10,808
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. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BRWE SRR @

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a &S BB AR EEEETRED T - A
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates TEEHEEEE  c BEXRDEREEHELUE
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments BRI ZERF 5 E08E 5808 E B EETE (A
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating). The REPEAMTR) - ZAERM T EXR LS
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of R BERREEENARRRE B ESHE
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at RS - BRI BRI AR TR Y
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts SRR AR

of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TREIEREERESITH B BEAREEEY
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: Z SRR EERRAER
As at 31 March 2021 R-ZB=-Z-H$=F=+—H
Past due
bl
Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months 12 months Total
WE HR-EA —-E=@AF =@EAML +=fEA &t
Expected credit loss rate EHEEEER 0.22% 0.99% 1.29% 4.12% 94.11% 25.51%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BELE(TET) 11,064 3,545 4,479 15,868 11,876 46,832
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) BEEEEE(TEL) 24 35 58 653 11,176 11,946
As at 31 March 2020 R -_ZBF=AF=+—H
Past due
bk i
Less than Tto3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months 12 months Total
e SR—@A —Z=@EA =Z@EANE +ZfEA CE
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEE 0.16% 0.12% 0.76% 1.52% 96.67% 12.04%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) FELE(TEL) 35,181 25,026 3,671 15,040 10,825 89,743
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) BHEEEE(TEL) 56 31 28 229 10,464 10,808
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22.

166

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

22. FANFMIER - BRERAEMEBRFIER

2021 2020
—E-—F TEEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
Prepayments TEf /IR 23,400 23,870
Deposits and other receivables e RHE MW GRIA 20,501 18,783
Impairment allowance B (4,946) (5,016)
38,955 37,637

Portion classified as non-current: DERIIERE 2D
Prepayments and deposits AN FIERIES (23,910) (23,968)
Current portion MENFL Y 15,045 13,669

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits,
deposits with suppliers and loan receivables. An impairment analysis
is performed at each reporting date by applying a loss rate approach
with reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate
is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied for where
there are no comparable companies and the balances were in default
as at 31 March 2021 was 100% (2020: 100%) on the gross other
receivables of HK$4,946,000 (2020: HK$5,016,000) before impairment
allowance. The Group assessed the loss allowance for deposits and
other receivables of HK$15,555,000 (2020: HK$13,767,000) under the
application of HKFRS 9 was insignificant.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

ReEREMEBWGIEEBEMAERS - HED
B MERER - NEHREEEH - AEBIKRA
EBEERIVX2EASENBI BIELEET
BEDNT o BEEBNEERIREDFENU
B E BT AR B R R AOE AR B TER] o 1
TE-—F=ZA=+—0 EEAELER
RIREHELONBRT @ sEBERERE
28 (HNBRRE R RT) 4,946,000 L (2= F
& 15,016,000/ 70) FRA Z E1BE A100% (=
T-FE100%) - KEBFE - BAEE
B R B EOSRE  d N E b fEUEUIA
15,555,000/ 7T (ZZE-F 4 : 13,767,000/8
T BB R B T LA o

Hit WSR2 REBRREESHMT

2021 2020

—E-—F —EITF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At beginning of year F1) 5,016 8,917
Reversal of impairment (note 6) SR EREE (BiFEe) - (3,901)
Amounts written off as uncollectible {E BT T Y o] R IB Hl 85 (70) -
At end of year FR 4,946 5,016

The financial assets included in the above balances that were not
impaired relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default or past due amounts. As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.
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23. BERERBAEHEB RERFR

2021 2020

—E-—F T T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Cash and bank balances Be RIRITET 123,678 85,762
Deposits with other financial institutions R E A B 2 175K 620 1,985
Cash and cash equivalents BekZERIREER 124,298 87,747

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to approximately
HK$448,000 (2020: HK$308,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks and other financial institutions with no recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES

RRERREAERE  AEEUARE (TAR
M) FHEZ RS RIBITE T 40 5448,0008 7T
(ZZ—F4 : 308,00087T) - AREARAI AR
HpAHMEE AW - RIEPERZ INE
EIRIEDI M AETE - SERMNESERTE - A%
BB R E R R ITINE £ 2 RITIB AR
HiBEMEE -

FHRRBITZRERBERITZEAFRFNE -
BB R EREUNE - BRERTFRNF—H
E-BATTE  DRFAEEZARREH
RME - WIRE B 258 8 H7F 508 = FREUF
B B DERRERR I ZRIT RO HYL &
R FLER A S BIHEAE -

24. J{Eﬁ‘;’;%,ﬂﬁﬁk s BlRE R ERE

2021 2020

—E——F —ETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Trade payables BB SRR 4,990 21,626
Deposits received Bz e 2,357 1,534
Accrued expenses EETER 21,268 20,320
28,615 43,480
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24. TRADE PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 24,

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

ENEZERR ERIREREGTE
A @)

BEMZEIEE  RBEPRERN Y ENE
SRR EBAMT -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Trade payables: FERRTE SR -
Current RPER 437 17,225
1 to 30 days 1230H - 697
31 to 60 days 31260H 76 15
Over 60 days Hide0H 4,477 3,689
4,990 21,626

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
between 30 and 90 days.

BN B ZIRFRTITE R - —ARIN30E90H R4

= o
B

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. EHEE
2021 2020
—E——f T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Short-term advances received from customers VU &I=F -0
Sale of products HEEM 36,410 5,785

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
semiconductor and consumer products. At 1 April 2019, contract
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$16,298,000. The increase/
decrease in contract liabilities in 2021 and 2020 was mainly due to the
increase/decrease in short-term advances received from customers in
relation to the sale of products at the end of the year.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 26. MiSRITER
2021 2020
—E--F “Z-%F
Effective Effective
annual annual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
BERFR%E F#A Thn ERERE o=t TATL
Current R
Import and trust receipt loans - unsecured EORETNEER - EEA - - - 237%3.13% 2020 97,811
2021 2020
—EC—F —ECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable within one year or on —FANREREE
demand ZIRITE R - 97,811
All the Group’s bank borrowings bore interest at floating rates at the REBZFBRITERIVZHRERRAZSF]
end of the reporting period. The carrying amounts of the Group's KRB - KEBZHBRITERZEE S5 E
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their fair values. HEAFEERE -
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATION 27. MBERER

During the year, the Group has provided financial guarantees to joint
ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted to these joint
ventures, and the Group will make payments to reimburse the lenders
upon failure of the guaranteed entity to make payments when due. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
the guarantees.

The Group does not provide financial guarantees except for limited
circumstances. All guarantees are approved by the Board of Directors.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of the
ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less the cumulative
amount of income recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected
payments to reimburse the holders (i.e. the banks) for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the debtor (i.e. the joint ventures). The amount initially recognised
representing the fair value at initial recognition of the financial
guarantees was based on the valuation from an independent valuer
engaged by the Group. The method used in determining the fair value
of these guarantees was by reference to the recovery rate and key
financial ratio of the guaranteed entity.
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27.
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FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATION (continued)

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contracts is classified as
stage 1. During the year, there were no transfers between stages.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows:

. BIREREE®

BEERENZEERBESREE M - F
N BLER AR A B -

. BEEHRERE

TR EEHERBEZZEHNOT

Revaluation

of properties

MEETHE

HK$'000

FHTT

At 1 April 2019 RZE—NFMA—H 14,157
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FAHIREGFEERERZ

statement of profit or loss during the year RIERIE (F13E9)

(note 9) 113
Exchange realignment P& H TR 28
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZZZZTF=A=+—HK

ZE-ZFMA—H 14,298
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FANHIREFEERERZ

statement of profit or loss during the year EIEFRTE (F13E9)

(note 9) 94
Exchange realignment HE 54, e (26)
At 31 March 2021 R-B-Z—-F=A=t+—H 14,366

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$600,220,000 (2020: HK$540,916,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which losses arose. The Group also has unrecognised tax losses
arising elsewhere of HK$22,996,000 (2020: HK$27,579,000) that will
expire during 2021 to 2026 (2020: 2020 to 2025) for offsetting against
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets in respect of these losses
have not been recognised as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and, in the opinion of the directors, it
is not considered probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 March 2021, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2020: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of the Group's subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

REBREBEE 211 E/E18600,220,000
BT (T -ZT4 : 540,916,000/87T) © A&
PR HAFA VR SHER 1S B5 18 2 D R Z R R B RR B
Fl o REE TR EAbI T EE 2 A ERTIBE
E%u9%om%nm_=_7¢ 27,579,000
/%713) H#F\\—T _iﬁ /\¢<_
T :%?:;fii_?_ﬂi)iwﬁﬁ TﬁHVE
HERRERFEF - WERZEEEBERE
ERBEE  AZEBRITHEHEEE &
BB ARES  BESU TR ARG EE
BRRZARRERT S M AR IEE B

m:%:—iiﬂi+—5'%$%@2W%

AR BERRREEDERELEF 2 ER
HEMS  TEEARERECHEERCE
ZERF ) o

ARF DG A E BRI RS E LTS
7 o




29.

30.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL

e RS HRAR MR

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

29. |RA

Shares gl
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Authorised: JETE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares 2,000,000,0008% &K EIE
of HK$0.10 each 0.1087L 2 il 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAT
908,663,302 ordinary shares 908,663,302 R TR E A
of HK$0.10 each 0.108 T2 iR 90,866 90,866

Details of the share option schemes of the Company and the
subsidiaries and the share options issued under these schemes are
included in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme adopted by the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “AV Scheme"”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the AV Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including the Independent Non-executive Directors, other employees
of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers
of the Group, any person or entity that provides research, development
or technological support to the Group, any non-controlling interests in
the Company’s subsidiaries, any advisor or consultant to any area of
business or business development to the Group and any other group or
class of participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangements to the
Group. The AV Scheme became effective on 3 August 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
to be granted under the AV Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 30% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The total number of ordinary shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the AV Scheme
(excluding any which have lapsed) and any other schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the ordinary shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of the adoption of the AV
Scheme. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the AV Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

30.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by the Company (continued)
Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the Independent Non-executive Directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after the
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than the expiry
date of the AV Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; and
(ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no outstanding
share options and no share options granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the AV Scheme (2020: Nil).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
Company had no outstanding share options under the AV Scheme.

Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries

On 5 August 2013, 830 Lab Limited (the “830 Lab"”) adopted a share
option scheme (the “830 Lab Scheme”). Under the 830 Lab Scheme,
830 Lab may grant options to any of its full-time employees and
directors and any eligible persons as defined therein to subscribe for the
respective ordinary shares of 830 Lab.

On 1 February 2021, Whizoo Media Limited (the “Whizoo Media")
adopted a share option scheme (the “Whizoo Media Scheme”). Under
the Whizoo Media Scheme, Whizoo Media may grant options to any of
its full-time employees and directors and any eligible persons as defined
therein to subscribe for the respective ordinary shares of Whizoo Media.
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HEZATABEARL ZEAEREBBAR
RIPMER B 2 B 81T H 20.1% @ SAEE
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30. BEERRESTE )
Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries (continued) B 8 2 B BR 40 2 BB AR RE 5T B (40)
830 Lab Scheme 830 Labzt &l
The following share options were outstanding under the 830 Lab I - 7A830 Labat&EIE T ARIT{E < e AR 10
Scheme during the year: T
Number of share options
BREYR
Exercise Exercise
At Granted Lapsed Exercised Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price of
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share share
of participant 2020 the year the year the year the year the year 2021 share options options options
SRENL e -3 e i3 e BRE  BREC
5 BA-B  RERRL  RERXN RERERE  REAEE  RERER ZAZt-B RiAH iR e
(both dates HKS
inclusive) per share
(AREEERA) BRET
Director of 830 Lab and
the Company
830 LabRALTZES
So Chi Sun Sunny 220,000 - - - - - 220,000 5August 2013 6 September 2015 8.0
il ZE-SENARR o5 August 2023
“E-RENARH
E
“EC-=E)\ARA
Employees of 830 Lab 15,000 - - - - - 15,000 5August 2013 6 September 2015 8.0
830Lab2 /B8 “E-SENATR to5August 203
“E-REAARH
S
“E-=E)\ARA
Tota 235,000 - - - - - 235,000
it
Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the Wiz : BRRE B AR ABMETFE MG 2
commencement of the exercise period. g o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries (continued)
830 Lab Scheme (continued)

30. BRETE @

B B > R BR AR 2 RS IR RE T ) (D)
830 Labst & ()

2021 2020
—E-—F “ET-THE

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
IR IIITREME BREHE ETHTRE ERES R
HKS$ ‘000 HK'$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T

per share per share

=33 %
At beginning and end of year FMRER 8.0 235 8.0 235

The fair value of the share options granted during prior year was
HK$12,453,000, which was fully recognised by the Group in prior years
since all share options granted had been vested during prior years.

At the end of the reporting period, 830 Lab had 235,000 share options
outstanding under the 830 Lab Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of
830 Lab, result in the issue of 235,000 additional ordinary shares of 830
Lab and additional share capital of 830 Lab of HK$1,880,000 (before
issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, 830
Lab had 235,000 share options outstanding under the 830 Lab Scheme,
which represented approximately 33.1% of 830 Lab's shares in issue as
at that date.

RBAFERH 2 ERBEZAFEESR
12,453,00087C - AR 2 EHEREZR
BEFERB  AUMAEERBEFELRHERE
REBATEE -

R R AR 45 RS - 830 Labi4830 Labit &I
T2 MARITEREIREE B £235,0001) © /£830
LabIR I 2 IRANZERE T - ABEATE R T 208
% 88 75 38 R EB HNEE 17 235,0000%830 Labi i@
f% + WEH1,880,000/8 70,2830 LabRESME A
(BRFEATFSZAD o

PR EZSHEEVBEHREER - 830 Lab®
830 LabstEIE T 2 HARITHEERESEE A
235,00017 + A& 830 Labi &% H B 3175
#933.1% °
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30. BEERRESTE )
Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries (continued) B 8 2 B BR 40 2 BB AR RE 5T B (40)
Whizoo Media Scheme Whizoo Mediazt &l
The following share options were outstanding under the Whizoo Media FIA + BWhizoo Mediazt 8IT8 T AR1TE 2 FEAK
Scheme during the year: R
Number of share options
BRE"A
Exercise Exercise
At Granted Lapsed Exercised Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price of
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share share
of participant 2020 the year the year the year the year the year 2021 share options options options
SRENL R-B-%F RZB=-% B EiE BiREL
5 BA-B  RERRL  RERXN RERERE  REAEE  RERER ZAZt-B RiAH iR idd
(both dates HKS
inclusive) per share
(AREEERA) BRET
Employees of Whizoo - 300 - - - - 300 1February2021 2 February 203 121.66
Media and total to 1 February 2031
Whizoo Media2 EE R TEC-ER-R CECZECACH
At z
“B=-%_j-H
Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the Miz:: EBREZFBH AR L BE/TEHAMGZH
commencement of the exercise period. fe] ©
2021
—BC--F
Weighted
average Number
exercise price of options
InfEFI91TEE BRERE
HK$ ‘000
BT T
per share
=34
At beginning of year F1 N/A -
TEA
Granted during the year FARD 121.66 0.3
At end of year FER 121.66 0.3
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option schemes adopted by subsidiaries (continued)
Whizoo Media Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$22,000 (HK$74.6 each) (2020: Nil), of which the Group recognised
non-controlling interests of HK$2,000 (2020: Nil) during the year ended
31 March 2021.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

30.

B E B @

BB 1 B ER AN 2 B AR RE ST B (D)

Whizoo Mediazt&| (4&)
RBEFERN 2 BRE S, A FEEAR22,000
B (Eh74.68L) (TEZTF &) - HR R
EEREE T F=/A=+—HILFEMR
RIEIEAEHEER2,000/8 T (2 —Z4F « &) -

FHNERERELEREREZ AFEEIRE
L HEBFEAZEAER - L RER L ERE
AR AR Al T o TRV RE A AT A
B A B

2021

—E-—fF

Dividend yield (%) % BT (%) -
Expected volatility (%) ?EHH/BZVPEE(% 84.717
Risk-free interest rate (%) Faa FI 2R (%) 0.677
Expected life of options (year) E%Hx%ﬁﬁﬁi,ﬁﬂ (%) 10

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility was determined
by using the historical volatility of comparable companies’ share prices
corresponding to the terms of options from the valuation date, which
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, Whizoo Media had 300 share
options outstanding under Whizoo Media Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of Whizoo Media, result in the issue of 300 additional ordinary
shares of Whizoo Media and additional share capital of Whizoo Media
of HK$36,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
Whizoo Media had 300 share options outstanding under the Whizoo
Media Scheme, which represented approximately 3.0% of Whizoo
Media's shares in issue as at that date.
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31.

32.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 87 to 88 of the consolidated financial
statements.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the current year, E-gogo Holdings Limited, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group before 2 November 2020, entered
into subscription agreements with E-GoGo Limited and Signeo Design
International Limited, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group, and three independent third parties, pursuant to which E-GoGo
Limited and three independent third parties agreed to participate
in capital injection in E-gogo Holdings Limited. Prior to the capital
injection, the Group held 69% equity interest in E-gogo Holdings
Limited, which has a wholly-owned subsidiary, namely PT Egogo Hub
Indonesia. After the completion of the capital injection on 2 November
2020, the Group retained 49.375% equity interest in E-gogo Holdings
Limited and has lost control over E-gogo Holdings Limited. The
transaction was accounted for as a deemed disposal of subsidiaries and
the 49.375% equity interest in E-gogo Holdings Limited was accounted
for as investments in associates.

31.

32.

e RS HRAR MR

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

]
AEBAFERUAFEZHESCBEREBE
BRI RAE VSRR ESTAEEESSEZIRA
EFEHEK -

BEHERB AT

RAFE + E-gogo Holdings Limited (R Z=F =
ZFE+—-—AZHAIAREEN—HEZENE
NA]) AL E S E B A RIE-GoGo Limited
K Signeo Design International Limited * LA =
BT FE =TT L RB W - B - E-GoGo
Limited X =& B 5 = R B2 HEME-gogo
Holdings Limited)¥& » BT & 2 Al - A& E
#BE-gogo Holdings Limited 69% &4 + 1M
E-gogo Holdings Limited 8 —E 2 & ME A 7]
PT Egogo Hub Indonesia e R=FE =T F+—
RZB%BOEE®R - REERE AR E-gogo
Holdings Limitedf49.375% & #1832 2K ¥
E-gogo Holdings Limited M3 #4E - Z X S 1
AR IE S M B A RIABR & E-gogo Holdings
Limited#]49.375% I IR A B & A RIAVIRE A

2021

—E-—F

HK$'000

FHET

Net assets disposed of: BHEFEE
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use ME - BE RSB REAEEE FMiF12)

assets (note 12) 1,196
Cash and cash equivalents RekFRREER 1,561
Trade receivables FEUCE SRR 2,406
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIE - e RHAEWRIE 1,840
Due from a fellow subsidiary FEU— I [B) 2T B A RIFE 105
Other payables and accrued expenses LAt A FRIE R FEET B (1,799)
Due to a fellow subsidiary FER — MR R M B A RFIE (1,829)
Non-controlling interests I I i = (1,079)
2,401

Exchange fluctuation reserve M R B R 108
Fair value of investments retained upon disposal HERMRBIEEZ ATFEE (7,433)
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries (note 6) HEMRB ARz W (fizke) 4,924
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32. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

32.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows.

HR1E

HEMB D F @

BRLEMNBRARNRERERRESER ZR
HBFBEATT -

33.

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHET

Cash and bank balances disposed of and ERERS MRITEFUR

net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ERLENRBARMNES R

in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ZRBSEE 2L FE (1,561)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33, 4B &RERM T
CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions FTEFRERH

(@

During the year, the increase in investments in joint ventures

amounting to HK$30,345,000 (2020: the decrease in investments
in joint ventures amounting to HK$2,859,000) was attributable
to the recognition of financial guarantee obligation of
HK$112,542,000 (2020: HK$102,494,000) and the derecognition
of financial guarantee obligation of HK$82,197,000 (2020:

HK$105,353,000).

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-

use assets and lease liabilities of HK$257,000 and HK$257,000
(2020: HK$5,049,000 and HK$5,049,000), respectively, in

respect of lease arrangements for buildings.

(a)

(b)

RER RAEGEZEREEM
30,345,000 L (Z T —T4F : 380 %E
AR 2,859,000/ 7T) « TR A ERRAS
TEHEREE112,542,0008 T (—E-F
1 102,494,000/87T) MR \FERT
ERE 82,197,000 T (— - T4 ¢
105,353,000/ 7T) FTEK °

FR - AEEREFHETHENERZ
BERMEABNIIERESRED A
257,000 T & 257,0008 L (2 =%
£ 1 5,049,000/ 7T 55,049,000 L) °

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities BmEREFELECEEREE
2021 —EB-—fF
Interest-bearing Lease
bank borrowings liabilities
MEERITER HESE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT
At 1 April 2020 M-Z-ZFMA—B 97,811 6,712
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREE (102,298) (2,836)
Revision of a lease term arising from a change HETFIREE R E S EE
in the non-cancellable period of a lease < HEH BN - (2,526)
New leases g - 257
Interest expense FERY 794 177
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DEREEHREREZCAFIE - (78)
Interest paid classified as financing cash flows DELABERSREZENFE (794) (99)
Exchange realignment BEE 5 R 4,487 38
At 31 March 2021 KRB —4$=A=+—H - 1,645
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. Z8B e REaRkMTw
CASH FLOWS (continued)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities RMETEELEZEEEE @
(continued)
2020 —E-TF

Finance lease

Interest-bearing payables/lease
bank borrowings liabilities
[ENRERE
WTERITEN  RE/HEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFMA—H 72,366 4,243
Changes from financing cash flows MERGREE 31,186 (2,549)
New leases oHE - 5,049
Interest expense ISGEEa 3,492 271
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows HERTERSREZENTIE - (78)
Interest paid classified as financing cash flows DERBERENEZENFIE (3.492) (193)
Exchange realignment PG & (5,741) (31)
At 31 March 2020 RZZE_TF=HA=1+—H 97,811 6,712
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRHHEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated statement HAGERERERCHER S RLBEN
of cash flows is as follows: T
2021 2020
—E-—F TECTHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within operating activities FTAK RS 1,656 3,414
Within financing activities SFABEED) 2,935 2,742
4,591 6,156
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. HAERE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided RS R A RE - RS M HRERARER
for in the consolidated financial statements are as follows: BosARaBEmT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Guarantees given to banks in connection with ~ BLIRTAELEZEEIRET
facilities granted to joint ventures RITZER 6,306,296 5,909,591
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

35.

180 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 3§

As at 31 March 2021, the bank lending facilities granted to joint
ventures subject to cross-guarantees given to the banks by the Group
were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$6,306,296,000
(2020: HK$5,909,591,000). For the financial guarantees provided to
joint ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted, the
Group has recognised the financial guarantee obligation amounting to
HK$73,646,000 (2020: HK$43,301,000) as a liability as at 31 March
2021 which was disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following

34. IREBE@

35.

RZEZ—F=R=+—H rEEREZED
¥EEZBOTEFREEREBERIEERTIRT
B A46,306,296,000/8 T (Z BT :
5 909,591,000/87T) - HRAMEELEER Y

HITEREEMREZHBER  AKEEB
mfz:—i:ﬂﬂL—Ele’ﬂﬂ%%%EE
73,646,0005’55%(*7*7& 43,301,000/%8
T ERBAE - FFERGE M BHRERMTE275
E‘go

FREALRS

(a) MZSHFAUBBREAMILIFRZRS
Sh - AEERFRNERBREATETT N

material transactions with related parties during the year: TERZS :
2021 2020
—E—F —TFF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
liEss FHET FAET
Joint venture: BEMRE
Dividend income & BN (i) 81,585 69,930
Associates: /N
Sale of products iﬁ%@uu (i) 4,370 -
Purchase of products BEEm (i) 320 -
Service income i35 TN (iii) 116 -
Service expenses AR5 % A (iii) 21 -
Notes: MHaT -
(i) The dividends declared by the joint venture of the Group were for the (i) REF-BEENEMERZREIREE_-Z

interim dividends for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and 30 June
2019 and the year-end dividends for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2019.

(i) The sale to and purchase from associates were made at prices and terms
mutually agreed between the parties.

(iii) The service income received from associates and service expenses
paid to an associate were made at prices and terms mutually agreed
between the parties.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

The Group’s key management personnel are the Executive
Directors of the Company, and further details of their
emoluments are included in note 8(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

—EFANA=THERZZE-NAFAA=+HL
ANERZHEHRERRBE_ZT_TF+=A
ET—HARZE-NAFET_A=ZT—HIEFEES
&2 SRR, o

(ii) B A RIREE RIEE DIRTOF ARG EOE
& RAGHGEST ©
(iii) B & A B IR KBS — & Fi?’f%

BRI HT&EE’]FT%&M?K

(b) F*EEEREEABZMHE
AEBZETZEEABRARBZHNITE
= AUERSEMe g THBENES
BRI MIFESD) °




36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021
Financial assets

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TSR R AT

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

T

—E-—F
SRIEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

EMIBECDE
ZEREMTARBE PRERE Y FHSE

BBRREATEE
JIRz S REE
Designated Financial
as such assets at
upon initial  Mandatorily amortised
recognition designated cost Total
RiE BB ATR
BRRIETE BHEE ZERMERE ast
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FizE TET TET TEn TEr
Due from associates FEUEEE R BIFUR 18 - - 987 987
Trade receivables B E 5 HRIR 21 - - 34,886 34,886
Financial assets included in FAERRE - ReERk
prepayments, deposits and HiREWHIE S REE
other receivables 22 - - 15,555 15,555
Financial assets at fair value FBBRBEATERIER
through profit or loss JEREE 19 37,298 35,587 - 72,885
Cash and bank balances Re RRTETF 23 - - 123,678 123,678
Deposits with other financial REMS BIRE TR
institutions 23 - - 620 620
37,298 35,587 175,726 248,611
Financial liabilities -y =Ri
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R A A5 BR
ZEMEE
Notes HK$'000
b FHET
Trade payables FERTE SRR 24 4,990
Deposits received 2iuze 24 2,357
Financial liabilities included in accrued expenses T AFERTE AR EE 24 13,038
Lease liabilities HEBE 14 1,645
Financial guarantee obligation P BRI TE 3K 27 73,646
95,676
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. @RI AEZDE@®
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments FHMeMmIARNRERHERFZRESMAE
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) LUNNENC))
2020 —E-TF
Financial assets SRIEE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BRBESEATEE

FIER SREE
Designated Financial
as such assets at
upon initial Mandatorily amortised
recognition designated cost Total
R% TRE SR ARSI
TR IETE S HIEE JEMEE A&t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bzt TET FHT TET TET
Due from associates FEIEE & R BRI 18 - - 115 115
Trade receivables FEIE 5 HR50 21 - - 78,935 78,935
Financial assets included in FABRRTE - RER
prepayments, deposits and Efth fEMHIE 2
other receivables SHEE 22 - - 13,767 13,767
Financial assets at fair value FERBREATEEYIES
through profit or loss SRAE 19 48,605 55,125 - 103,730
Cash and bank balances B MR8 23 - - 85,762 85,762
Deposits with other financial RRE A& B 2 7
institutions 23 - - 1,985 1,985
48,605 55,125 180,564 284,294
Financial liabilities THAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
LR SHA AT AR
ZEFAaE
Notes HK$'000
BiaE FAT
Trade payables B SRR 24 21,626
Deposits received 2luze 24 1,534
Financial liabilities included in accrued expenses st AT ERHERAE 24 16,954
Lease liabilities HEBRRE 14 6,712
Interest-bearing bank borrowings P BRI TE X 26 97,811
Financial guarantee obligation BB EREE 27 43,301
187,938
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37. TRITEAFEERATFEESER
g
AEESBTA(FESENATEES EHIE
EEBIN EESELATEENT -

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREEEE ATEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B-—-f —T-THF B _—T-TH
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT FHET FH&T
Financial assets SMEE
Financial assets at fair value BRBEEATFEBEYEZ
through profit or loss TRIEE 72,885 103,730 72,885 103,730
Non-current deposits ETmBIL S 1,932 1,992 1,932 1,992
74,817 105,722 74,817 105,722
Financial liabilities o= =R
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,645 6,712 1,645 6,712

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from associates, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (other
than non-current deposits), trade payables, interest-bearing bank
borrowings and financial guarantee obligation approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

BEENTE RELFRBASEE - BUEHE
RAFIA -~ BRE SRR - FEABRNTOR - 12
EREMERFEzEREE GERBREK
5N - BB BRI - M RERITRER LI BER
BEEZAVEEEARESEMEE TBHR
ZETAEHREHAZIH -

AEBEBPBRIBABMBEMAIBEEE
HEMTARFEBEZEEIER - MHKIE
BEEMERVMBRENEZZBSER - B
BFANSREEAHMONEMTABEZED
VEEBETFERZEIRZBAE - BEMBR
EEMIIAGE BEXZEGAU-FMER
TR FEMBRREENwAEBENG
B
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

184 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of non-current deposits and lease liabilities have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for lease
liabilities as at 31 March 2021 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity, bond investments and an equity
investment traded over-the-counter measured as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are based on quoted market prices. The
fair values of unlisted equity investments measured as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss have been estimated with reference
to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as the average
of the enterprise value to sales ratio (“EV/Sales”) or issued prices of
recent transactions. The fair values of investments in convertible bonds
measured as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have
been estimated with reference to the available financial information and
final price value from Credit Event Auction by Creditex. The fair values
of key management insurance contracts classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are based on the account values less
surrender charges, quoted by the vendors. The directors believe that the
estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in profit or loss are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.

37.

ERMITEAFEERAFLEEER
BEm@
SREERABY AT EBENEHIANGHE
RBH (MERETERHE) SN S T2
RBEEARE o O ERBEDANGEER
T(EE -

FrEeMMERE LA HEEDNERAR
L EERR IS TEIHE 2 TR ZRE
MEEFEMARREREMRRMFAE - R-F
——H=ZA=1t—H AEERHEEREWE
HZENEBRERE R TEK -

BRBREATEEINRZGTEACHEEN
FTRA - EHERERBIIZBRAREZ R
FEEDRBEABEMENE - SBRBREAF
BEINRZAEACHEENIELTRARE
ZAFEEDSEANELBR LT AR ZER
(BlanFo R EEEHEEE ((DEEEHE
B ERIERZFHNEITERE - BBBR
BRAFEEINRZIEACREEZ TRRE
FIREZ AT EECLXEANSARAMBER R
Creditexf){E E S48 E (Credit Event Auction)
Sz &REBEME - PEASBBRIEZAYF
BEINRZCHMEENTEZEEEABRRAEY
ZAFEBEDMKBERFEBERRER(HES
WB)HE - EREE - UHERMESE 2 HEt
ANEEERGE VBN KL RAFEE
2 RS (RBRER I ASE  WARS
HRE R RAEZ(BE -
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. TRITEAFEERATFEESER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 210 )
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation EMIAMER-_Z-_—FR_-Z 7$¢ A
of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as _‘1' Az RO B R A EERE SR
at 31 March 2021 and 2020: EoMEHRT -
Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input  Value Sensitivity of fair value to input
fhER EATTEZGAE  HE DATEEHRAEZHRE
Unlisted equity investments Market comparable companies  EV/Sales 0.35x t0 3.04x 5% increase (decrease) in EV/Sales multiple would
classified as financial assets at TETELRAT PEEE/HEE (2020: 0.44x to 1.15x) result in increase (decrease) in fair value by
fair value through profit or loss 0352 %3.04f5 HK$16,000 (2020: HK$ HK$634,000)
ELPRERE - HERERER (C2-ZF: 0MBE  CREE/HEELE LA (TR)S%EERATE
BATEEIIG SRAE 1.15(%) {EE7r(T84) 16,0008 7T (T =54 © 634,000

BT

Marketability discount ~ 15.8% (2020: 15.8%) 5% increase (decrease) in the marketability discount
EENTE 15.8% would result in decrease (increase) in fair value by
(ZZZZF:158%)  HK$10,000 (2020: HK$2,592,000)
MHEETRLA (TR % BERATEETS
(EF£)10,000% 7 (22254 : 2,592,000% )

Minority discount 25.10% (2020: 22.00%) 5% increase (decrease) in the minority discount
DYRRERTE 25.10% would result in decrease (increase) in fair value by
(ZZZZF:2200%)  HK$18,000 (2020: HK$2,468,000)
DERFRERTELA (TR 5% B EHATERT
B (E71)18,0008 7 (2224 : 2,468,000

/%TE)
Discount rate 17.00% (2020: 16.52%) 5% increase (decrease) in the discount rate would
8RR % 17.00% result in decrease (increase) in fair value by

(ZZ22F:11650%)  HK$42,000 (2020: HK$1,940,000)
PEE HF(TRE)S% B ERATLEE TS (L)
42,0008 (ZZE=ZF : 1,940,000 1)

Terminal growth rate 3.00% (2020: 3.92%) 5% increase (decrease) in the terminal growth rate
KABRE 3.00% would result in increase (decrease) in fair value by
(Z2Z2F:39%) HK$4,000 (2020: HK$2,050,000)
KABRE LFH(TH) 5% B ERATEE LA (T
%)4,0008 T (2224 ¢ 2,050,000/57T)
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input
B EXTURERAE

37. ERMIAATFEBERATFEBEER

2848 )
Value Sensitivity of fair value to input
(| AFEENRAEZSRE

Investment in convertible bonds Market comparable companies  Final price value from

classified as financial assets at TR A AL BAR Credit Event Auction
fair value through profit or loss by Creditex
RABRERBERATEER Creditext)EE S
HeREAENTRRESRE 1AE (Credit Event
Auction)FT& 2 &%
(EfE
Key management insurance N/A Account values
contracts dlassified as financial ~ MEH RPEE
assets at fair value through profit
or loss
TEERASRBEN  HEAE
BERRER ﬁ“ﬁﬂﬁﬁz_&mﬂﬁ
E
Surrender charges
RRER

186 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 &3

0% (2020: 7%)
0% (ZBZZF :7%)

5% increase in final price value from Credit Event
Auction by Creditex would result in increase in fair
value by HK$3,146,000 (2020: HK$3,146,000)

5% decrease in final price value from Credit Event
Auction by Creditex would result in decrease in fair
value by nil (2020: HK$3,146,000)

Creditex®) 5 S #HAE (Credit Fvent Auction)Ff {32
BB LI5%SEH AT E(E L73,146,000
BIL(ZEZZE £ 3,146,00057T)

Creditexf){EEZ A E (Credit Event Auction)Z &
REETHS%ESHATEETRE(CE-Z
13,146, 000%7T)

HK$27,343,000
(2020: HK$26,661,000)
27343 000?%73
(Z3z%F:
26,661,000/ 7T)

5% (2020: 5%) increase (decrease) in account values
would result in increase (decrease) in fair value by
HK$1,367,000 (2020: HK$ ,333,000)

BPEELA(TR)S%(ZZ2ZF : 5%) #EH
ATEEEFA(TH)1,367,0008L(ZF=FF
1,333,000%7T)

HK$2,642,000 5% (2020: 5%) increase (decrease) in surrender
(2020: HK$2,770,000) charges would result in decrease (increase) in fair

2,642,000 value by HK$132,000 (2020: HK$139,000)
(Z2-%E: BRER LA (TH)5%(ZT2TF : 5%) 8%
2,770,0007T) NFEETH(EF) 132,008 (=55

139,000 7T)
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. TRITEAFEERATFEESER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) EE@®

Fair value hierarchy AT EESERES

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRIFFAERAEESRIARTEEZER
the Group’s financial instruments: B

Assets measured at fair value: RAVEEFEZEE :

As at 31 March 2021: R-B-—F=A=1+—-A:

Fair value measurement using
FEATEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
ERWE BEATHE EAFAHE
ZHRE BWAE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(-8 (=8 (=8 &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET TET TET FHET
Financial assets at fair value through  EBIEFEIRATEETE
profit or loss LERMEE 44,962 - 27,923 72,885
As at 31 March 2020: Ro-FE-—FFE=H=+—f :

Fair value measurement using

s EATEEREA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

RS BEXRAER BEATAEER

ZRIE BAE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E—@ (€l (FE=F) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET

Financial assets at fair value through  EBERIZATEETER

profit or loss ZEREE 55,125 - 48,605 103,730
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the

year are as follows:

EMITAQAFEERAFEESR

EEm@

D EESREE @@

BRAVEEFEZEE : (8

FA - BFZBAXTFEEFE2EHNT :

188 AV Concept Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021 3§

2021 2020
—E-—-F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
At beginning of year F7) 48,605 54,638
Total losses recognised in profit or loss RIERER 2 EBIERE (14,027) (16,863)
Purchases BE 5,633 8,692
Transferred from Level 2 BE-EET - 3,881
Transferred to Level 1 BMAFE—E (14,093) -
Exchange realignment PE 3 IR 1,805 (1,743)
At end of year FR 27,923 48,605

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and a financial asset of HK$14,093,000
was transferred from Level 3 into Level 1 since the financial asset was
traded over-the-counter during the year and the fair value of it was
based on the quoted market prices. There were no transfers into or
out of Level 3 for financial liabilities. In the prior year, a financial asset
of HK$3,881,000 was transferred from Level 2 into Level 3 since the
financial asset was purchased by the Group in year 2019 and the fair
value of it was based on the recent investment cost in that year and no
recent transaction was noted for such financial asset and the fair value
of it was determined based on significant unobservable inputs.

R-E——F=ZA=+—HER=_ZT=_ZTF=A
—+—8  AEEBMETMRATFEESEZ
SRIEE -

FN - E-REEBAFEENECHTES
% 4% /514,093,000 THEREEBS
“EBAE—E  NEREREENFANES
WL S RENFEETIAFTRTEAER o #
FEOMAEHEARHEEE=E - RLEAFE -
SREEES,881,0008 TEE - EEAE=E -
THEREREERARAEER_Z—NFEAR
HEAFEEDURZFENERIEEREAE
MEZEREEWELAZ S REAFEET
EREATA R ABUEE T -
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. TRITEAFEERATFEESER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) EEm@

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT EESEREE@®
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: WEAFEEZEE

As at 31 March 2021: R-E-_—F=H=+—H:

Fair value measurement using
FEATEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
ERWE BEATHE EAFAHE
ZHRE BWAE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(-8 (=8 (=8 &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET TET TET FHET
Non-current deposits FnEEE - - 1,932 1,932
As at 31 March 2020: R—TE—FFE=HJ=+—H :

Fair value measurement using

HEAFEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
AR ERAER BEATAER
ZRIE BAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E—@ (E=E) (E=FE) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TAET TET
Non-current deposits FnEEE - - 1,992 1,992
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. TRITEAFEERATFEESER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) EEm@

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT EESEREE@®
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: BFEATEEZEE

As at 31 March 2021: R-BE-—F=A=+—HA":

Fair value measurement using

FEAFEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERWE EATHE EATATHE
ZHME BWAE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(-8 (=8 (=B &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET TET TET FHET
Lease liabilities HEAR - 1,645 - 1,645
As at 31 March 2020: R-IE-FF=H=1+—H :
Fair value measurement using
RN TEERKER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
E AR ERAER BEATAEER
ZRIE BAE BAAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E—@ (FE=B) (E=8) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FAET TAET
Lease liabilities HEEE - 6,712 - 6,712
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank borrowings, lease liabilities, cash and bank balances and deposits
with other financial institutions. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. The Group
is also exposed to market price risk in respect of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
market price risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s funding policy is to use short term interest-bearing debts
to finance its working capital requirements and interest-bearing debts
over one year or internally generated resources to finance its capital
investments. The Group borrows mainly at floating interest rates.
Interest-bearing debts over one year will only be considered for capital
investments under favourable market conditions.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings).

e RS HRAR MR

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

MHEREEEEREE

AEBZIZEMTABEMBRTER  H
ERE RENRBITEFURREGSREEE
ZHER -ZEEMIAEZIZARTIREE
BLERE - AKEERHEMZASHEENRA
& fInEWE SR RENE SRR - 98
AEBEEERESL - ARENEBBIESER
RNFEEIRZ 2 BEEMmEEET ERR -

AEBeRMTAMEE 2T Z/AR AN ERE
b SRR - EERR - RBERERES
EBERE EFeRIMBEFBAEESRARZ
BUOR - B -

M REkR
A E2 [ R T 35 M) 2R B B 7 D Bl 2 LB R B
SERFEHRG B M BIRITETER -

AEBZESHRRBAEHMBEBBEMEE
BESHE  WA—FREZH SEE AR
ELBRBNEEARKRE - AEEZERETE
WFBNEE - ESEANZTRATHRER
BREZEE—FI L2 BER

THRIIFAREORBARFEH AL R E
RETEHERT + HFIE0 A2 A BB
B (BB TREEOTE) -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in

basis points profit before tax
BB R AR F
#0,/ Cil) #,/ (i)
HK$'000
FEIT
2020 —T-TF
Hong Kong dollars BT 100 (980)
Hong Kong dollars BTt (100) 980

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk as at 31 March 2021 is
considered to be minimal.

W-Z-—%=A=+—8  KAEEEBEYF
RERIE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

192

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk because its business
is principally conducted in Hong Kong and most of the transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars. Since the
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk is considered to be minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties
and associates. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based
on past due information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification at the end
of the reporting period. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 March 2021

B EREE B ZRBER @)

SNEE LR
REBYMEAIMEAR - AEEBRERL
LE  HABHO RS HABTHETE -
RB T ST - AR EATE ER 2 SME
BB AR R R -

FERR
AEEREERAMERAEZR = RtE
RAPETEE - AEBEZBRAMBARENLE
ERRETEBEZEFPHAKBEERER
Froo tboh - EUCRIAAE SR T IRFF A R B 5T
% S5 [ P IE Bl SR BR R BR A R EEK o

RAERR K FRMER
TRINRIAAEEEEBRRASELENEEER
AR FrEENSREERR  ZEEBRRE
ELAs AR (BARABZ KA HEIRS
ZEMERRIN RBEMROFERERDE
2 eBATREEZREATHE

R-B-—-F=A=+-—H

12-month
ECLs
12 RS Lifetime ECLs
FEFE 2HRBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
B [129] B3 ik &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FaR Fax FEx TEr
Trade receivables* FEWE 5 Bk - - - 46,832 46,832
Due from associates FEURES & 2 R RUE
— Not yet past due — AR 987 - - - 987
Financial assets included in prepayments, ~ RTERFUE « & REMEK
deposits and other receivables HERFIE eRHEE
- Normal** —IEE** 15,555 - - - 15,555
- Doubtful** —RER** - - 4,946 - 4,946
Cash and bank balances Be RFTER
— Not yet past due — AR 123,678 - - - 123,678
Deposits with other financial institutions A% BUHE 2 7 3
— Not yet past due — AR 620 - - - 620
140,840 - 4,946 46,832 192,618
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES BRREEE B EREBE @

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EE RS (3
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BRERRFRMEER (F)
As at 31 March 2020 MW-_ZE_ZEF=A=+—H
12-month
ECLs
12 A TEER Lifetime ECLs
EEEE 2HRNEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PEE1 FEEz2 PEE3 Bz Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THEL THET TEL TEL
Trade receivables* EWE S ER~ - - - 89,743 89,743
Due from associates JEURES & 2 RIFUE
— Not yet past due — AR 115 - - - 115
Financial assets included in prepayments, ~ RTETFUE « & REMEK
deposits and other receivables HERFIE eRHEE
- Normal** —EEr* 13,767 - - - 13,767
- Doubtful** —RERx* - - 5,016 - 5,016
Cash and bank balances RBe RRTER
-~ Not yet past due — AR 85,762 - - - 85,762
Deposits with other financial institutions A Eth 4 B 2 175
— Not yet past due — AR 1,985 - - - 1,985
101,629 - 5,016 89,743 196,388
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for * NEBFELEWE S5BEFERBELE - AR

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 21
to the consolidated financial statements.

x* The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of
the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21 to the

consolidated financial statements.

WERREENEHRBENGA W RKM T
21°

o PIANFUR - me REMEKTORATIERZ & E
BENGEEEARNEARAPHRAAIES] - #
BEEHNRASRAEQVIRABENEERRSE

i

BEAE
ZHE—F
21455 ©

°

EREWE 5K E R EERR
EEDWTEIBTING & MR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. BIBEMREERFEREE@®
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk RENE & =
The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and credit lines to meet FEEHNEERERERACHEREEHE W
its liquidity requirements. The Group finances its working capital BHERBESTR - NEEBBRESCKEESE
requirements through a combination of funds generated from WESHRBITEERESEESTREBNE
operations and bank borrowings. & o
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of AEEZ SRAEN RS AR RIIRETLO R
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, ARIR AR B ERE AT
is as follows:
2021
—B-—-F

More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but

1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
—FRY —FHE MEULE
REREER BLRME BLREF &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx THET T FTHERr
Trade payables B ZERK 4,990 - - 4,990
Deposits received Blize 2,357 - - 2,357
Financial liabilities included in HAESERANSRAE
accrued expenses 13,038 - - 13,038
Lease liabilities HEaE 929 574 270 1,773
Guarantees given to banks in IRTELELEZEE
connection with facilities granted R FIRITZ ER (HE34)
to joint ventures (note 34) 6,306,296 - - 6,306,296
6,327,610 574 270 6,328,454
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

38. Bt

e RS HRAR MR

31 March 2021 —Z=-—%=A=+—H

=

BRRBREEEERBE®

Liquidity risk (continued) RBESEE(®
2020
e S
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
—FRNK —&FPE MEE
BREXEE  ALRWEF BLRREEF &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT FAT
Trade payables [E B ZERH 21,626 - - 21,626
Deposits received Blize 1,534 - - 1,534
Financial liabilities included in AR BRANSRAE
accrued expenses 16,954 - - 16,954
Lease liabilities HEARK 3,672 2,437 800 6,909
Interest-bearing bank borrowings BRI TIER 97,811 - - 97,811
Guarantees given to banks in IRTELELEZEE
connection with facilities granted R FIRITZ BR (HE34)
to joint ventures (note 34) 5,909,591 - - 5,909,591
6,051,188 2,437 800 6,054,425
Market price risk T ERE
Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities MERRARANIEHRERNFEHEEKE ZE
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the FEHRAFTEATEETR AR - AEHE
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to market price I1IE‘JHX$TX§&’\*E7%§LTE SR ATEE
risk arising from individual equity investments and key management IRz SMBEZFEEREABRBE Y (I

insurance contracts classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (note 19). Most of the Group’s listed equity investments
are listed on the Stock Exchange and were valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the Stock Exchange, at the close of business
of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and their respective highest and lowest points during the year
are as follows:

31 March

-

2021
F

=A=t-8

19) MEGETERRE - NEBAHD EHRAEK
BRI s B R 4 R P
Wz mEFTEME -

F?%Liﬁiﬁﬂfﬁ HEREBZFARSHAEER
RN RERPT 2 TIGIRAEE - AR
EEZAZFNERR EREILENT

High/low 31 March High/low
2021 2020 2020
—E-—F —E-F —ETF
Be/BE =A=+—H &/ &K

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index & —1B4AEH

28,578 31,085/22,930

23,175 30,157/21,696
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% change
in the fair values of the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and key management insurance contracts with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax, based on their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period.

B EREE B ZRBER @)

™ {8 E.Bx ()
TRINEMBEMEHESIZZERT -
BREHRERE ZIRASHEAE - 28BS
BAFEEINGRZEMEERTRZEEABR
ez ATEESEES%  AEEBRHANG
M2 GURE -

Increase/
decrease
Carrying in profit
amount before tax
RRBE A% F
IRESEE B, m
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHER
2021 —E-—F
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ZEBEFIE A FEETIEZCHEE 48,184 2,409
Key management insurance contracts classified D fEABBEZEAFEEYIEZ
as financial assets at fair value through SREECETEERAER
profit or loss RER & # 24,701 1,235
Increase/
decrease
Carrying in profit
amount before tax
R Al A
T #hn, A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHTT
2020 —T-TF
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss B BIBRIE N FEEVIEZSREE 79,839 3,992
Key management insurance contracts classified 218 AEBEZEZATFEENERZ
as financial assets at fair value through CMEEZFEETEAR
profit or loss REBEH 23,891 1,195
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is required to comply and has complied with certain capital
requirements set out in the bank lending facilities. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total capital. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
gearing ratio at less than 75%. Net debt includes trade payables, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
included in current assets. Capital represents total equity.

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

e RS HRAR MR

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

38. MEEMEIEHERBE@®

EXrEE

AEBEAEE TEBRRREAEEFE
REZHEN  WHEBRBBZERLE - UK
HEBRFBGEAZBIRER

AEBERBEERA BEERELENER R
EHHAR - AEEXEREEFHEARRIKEZ
BB~ AR R B AN B TR BUA RS 3
BREXRGEE - ARBEAETY DB TRITER
FEEMBCETEARE - REE-FT_—F
ZAET—HRZZEZZEF=A=+—HItF
B AEEEEEAZBR  BRIEFBE

=4
3E -

AEBFREABRBLEL X (B FEBRUNEAR
BEREAR - AKBEZERRDBEAAREL
RERFNTS% AT - B FRREERMNE S K
o HERBERMERITENR B ARDE
ENREMERREER EBBRSERATE
BIRZ EREE - BRI ARE

RIEMEERR 2 EARBELLEMT

2021 2020

s TECTE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade payables FERTE SRR 4,990 21,626
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,645 6,712
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B BRI TE 3K - 97,811
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BekERREER (124,298) (87,747)

Less: Financial assets at fair value through A BRBERIEATEEYERE

profit or loss included in current assets TRMEETTARDEE (48,184) (79,839)
Net cash WEF 8 (165,847) (41,437)
Total capital BERGE 5E 1,425,009 1,180,997
Gearing ratio BRBELE N/A N/A
TEA NE A
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. AATZHBMRRE
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company BRARRTF BN R R E RS R 2 &
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BHAT
2021 2020
—E-—F T CTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REE 117 126
Investments in subsidiaries REER R ZRE 655,368 616,443
Total non-current assets ERE) BEERE 655,485 616,569
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUSHT B A RIFIE 982 851
Prepayments TEf SRR 301 199
Financial assets at fair value through BRBEEATEEY R

profit or loss ZEREE - 2,840
Cash and cash equivalents BekZERREER 846 1,116
Total current assets mEE ERE 2,129 5,006
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accrued expenses fEstE R 8,363 5,724
Financial guarantee obligation MISEREE 73,646 43,301
Total current liabilities mE A ERE 82,009 49,025
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFHE (79,880) (44,019)
Net assets BEFE 575,605 572,550
EQUITY Ex
Issued capital BT 90,866 90,866
Reserves (note) A EED) 484,739 481,684
Total equity iR 575,605 572,550
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. ARATFZBMFMRIRE @
COMPANY (continued)
Note: B e -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ATz EEanT
Share Capital
premium redemption Retained
account reserve profits Total
RIPBER REEEHEE REBEF At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—-NFMA—H 429,719 16,142 9,440 455,301
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 HEWAERE - - 44,556 44,556
Dividend paid BIRAR S - - (18,173) (18,173)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-E-ZTF=F=1+—HK
—ZT-TFMA—H 429,719 16,142 35,823 481,684
Total comprehensive income for the year £ A2 WA 45 - - 34,858 34,858
Dividend paid B IRRE - - (31,803) (31,803)
At 31 March 2021 RZE=Z—F=A=+—H 429,719 16,142 38,878 484,739
In accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the Cayman BERESHELANE(CEENMEEEE) « &K
Islands, the Company’s share premium account is distributable in NAIZBRDBEEEEFBR T THIRE

40.

certain circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 40, &4 BiSHE > itk

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised RéGFABEREERN " E-——F<A-+HH

for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2021.

=

BEEaH/ENRRETIE -
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List of Investment Properties

REVMXFE

31 March2021 —ZZE=—F=A=+—H

Approximate Effective equity
Address gross areas Lot number  Lease expiry interest to the Group Usage
rEEER

it BHEEE BRESR SRS ERRE i}

HONG KONG

b

Flat 302, 3/F, Block G, Telford Gardens, 603.00 sq.ft. NKI 5744 2047 100% Residential
No. 33 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

NENEEBREEBRIERIEEACE3REINE 603.00F 7R NKI 5744 “EMtEF 100% =z

MAINLAND CHINA

HEIRE

Units A-D, 25/F, Noble Center, 1006 Fu Zhong San Road, 1,000.77 sq.m. N/A 2053 100% Office
Futian District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province

ERE R ITRHERET=H10065% 1,000.77F5K  TiEA “TR=F 100% NS
HERD2SEAZDE

The whole of 28th Floor, Tower One, Neptune Center, 1,088.42 sq.m. N/A 2048 100% Services
Gaoxin District, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province apartments

W) ER BT R REF T L~ H28BEE 1,088.42F 7K TR “EENF 100% RBALE

SINGAPORE

HIK

37 Orange Grove Rood, #04-11, 185.00 sg.m. N/A Freehold property ~ 100% Residential
Orange Grove Residences, Singapore

185.00F 77 % TEm KAREME 100% =z
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